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Group Structure

HE W M PR A ]
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.

evelopment
Hong Kong (Holding) Limited

91.3%

Chongqing Longhu Development Co., Ltd

b B HE R E
Property Development Property Investment
FAH BEEH
Subsidiaries JCE* Projects
T BT Bl L3 BN
1. -
Longfor Chongqing 91.3% Chongqing Bamboo 49.6% Chongqing North  91.3% EEMOCO 91.3%
Grove Paradise Walk Chongging MOCO
JRHR HE 94.2%
Longfor Chengdu R R IR A W =T4
JescEEM Shanghai Rose 45.7% Chongqing Wese  91.3% Chengdu 93.48%
Longfor Beijing 89.9% and Ginkgo Villa Paradise Walk Three Thousand Mall
T A A B A B
Longﬁtgfﬁﬁghai 91.3% Chengdu Century 49.1% Chongging 91.3% Beijing Summer Palace 89-93%
Peak View Crystal Palace Starry Street
Lffgf’ﬁgﬁ,an 91.3% S 15 4o TR IR BEI 201 147 55— 2 i B 3
8 Dalian Longhe 0 Chongqing Fairy Castle 91.3%  To be opened in Q2 2011
T Paradise Walk
Longfor Wuxi o1.3%
T B HE
Longfor Shenyang 93:5%
B 96.7%
Longfor Qingdao
Y
Longfor Changzhou 96.6%
M 00
Longfor Hangzhou 00%
T TR
Longfor Yantai 91.3%
ifﬁ‘é‘gﬁ)j * JCE T 3 ] P B

91.3%

Longfor Yunnan * JCE = Jointly Controlled Entity

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &
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Schedule of Principal Properties

R R
AEH ot
REH B BT BRH ik
f 1 Completed GFA 7 5L 1 BT
T H AW Group’s Interest % Remaining  GFA Under  GFA Under
Project in the Project Location Unsold Development Planning
(FHK) (FF k) (CF7 k)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
BRI Chunsen Land 91.30% Chongqing & & 41,381 435,485 293,483 R/S/0/CP
I Peace Hill County 91.30% Chongqing % & 05,204 111,037 120,242 R/S/CP
B Wisdom Town 95.56% Chongqing & & 25,850 - —  R/S/CP
MOCO 1 L» MOCO Center 91.30% Chongqing & B 28,537 — — R/S/CP
L Sunshine Riverside 46.50% Chongqing & B 00,099 - —  R/S/CP
A Toschna Villa 95.56% Chongqing & ¥ 10,954 410,999 429131 R/S/CP
LB Bamboo Grove 49.57% Chongqing % & 16,292 355,732 939,379 R/S/CP
% Crystal Magic 91.30% Chongqing % & — 218,228 577,055 R/S/CP
KEH University Town 95.56% Chongqing & & — 320,961 1432,927  R/S/CP
If Mopan Shan 93.48% Chongqing & I — 376,000 744,805  R/S/CP
BEEAR Chongging Subtotal 248917 2,228,442 4,537,680
=T Three Thousand Castles 93.48% Chengdu f.# 7,145 168,490 —  R/S/CP
REH Bridge County 91.42% Chengdu B # 24,740 51,814 — R
A X Chengdu Flamenco Spain ~ 91.30% Chengdu H & 45,872 442,613 198212 R/S/CP
i A0 5% Century Peak View 49.13% Chengdu H & — 270,819 313,139 R/S/CP
N Jade Town 93.48% Chengdu B4 — 48,765 58,009  R/S/CP
ik ¥ Wukuai Shi 91.30% Chengdu FR# — 242,215 436,151 R/S/CP
G K& Mou Ma Heaven 91.30% Chengdu B & — — 026,800 R
FR AN Chengdu Subtotal 77,757 1,224,716 1,632,371
A I Summer Palace Splendor ~ 89.93% Beijing 3t it 1,775 48,205 — R/S/CP
J% ONE Towning One 91.30% Beijing 1L & — 250,190 — R/S/CP
ERER Chianti Riverside 91.30% Beijing 4L 3¢ — 314,502 —  RS/CP
HHER Azure Chianti 91.30% Beijing 4L & — 123,004 12,238 R/S/CP
A Changying 91.30% Beijing 3t &t — 170,885 100,773 R/S/CP
TEER Blossom Chianti 91.30% Beijing 3t it 30,184 — — R/S/CP
K7 Elegance Loft 91.30% Beijing 1% 57,078 — — R/S/CP
AWWLEREE  Niu lan Shan 91.30% Beijing 1L — — 152,670 R/S/CP
TEH
EEH Hou Sha Yu 91.30% Beijing L it — — 05,446 R/S/CP
KEEH Daxing 91.30% Beijing L3¢ — — 462,946 R/S/CP
RN Beijing Subtotal 95,037 906,846 794,073
R % S: ME 0 MAZE CP: {FHi 15
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

[REERi
/N o th s
R H S B WA
fr i 4 Completed GFA BT REEK
HHAW Group’s Interest U Remaining  GFA Under  GFA Under
Project in the Project Location Unsold Development Planning
(F77K) CFHK) (FF k)
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
EEEEA Island of Horse 91.30% Yantai £ & — — 6,996,311  R/S/CP
& Nat Yantai Subtotal — — 6,996,311
= 3 Shanghai Rose 45.56% Shanghai |1 31,176 — — RS
and Ginkgo Villa
[y Sunshine City 93.48% Shanghai [ 1 4,941 238,524 —  R/S/CP
Y Bai Yin Lu Project 95.56% Shanghai [ 1 — 39,500 108,654 R/S/CP
A Long Xing Lu 91.30% Shanghai I 1§ — 59,892 90,362 R/S/CP
TG Shanghai Subtotal 36,117 337,916 199,016
EH Xi'an Fairy Castle 91.30% Xian i % — 272,153 — R/S/CP
S5 Xi'an Fairy Castle II 91.30% Xian 1§ % — — 71,741 R/S/CP
BRI Xi'an Chianti 91.30% Xian P§ % — — 1,567,120 R/S/CP
WR% Chang'an Wonder 91.30% Xian F§ % — — 43,535  R/S/CP
KEIEH Daxing Project 94.17% Xian F§ % — — 136,486 R/S/CP
1% /Pt Shanghai Subtotal — 272,153 1,818,882
KR Taike Yuan 91.30% Wuxi # 5 — 311,380 — R/S/CP
AHE T Taike Yuan II 91.30% Wuxi %5 — - 393,209 R/S/CP
#1155 5 73 B HiXihu Road 91.30% Wuxi %5 — — 321,758  R/S/CP
G NeT Wuxi Subtotal — 311,380 714,967
HiE Qinglong Project 93.35% Chongzhou & M — 107,288 173,412 R/S/CP
FRI Qinglong Project II 96.83% Chongzhou % i - — 470,668 R/S/CP
A 120 Dongjing 120 Project 95.00% Chongzhou & M — 73,844 166,733 R/S/CP
FE 0T Dongjing 120 Project II 99.96% Chongzhou # M — — 104,802 R/S/CP
i Hongzhuang Project 92.17% Chongzhou # M — — 917,228  R/S/CP
WG Changzhou Subtotal — 181,132 1,832,903
R fEE NI 0: WMAE CP: 17 H;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &




Schedule of Principal Properties

BEL
REH & B

R BT R B ik

fr e 4 Completed GFA BT R BT

B H AW Group’s Interest LR Remaining  GFA Under  GFA Under

Project in the Project Location Unsold Development Planning

(CF77K) (F77 %) (*F 77 X)

(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
] Huishan Project 93.48% Shenyang /& — 71,549 14,300  R/S/CP
IR Huishan Project 1T 93.48% Shenyang {& — — 589,278 R/S/CP
B Daoyi Project 96.15% Shenyang 1 Fr — 104,227 1,691,104  R/S/CP
EHREH 1 Daoyi Project II 96.15% Shenyang 1% P — - 409,574 R/S/CP

B Nat Shenyang Subtotal — 175,776 2,704,256
Wl HMIEE  Baisha Project 96.67% Qingdao & & — 104,445 451,833 R/S/CP

HE /NG Qingdao Subtotal — 104,445 451,833
TYIEH Xiasha Project 100% Hangzhou HiL — 92,582 547,213 R/S/CP
I Chaoshan Project 91.30% Hangzhou B M — — 324,000  R/S/CP

NG Hangzhou Subtotal — 92,582 871,213
VL1 A 99 Fairy Lake 91.30% Yunnan £ 1% — — 822,100  R/S/CP

Ew/Nat Yunnan Subtotal — — 822,100
TRIEHE 28 Longhe IT 48.40% Dalian & # — — 069,724 R/S/CP

KNG Dalian Subtotal — — 669,724

B4 7t TOTAL 458 431 5,835,388 24,045,330

R fEE S WE 0: WAZE CP: {7 HL3;
Residential Shopping Office Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

Ak 5 t &

REH B B4 B ik

o 4 Rentable GFA  BFWRE  BEWH

T HAW Group’s Interest i Held for ~ GFA Under  GFA Under

Project in the Project Location Investment Development Planning

(I k) (FFk) (k)

(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
BEIWAE  North Paradise Walk 91.30% Chongqing & & 146,262 — — S
HE LA Fairy Castle 91.30% Chongqing % ¥ 29,413 — — s
B Crystal Palace 91.30% Chongqing & & 44,514 — — S
BEEWMASE  West Paradise Walk 91.30% Chongqing & & 111,654 — — S
EE MOCO MOCO Center 91.30% Chongqing & 29,104 — — s
BEERREE  Times Paradise Walk 91.30% Chongqing & B - 162,895 355,125 S
W= T4 Three Thousand Mall 93.48% Chengdu JiL# 38,043 — - S
AWK North Paradise Walk 91.30% Chengdu L # — — 268,091 S
TFBERERE Beijing Starry Street 89.93% Beijing I 1t — 6,500 — s
T RMA%  Changying Paradise Walk — 91.30% Beijing 3t it — — 286,800 S
[iEIN Daxing Paradise Walk 94.17% Xian P§ % - — 43,097 S
EHFNKE  Blue lake 91.30% Wuxi 5 — — 109,452 S
®HHER Wauxi Splendor 91.30% Wuxi %5 — — 76,400 S
HMAE 1201 Dongjing 120 Project 11 99.96% Chongzhou & M — — 127,050 S
FREADW Baisha Mall 96.67% Qingdao & & — — 109,133 S
RMTDEE  Xiasha Mall 100% Hangzhou L /i — — 183,300 S

A& Total 398,990 169,395 1,599,168

R: fEE S W O: WAE CP: {5 HL I
Residential Shopping Office Car Park

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &
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Chairman’s Statement

I am pleased to present to the shareholders the business review
and outlook of Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”),
together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for 2010.

Results

In 2010, the Group recorded contract sales of RMB33.32 billion,
representing an increase of 81.5% over the previous year. Revenue
for 2010 was RMB15.09 billion, representing a year-on-year
increase of 32.7%. Rental income from investment properties
increased by 45.1% as compared with the previous year.
Revaluation gain on investment properties was RMB2.49 billion.
Profit attributable to shareholders amounted to RMB4.13 billion,
representing an increase of 87.0% over the previous years. Net
profit margin improved to 27.4% from 19.4% of last year.

Market Review for 2010

In anticipation of the austerity measures, the Group actively
boosted sales effort and took a prudent approach towards
investment and financial management to maintain a healthy level
of liquidity. The Group successfully overcome the market
challenges and achieved outstanding results. The Group’s contract
sales for the year exceeded the annual target and the Group
further consolidated its leading positions in certain major markets.
The Group has laid down a solid foundation for future

development in response to market challenges.

4 Annual Repore 2010




B &

Chairman’s Statement
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Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &

In 2010, the Group recorded a contract sales of RMB33.32 billion
and was ranked as one of the top ten property developers in
China for the first time. We launched properties for sale in 10
cities last year. Our contract sales ranked top ten in six of the
cities and top three in five of them. We maintained our leading
positions in Chongqing, Beijing and Chengdu. Our contract sales
in Chongqing ranked the first for the seventh consecutive year.
Although the Beijing property market was severely impacted by
austerity measures, we achieved contract sales of more than
RMB10 billion and ranked the second in Beijing, which we
believe was attributed to the uniqueness and excellent quality of
our products. In Chengdu, thanks to diversified product lines, we
launched 6 projects in 2010 and ranked the third in the local
market. It is noteworthy that our projects in new cities as Wuxi,
Changzhou, Shenyang, Qingdao and Hangzhou entered in 2009
were able to commence sales within one year and recorded an
aggregate contract sales of RMB6.85 billion. The contract sales of
Changzhou and Wuxi projects ranked the second and the third in
their respective markets. Our Qingdao projects recorded a
contract sales of RMB1.52 billlion within three months after
launch and ranked top 10 in Qingdao (No.1 with respect to the
sales of villas). The launch of new projects in these newly entered
cities proved that the Group’s execution ability in geographical
expansion is stable and excellent.

The Group’s land bank increased by 11.97 million square meters
to 31.61 million square meters. On the other hand, the average
cost of land decreased to RMB1,935 per square meter in 2010
from RMB2,225 per square meter in 2009, as a result of a lower
average land cost of RMB1,795 per square meter for newly
purchased land parcels in 2010, which has increased room for
margin improvement and enhanced risk control capability. The
newly acquired land parcels are mainly located in Eastern China,
and we have entered into three new cities, Dalian in Liaoning and
Yantai in Shandong, as well as Yuxi in Yunnan. The unique
natural environment resources and large sizes of the projects in
Yantai and Yuxi provided us an edge to further expand our
product line to include leisure and retirement properties.
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Chairman’s Statement

In face of challenging markets, we closely monitored our cash
flow and gearing ratio. As at the end of 2010, the net gearing ratio
of the Group was only 43.6%, with a total cash balance of over
RMB10 billion, a significant increase as compared to the previous
year. In respect of bank loans, the Company was able to secure
sufficient loans from domestic banks due to its excellent
creditability and long-term relationship. Major relationship banks
also extended more credit facilities to us. The average interest
rates of domestic bank loans are secured at or below the PBOC
benchmark rates. The Group successfully improved its loan
portfolio through the offshore syndicated loans of HKD2.15
billion following the TPO in the beginning of last year.

The Group completed two shopping malls in 2010, namely MOCO
Center in Chongqing and Three Thousand Mall in Chengdu. The
total gross floor area of commercial properties of the Group
increased to nearly 400,000 square meters. The two shopping
centers both recorded occupancy rate of nearly 100%. The Three
Thousand Mall in Chengdu was the first commercial property of
the Group outside of Chongqing. The project commenced
operation within six months after completion of construction. Tt
demonstrated that our management team of the commercial
property operation business was capable of expanding our
geographical presence. Upgrade of the tenant mix of North
Paradise Walk and West Paradise Walk in Chongqing were also
completed. The rental income of these projects significantly
increased by 45.1% as compared with the previous year.

With respect to social responsibility, in Beijing the Group
completed the largest Price Limited project, namely Tongzhou’s
Elegance Loft. Under our adequate planning and safe construction
practices, we offered approximately 6,000 affordable residential
units to the mass market. Furthermore, the Company participated
in various public welfare activities and donated RMB28 million
during the year.

A Annual Report 2010
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Chairman’s Statement

20114E R ¥

A TR A5 20114 5 Mo s 17 355 6 48 2 R B
EREE WG EHZ T - BRER
AT - AR R TG R AR A SR
S B B o ST BN B R
TR A [R] IR ER R B M A 5 A 2 OR
B o

L

T

S 7T o 4R N D TR R R A0
B~ R = AR B A R R
fir o FMAMEEMBETHREEHMZ
TG > €T AT L AR 45 ISR A A i 35 R PR
e B E > IT(ESH T O o o 2 BUE
0B AN S 1 R K > LA AR
G R B B~ BR R AY  SCE A P
RIERE N C BN EORF N — - K
0 {5 4 45 1Y T 355 51 o 98 B A1 A9 5 4 ik
Jr e T2 F R H DA AR T RRCHY 8 L i A0 MR B
MR fE BB R T S A% 52 8 B R R
HHE - Ao EMASFEMAES - TEED
IRlfEE A MEER - - P EEEME I
o MR R R M ot e 6 8 RS o

BOEWE Ty T > A AR s RN B
bl ESERUESR R/ R TR Y
RECRM (KT~ LB R (FE) ~ 1
ALK A (L) ML T VP IE H 5 R
TR 2 L R ARPH T B o BB E N
R BRI 2 2 R A B R A TR R R E
ERERAER -

kR T DS SR 4 5 A R £
AETERE L o e P 1 ot B RN SRR -
S O[] R > R B < O By T R A
ETE WM - BAL TR ERR > £
B A T ) 0 5 A [R] B  ARR B B R A
)45 D07 HRE B A 22 P B RO S A
A B R S op N AR A /A B =R
RAFUAA R o

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &

Outlook for 2011

Looking forward, the real estate industry will be affected by
government policy in 2011 and market environment will be
constantly evolving. The Company will keep abreast of market
changes and respond promptly. The Group will continue to
promote sales and maintain its prudent strategy with respect to
investment and financial management.

With respect to sales, the Group will keep sales growth steadily
and launch sales for properties more evenly distributed in the Pan
Bohai Rim, the Yangtze River Delta and the Western regions. The
Group will maintain a diversified product portfolio to promptly
sell products and respond to market changes. Our sales team has
gained extensive experience throughout the years and
demonstrated their dedication and flexibility in the challenging
markets. The outstanding sales team is one of the key
competitiveness of the Group. We believe that their ability will be
further demonstrated under the market condition this year. The
quality products and excellent services of the Company will
continue to appeal to customers. Furthermore, the Group will
launch leisure projects in Yantai and Yuxi to further diversify our
product portfolio and explore the sales and development model
of leisure properties.

The completion of Beijing Starry Street this year will further
broaden the geographical coverage of our investment properties.
Construction of other major investment properties such as
Chongqing Times Paradise Walk, Beijing Changying Paradise
Walk, Chengdu North Paradise Walk and Hangzhou Xiasha Project
will support the sustainable development of the Group in the next
few years.

With respect to land bank, the Group will maintain prudent
policies in land acquisition and will strictly control the average
cost of land and the payment schedule. On the other hand, the
Group also manage cash flow by adhering to its “fast asset turn”
strategy. While continuously boosting sales to projects, the Group
will carefully schedule its investments and payments according to
the cash inflows so as to maintain the liquidity position and
gearing ratio at comfortable levels.
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group will continue to participate in social welfare activities.
In January 2011, the Company donated RMB5 million to the
Welfare Foundation for the Disabled (B A% &) for the
renovation of the buildings for the handicapped in Chongqing.
The Company will also provide financial support for the
education of migrants’ children who were left behind in rural
areas. The Company is also concerned about issues associated
with aging population. Our property management team will
organize various community activities to seniors to enhance their
wellbeing and quality of life.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Wu Yajun
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

AEE T -FFELFAHEFEZ _FEIE  In 2010, the Group’s contract sales demonstrated strong growth of
WY RS1.5% % AR 3332600 c HEM  81.5% as compared to 2009, reaching a total contract sales of
WR32.7%% ARHE1509M% 00 - EWHEM  RMB33.32 billion. Revenue was RMB15.09 billion, representing an
BUCARERA51% - WEHBREY EFMHE  increase of 32.7%.Rental income from investment properties
NERW24.95 00 o MR IEL 5 A3 487.0%%  recorded an increase of 45.1% over last year, while revaluation
AR B30 > IR 0W AR gain on investment properties reached RMB2.49 billion. Profit
59.9%% NRW25.7M000 « IR MG A2 attributable to shareholders increased by 87.0% to RMB4.13
LEM194% E T+ £27.4% ; HBRFFEME#E  billion. Core profit attributable to shareholders was RMB2.57
%o oD BEAEF ORI E 8 1429% F F £ billion, representing an increase of 59.9 %. Net profit margin rose
17.1% e from 19.4% in 2009 to 27.4% in 2010. Core net profit margin rose
from 14.2% to 17.1% over last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property Development.

In 2010, revenue from property development was RMB14.6
billion. The Group delivered 2,003,000 square meters of property
in GFA terms, of which 203,000 square meters was contributed
from two jointly controlled entities, and it represents a year-on-
year increase of 32.3% and 53.4%, respectively. With the delivery
of high margin projects, gross profit margin of overall property
development business rose from 28.6% in 2009 to 33.3% in 2010.
Recognized average selling price was RMB8,109 per square meters
or RMB9,368 after excluding the Elegance Loft project, which is a
price-limiting project. This is consistent with the recognized
average selling price in 2009.

Table 1: Breakdown of property development revenue by projects in
2010

* After deducting sales tax

Revenue Total GFA
—2—% —EEN —F—% —EEN
2010 2009 2010 2009
ARBTE  ARBTT Ik oKk
RMB’000 RMB’000 Sq.m Sq.m
=Ny Beijing Elegance Loft 2,121,082 — 468,480 —
AHR = T 3k Chengdu Thousand Castles 2,097,694 — 246,982 —
H B A AR Chengdu Bridge County 1,538,050 681,975 133,146 57,643
b mAE B B Beijing Blossom Chianti 1,528,366 646,087 91,289 56,179
R AT Chongqing Toschna Villa 1,310,829 — 139,459 —
1 R 4k Shanghai Sunshine City 1,249,760 — 53,711 —
A6 5T A 0 R Beijing Summer Palace Splendor 1,077,389 — 19,791 —
R IT Chongging Sunshine Riverside 1,043,367 817,910 159,419 167,558
KRR Chongqing Peace Hill County 940,795 683,675 167,447 77,578
 J# MOCO Chongging MOCO Center 522,796 — 97,487 —
JICHS 3 3 W] X Chengdu Flamenco Spain 388,787 — 68,951 —
=21 Chongging Wisdom Town 370,973 457,715 71,286 73,834
FEERME Chongqing Chunsen Land 118,981 648,525 15,840 85,660
HAth Others 287,832 7,093,423 66,861 654,933
Bt Total 14,596,701 11,029,310 1,800,149 1,173,385
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In terms of contract sales, the Group’s sold RMB 33.32 billion
(including RMB2.55 billion from jointly controlled entities),
representing an increase of 81.5 % as compared to last year. The
Group sold 2.45 million square meters in GFA, representing an
increase of 30.2% over last year. The Group entered Wuxi,
Changzhou, Qingdao, Hangzhou and Shenyang in 2009, and the
Group’s projects in these cities achieved strong results in 2010.
The contract sales in these cities amounted to RMB6.85 billion in
2010, contributing to 20.6% of the Group’s total contract sales. At
the same time, existing operations in Chongqing, Chengdu,
Beijing, Shanghai and Xi’an achieved a total contract sales of
RMB26.47 billion, contributing to 79.4% of the Group’s total
contract sales. This marked an increase of 44.1% as compared to
the same period last year.

The Group’s contract sales in Yangtze River Delta and Pan Bohai
Rim rose from 46.4% in 2009 to 59.7% in 2010, laying a solid
foundation for sustained earning growth for the Group.

Elviwid %30

Beijing Blossom Chianti
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Chongqing Bamboo Grove
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* Before deducting sales tax

Table 2: Details of contract sales of the Group in 2010

HHA B At 5 T B
Project Sales Total GFA
AR WE BT SVEN

RMB in million sq. m

3 5 B A0 Beijing Summer Palace Splendor 3,247 47,545
Ve 7B 4k Shanghai Sunshine City 2,522 131,538
3t 5 A B R Beijing Chianti Riverside 2,071 142,063
4 555 8 R 1L Wuxi Rose and Ginkgo Villa 1,896 104,065
AR AR Chongging Toschna Villa 1,860 150,901
Jt 5 & % ONE Beijing Tangning One 1,768 41,8602
BT B Chongqing Bamboo Grove 1,525 178,005
5 B R Qingdao Rose & Gingko Coast 1,523 93,549
b 7 B A R Beijing Azure Chianti 1,415 68,387
R Chongqing Hometown 1,374 131,729
J o e B R Beijing Blossom Chianti 1,292 65,779
N A B E 2D Changzhou Chianti 1,279 102,320
A7t 14 5 TR 1L Hangzhou Rose & Gingko Villa 1,153 63,097
AR AL 3k K 1 Chengdu North Paradise Walk 1,080 119,562
AR E Chongging Chunsen Land 1,060 103,901
BB = T ik Chengdu Thousand Castles 1,027 107,965
U2 Chonggqing U2 902 137,537
J B = A5 AR Chengdu Bridge County 878 56,865
L Chongqing Sunshine Riverside 753 91,770
MR AL 120 Changzhou Dongjing 120 Project 738 42,742
S AR Chonggqing Peace Hill County 710 106,241
P 22 28 R R Xi'an Fairy Castle 608 79,449
AR T 42 0 Chengdu Century Peak View 539 39,524
JIHB 9 2 W X Chengdu Flamenco Spain 504 77,918
g R 1L Shanghai Rose and Ginkgo Villa 485 17,211
AR /N B T Chengdu Jade Town 355 14,639
1 S L Shenyang Rose & Gingko Villa 150 16,200
6 KR 5 S Beijing Elegance Loft 131 32,215
% e Shenyang Daoyi Project 115 13,808
E =201 Chongqing Wisdom Town 56 7,922
HAth Others 304 67,789
Bt Total 33,320 2,454,098
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Chongqing North Paradise Walk

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i Hh & B A &

As of December 31, 2010, the Group had RMB33.8 billion (derived
from 2.4 million square meters) sold but unrecognized contract
sales which formed a solid basis for the Group’s future growth in

revenue.

Property Investment

With the operation of new malls and renovation and upgrade of
existing malls, the Group’s rental income from investment
properties for 2010 grew rapidly with an increase of 45.1% to
RMBO0.29 billion. Gross profit margin from rental income rose from
78% in 2009 to 79% in 2010. The anchor store in North Paradise
Walk, which underwent renovation and was repositioned as a
trendy shopping area featuring middle to high-end fashion shops,
was able to collect much higher rent, thus increasing rental
income by 56.8%. West Paradise Walk’s anchor store has also
completed renovation and upgrade at the end of 2010. The
Chengdu Three Thousand Mall and the Chongging MOCO Center
both commenced operation in the second half of 2010 and
occupancy rates have achieved nearly 100%, thus assuring a rapid

rise in rental income for the future.

0 5 L

Hangzhou Rose & Gingko Villa
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Table 3: Breakdown of rental income of the Group in 2010

* After deducting sales tax

i~ EERAKA - BB R E LAY
HA AR - EHEEL - RS
A AR BRI R -

o MU By S A 5 K T e DA R
BEY R R AR B G RA
EREHER - =% —FFBRGE A KA
H{E N R 24908 -

2010 2009 Rental

ZE-RE ZEENE Income

MamA e H R famA fhi g A & famA

ARWFI A ARWFI Al HE¥

Rental % of Occupancy Rental % of Occupancy Growth

Income Revenue Rate Income Revenue Rate Rate

JE3% K North Paradise Walk 197,261 68.7%  99.4% 125796  63.5%  97.7%  56.8%

Pi K75 West Paradise Walk 53,190 18.5%  98.1% 44,787  22.6%  96.1%  18.8%

LI Fairy Castle 13,984 4.9%  100.0% 9,728 4.9%  100.0% 43.8%

i T8 Crystal Palace 14,077 4.9%  100.0% 11,388 5.8%  100.0% 23.6%
MOCO MOCO Center 2,715 0.9% 98.5% —
=T% Three Thousand Mall 3,294 1.1% 97.7% —

oAt Others 2,760 1.0% N/A 6,276 3.2% N/A  -56.0%

Bt Total 287,281 100%  97.1% 197,975 100%  97.7%  45.1%

KA =4 L B RN - LA KRB X In the next three years, investment properties such as the Beijing

Starry Street, Beijing Changying Paradise Walk, Time Paradise

Walk, Chengdu North Paradise Walk will commence operation.

The Directors expect these investment properties to bring a rapid

growth of rental income in the future.

Benefiting from high rental income growth and the stable

development of new investment properties, the appraised value of

the Group’s investment properties has increased significantly. In

2010, a revaluation gain of investment properties of RMB 2.49

billion was recorded.
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Expenses Control

The Group’s strict budget management system and highly robust
IT system ensure efficient use of resources and cost control along
with the Group’s expansion. In 2010, contract sales increased
81.5% as compared to the year before while selling and marketing
expenses only rose 4.4% to RMB0.33 billion, which constituted
only 1.0% of total contract sales (2009:1.7%). Due to the
establishment of new project companies in Wuxi, Changzhou,
Shenyang, Qingdao and Hangzhou in 2010, general and
administrative expenses rose by 2.9% to RMB0.43 billion year-on-
year, accounting only for 1.3% of total contract sales (2009:2.3%).

Share of Results of Jointly Controlled Entities

Contribution of jointly controlled entities (JCEs) in 2010 mainly
came from the Group’s 49.6%-owned Bamboo Grove Project in
Chongqging and 45.7%-owned Rose and Ginkgo Villa Project in
Shanghai. These two projects delivered 203,000 square meters in
2010, (2009: 167,000 square meters). The attributable profit after
tax before minority interest of the Group in JCEs was RMB0.18
billion
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors believe that, with the delivery of a new phase of
the Chongqing Bamboo Grove project and the Chengdu Century
Peak View project in 2011, contributions from these JCEs will
further increase.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expenses comprised of PRC enterprise income tax and
land appreciation tax. The enterprise income tax and the land
appreciation tax of the Group in 2010 were RMB1.09 billion and
RMB1.00 billion, respectively. Due to the recognition of the
reversal of tax expenses for certain projects in Chongging, an
income tax credit amounted to approximately RMB0.32 billion was
recorded during the period. Together with the deferred tax effect
of RMBO0.28 billion, total income tax of the Group for the period
was RMB2.05 billion.

Profitability

The core net profit margin of the Group (profit attributable to
equity shareholders excluding revaluation gain on investment
properties to revenue) increased from 14.2% in 2009 to 17.1% in
2010. This is mainly due to the increase in the gross profit margin
of property sales and effective control of operating expenses.

A AR

Chengdu Bridge County
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Land Bank Replenishment

As of December 31, 2010, the total land bank of the Group was
31.61 million square meters or 28.24 million square meters on an
attributable basis. The average acquisition cost of our land bank
was RMB1,935 per square meter. In terms of regional breakdown,
Pan Bohai Rim, the Yangtze River Delta, and Western China
accounted for 42.2%, 16.8% and 40.9 % of the total land bank,
respectively. The geographic spread at the land bank of the
Group was as follows:

Je L
Benjing Rose & Ginkgo Villa
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Table 4: Breakdown of land bank of the Group

A0 At 4L T A FrAb bo il 5 1 5 1 A Fi At b 4l
o 5 i Total % of Attributable % of
Region City GFA Total GFA Total
Tk Tk
sq.m sq.m
R i 1 b [ b5 1,994,279 6.4% 1,816,973 6.4%
Pan Bohai Rim Beijing
1% 2,880,032 9.1% 2,751,125 9.7%
Shenyang
L] 665,411 2.1% 643,253 2.3%
Qingdao
B 6,996,311 22.1% 6,387,632 22.6%
Yantai
K 669,724 2.1% 324,146 1.1%
Dalian
/NEE 13,205,757 41.8% 11,923,129 42.2%
Subtotal
oV = £ 9 o [ i 536,932 1.7% 501,730 1.8%
Yangtze River Delta Shanghai
i1 55} 1,212,199 3.8% 1,106,738 3.9%
Wuxi
M 2,141,085 6.8% 2,023,569 7.2%
Changzhou
LM 1,147,155 3.6% 1,118,967 4.0%
Hangzhou
s 5,037,371 15.9% 4,751,004 16.8%
Subtotal
w5 G 3 [ £y 7,284,143 23.0% 6,244,912 22.1%
Western China Chongging
AR 3,125,778 9.9% 2,613,045 9.3%
Chengdu
P % 2,134,132 6.8% 1,953,617 6.9%
Xi'an
£i% 822,100 2.6% 750,577 2.7%
Yuxi
/Nat 13,366,153 42.3% 11,562,751 40.9%
Subtotal
Bt 31,609,281 100.0% 28,236,884 100.0%
Total
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During 2010, the Group acquired 11.97 million square meters of
land in terms of GFA, of which 82% was located in the Pan Bohai
Rim region, 9% in the Yangtze River Delta region, and the
remaining 9% in Western region. The average acquisition cost per
square meter was RMB1,795. Strategically, we were able to enter
the cities of Yantai, Yuxi, Dalian as well as maintaining a
relatively low land cost with high potential. In early 2011, the
Group further acquired land plots in the West Park of Chengdu’s
high-tech zone and the new coastal city of Beicang in Ningpo
city, with a total planned GFA of 1.22 million and 0.63 million

square meters, respectively.

L3 SUE

Chongqing Blue Lake County
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Table 6: Land acquisition from January 2010 to December 2010

HE A% BE 25 A 3 T A A S T
o [ JHH AW W Attributable Site Total
Region Project Name City Interest Area GFA
SEN /RS
sq.m sq.m
BRifh ity o [ W e 91.3% 131,897 558,518
Pan Bohai Rim Chang Ying Beijing
L 4 Jbx 91.3% 109,593 152,670
Niu Lan Shan 4 Beijing
PN Bl 91.3% 165,338 462,946
Da Xing Beijing
EFE 3% 96.2% 204,787 409,574
Dao Yi II Shenyang
1L 3 R i 93.5% 371,311 589,278
Hui Shan 1T Shenyang
BB S — R A 91.3% 1,365,969 6,996,311
Yantai Yang Ma Island I Yantai
HiRNEL 1 BE T — 1 IE N 48.4% 608,701 669,724
Lvshunkou Long He II Dalian
Wit 2,957,596 9,839,021
Subtotal
RAT = £y o [ A TR B B i 91.3% 92,734 150,254
Yangtze River Delta  Songjiang Long Xin Lu Shanghai
A B L 3 8 LM 91.3% 118,051 324,000
Yuhang Chao Shan Hangzhou
WAL 120 M 96.8% 384,720 472,489
Dong Jing 120 Changzhou
K i3 91.3% 27,437 109,452
Jing Hu Wuxi
NS 622,942 1,056,195
Subtotal
H 7 A [ R B L [iES 94.2% 24,503 179,583
Western China Da Xing New District Xi'an
EH I 2 7 % 91.3% 15,607 71,741
Fairy Castle II Xi'an
T 1] 4l 399 36 EEES 91.3% 1,187,339 822,100
Fairy Lake Yuxi
N 1,227,449 1,073,424
Subtotal
Bt 4,807,987 11,968,640
Total

HE A A5 O 4 0 B R
AT - B R R R
SPGB SO o A E L%
Py M — S K -

KA

The Directors believe that the Group’s land acquisition cost to
date has been extremely competitive, and our gross profit will
have further room to increase when relevant projects are

completed in the next few years, even assuming property prices

remain stable.
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Chengdu Flamenco Spain
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Financial Position

As of December 31, 2010, the Group’s consolidated borrowings
amounted to RMB17.32 billion (December 31, 2009: RMB9.77
billion). Cash and bank balance reached RMB10.36 billion. The
net debt to equity ratio of the Group was 43.6%.

Approximately 84.7% of the Group’s total borrowings were
denominated in RMB, while 15.3% were denominated in HK

dollars. The Group has no arrangements for currency hedging.

Approximately RMB5.47 billion of the Group’s consolidated
borrowings were quoted at fixed rates ranging from 3.08% per
annum to 6.70% per annum depending on the tenors of the loans;
the rest were quoted at floating rates. On December 31, 2010, the

Group’s average cost of borrowing was 5.6% per annum. The ratio
of unsecured debt to total debt rose from 26.3% in 2009 to 46.6%
in 2010. Ratio of fixed interest debt to total debt rose from 29.4%
in 2009 to 31.5% in 2010.
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On April 26, 2010, the Group borrowed a syndicated loan of HK$ 2.15
billion with a 4-year tenor from 5 overseas banks. The syndicated loan has
one of the longest tenors amongst similar loans for private real estate
developers in China. As of December 31, 2010, the Group’s consolidated
borrowings averaged a tenor of about 3.4 years, longer than the 2.5 years as
of December 31, 2009.

The Directors believe that the continuous improvement of the
Group’s debt profile and capital structure will act as a strong
buffer against market fluctuations and financial risk.

Employees and Compensation Policy

As of December 31, 2010, the Group had 5,844 full-time
employees in China and Hong Kong. 1,344 of these employees
worked in the property development division, 79 in the property
investment division, and 4,421 in the property management
division. Average age of our workforce is 31 years old and 61.8%
of them are male. In the property development and investment
divisions, approx. 80.3% have university degrees and 13.8% have
master degrees or above.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, work
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total compensation of
theemployeesconsisted of basesalary, cashbonusandshare-basedrewards.
Cashbonusisa large part of senior employees’ cash compensation which is
a function of, amongst other things, the net profit of the individual
subsidiaries, the return on invested capital, results of a balanced score card
system and operating cash inflow, etc. On top of two pre-IPO share award
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schemes a pre-IPO share option scheme and a post-IPO share option
scheme, the Group has in January 2011 issued options amounting to 46
million shares in conformity with its post-TPO share option scheme to
some Directors, senior managerial staff and employees, atan exercise price
of HKD12.528 per share.

Prospects

In 2011, the real estate market in mainland China will continue to be
affected by government’s tightening measures. The Group, faced with an
increasingly complex and fluctuating market, will continue to carry out a
proactive sales strategy and make every effort to ensure adequate growth of
contract sales. As compared to only 5 cities in operation in early 2009, the
Group has launched sales in 10 cities at the beginning of 2011. In the
second half of this year, our projects in Yantai and other new cities will be
available for sale. In 2011, the Group will launch 16 new projects in
addition to the current 30 projects available for sales. The Group’s
products will cater to customers with various demands including those who
are seeking first-time housing, and those who are seeking further upgrade.
In addition, the Group will launch tourism and leisure related property
projects in Yantai, Shandong and in Yuxi, Yunnan, thus broadening the
Group’s overall product lines. The Group will adjust and optimize its
operation in response to changes in external environment and evolving
market conditions so that our products will satisfy market demand and we
canachieve our sales target of this year.

In 2010, the Group realized a core profit of RMB2.57 billion and
completed 2.467 million square meters in terms of GFA. Both
demonstrated significant increases over what was achieved in
2009. The Group (including jointly controlled entities) plans to
complete 2.818 million square meters of properties in 2011.
Currently, the sales progress is satisfactory, which ensured a solid
basis for the Group’s growth in revenue and profitability in 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Aside from the growing rental income of our existing investment
propetties, the Group also focuses on long-term strategic development of
its investment property portfolio. Beijing Starry Street will be completed
and commence operation in 2011, while other projects will continue
construction, namely, Chongging Times Paradise Walk, Beijing Changying
Paradise Walk, Chengdu North Paradise Walk, Hangzhou Xia Sha, Bai Sha
He Project in Qingdao and Da Xing Project in Xi’an. In the coming five
years, the GFA of the investment properties portfolio of the Group will
increase to 2 million square meters and the expected rental income will
increassubstantially.

In respect of the land bank and financial management, the Group will,
based on its financial capacity, prudently acquire land plots in selected
strategic regions with reasonable land cost and control land payment
schedule. Meanwhile, the Group will continue to implement prudent cash
flow management policies to maintain a strong cash position. The Group
will also effectively control its leverage ratio to proactively manage the
challengesofthe volatile marketenvironment.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, I would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all of our employees for their hard work and all of
our shareholders for their support in the past challenging but yet
rewarding year.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board proposed the payment of a finial dividend of RMBO.1
per share for the year ended December 31, 2010 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on May 9, 2011. The proposed final dividend will be paid on or
about May 13, 2011 after approval by shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming 2010 annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM”).
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Executive Directors

Madam Wu Yajun, aged 46, was appointed as executive director
of the Company on December 21, 2007, and is the Chairperson
and Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Madam Wu joined the
Group since its inception in 1994. Madam Wu graduated from the
Department of Navigation Engineering of the Northwestern
Polytechnical University in 1984. Madam Wu serves as a member
of the National Peoples’ Congress, Vice-Chairperson of the
Federation of Industry & Commerce of Chongqing Municipality
and Vice-Chairperson of the Real Estate Branch Chamber of the
Chongqing General Chamber of Commerce. Madam Wu has
extensive experience in property development, property
investment and property management.

Mr. Fang Shengtao, aged 37, was appointed as executive director
and Chairman of Remuneration Committee of the Company on
January 15, 2008, and is the Chief Human Resources Officer of the
Group. Mr. Fang joined the Group in 2005. Mr. Fang graduated
from the Department of Mechanical Engineering of Tsinghua
University in 1995 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering and
obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from INSEAD
in 2002. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fang worked for Procter &
Gamble (Guangzhou) Ltd and founded the Shanghai Tuosheng
Associates, a human resources consulting company.

Mr. Chen Kai, aged 41, was appointed as executive director of
the Company on September 8, 2009, and is the General Manager
of the Operation and Business Development Department of the
Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in 2008. Mr. Chen graduated
from the Zhejiang University with a Master’'s degree in
Engineering in 1995. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chen worked
for the China Resources Group and served as the executive
director and assistant general manager of China Resources Land
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.
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Mr. Qin Lihong, aged 37, was appointed as executive director of
the Company on September 8, 2009, and is the General Manager
of the Group’s Customer and Corporate Branding Department. Mr.
Qin joined the Group in 2008. Mr. Qin graduated from the School
of International Studies of Peking University in 1999 with a Master
degree in Law. He obtained a Master’s degree in Public Policy
(MPP) from John Fitzgerald Kennedy School of Government,
Harvard University in 2001. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qin
worked in the Marketing Department of Procter & Gamble
(Guangzhou) Limited, Roland Berger Strategy Consultants and

Anhui Chery Automobile Sales and Service Company.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, aged 61, was appointed as
independent non-executive director and member of the Audit
Committee of the Company on November 1, 2009. He is the
managing director of Portwood Capital Limited. Mr. Churchouse
earned a Bachelor of Arts degree, and a Master of Social Science
degree from the University of Waikato in New Zealand. He has
been a director of LIM Advisers Limited, the senior portfolio
manager for the LIM Asia Alternative Real Estate Fund and a
managing director of the research department of Morgan Stanley.

Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, aged 47, was appointed as
independent non-executive director, Chairman of the Audit
Committee and the member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company on November 1, 2009. Mr. Chan is a Executive
Director of Haitong International Securities Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and is also
currently the Managing Director of Haitong International Capital
Limited, in charge of its corporate finance division. Mr. Chan
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
degree in Social Sciences (majoring in Economics) in 1985 and
from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology with a
Master degree in Business Administration in 1994. Between 1989
and 1996, he worked for The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. He is an independent non-executive director of GZI REIT
Asset Management Limited and Sheng Yuan Holdings Limited,
both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
and is also an adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and
Finance of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chan
possesses over 20 years of experience in the financial services

industry.
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Dr. Xiang Bing, aged 48, was appointed as independent non-
executive director, member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee of the Company on November 1, 2009.
He obtained a Doctoral degree in accounting from the University
of Alberta in Canada. Dr. Xiang is currently the founding dean
and professor of the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.
Dr Xiang is an independent non-executive director of Dan Form
Holdings Company Limited, HC International, Inc., Enerchina
Holdings Limited, Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited, China
Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd , Little Sheep Group Limited, Peak
Sport Products Co., Limited and Guangzhou Automobile Group
Co., Ltd.. All of the above mentioned companies are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Dr. Xiang is an independent non-
executive director LDK Solar Co., Ltd., Perfect World Co., Ltd., E-
House (China) Holdings Limited. All of the above mentioned
companies are listed in the U.S. Dr. Xiang is an independent non-
executive director of Yunnan Baiyao Group Co., Ltd, a company
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. In the past 3 years, Dr.
Xiang was an independent director of Shaanxi Qinchuan
Machinery Development Co., Ltd., Guangdong Midea Electric
Appliances Co., Ltd., TCL Corporation., Shenzhen Terca
Technology Co., Ltd.. All of these companies are listed on
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. Dr Xiang also was an independent
non-executive director of Jutal offshore Oil Services Limited, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Senior Management

Mr. Shao Mingxiao, aged 44, is the Executive Deputy CEO of the
Group. Mr. Shao joined the Group in 2006. Mr. Shao graduated
from Renmin University of China with a Master of Economics
degree in 1992. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Shao served as the
Deputy General Manager of Hangyu Economic Development
Company, a subsidiary of the Beijing Capital Group, and Beijing
Xinlian Xiechuang Real Estate Development Limited respectively.
Mr. Shao was also the General Manager of Beijing Zhongjing
Yiyuan Real Estate Development Limited and the Director of real
estate development division of Beijing Hualian Group.
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Mr. Zhou Dekang, aged 43, is the General Manager in charge of
our Chongqing business operations. Mr. Zhou joined the Group in
2005. Mr. Zhou graduated from the Architecture Institute of
Chongqing Jianzhu University and obtained a bachelor’s degree
majoring in Architecture in 1989. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Zhou had been the head of the construction division of the
Chongqing City Planning and Design Research Institute and a
director in charge of design at Chengdu Bo Rui Real Estate
Development Limited.

Mr. Feng Jinyi, aged 39, is the General Manager in charge of our
business operations in Southern Jiangsu. Mr. Feng joined the
in 2008. Mr.
Communication College (currently known as Changsha University

Group Feng graduated from Changsha
of Science & Technology) in 1994 with a bachelor’s degree in
engineering. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Feng worked for No.
3 Aviation Engineering Design Institute Co., Ltd., Shanghai
Kangqiao Bandao (Group) Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Jubao Real
Estate Co., Ltd..

Mr. Wei Huaning, aged 33, was appointed as a General Manager
of finance department of the Group. He joined the Group in 2006
and has served as the Head of Strategic Management Centre and
Operational Management Centre. He is the General Manager of
Finance Department of the Group since June 2010. Mr. Wei holds
a doctoral degree in management from the Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics (School of Accountancy) and specialises
in Research on Corporate Strategy and Execution. Prior to joining
the Group, he has previously worked as a researcher at Center for
Strategy Execution of The Cheung Kong Research Institute in
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business.

Madam Fan Qi, aged 43, is an executive director of Chengdu
Longhu. Madam Fan joined the Group in 1997. Madam Fan served
as the General Manager of Chengdu business operations from
2005 to 2010. Madam Fan graduated from the Department of
Management Engineering of the Sichuan Institute of Light Industry
and Chemical Technology in 1988. Prior to joining the Group,
Madam Fan had worked for the Chongqing City Jiangbei District
Shimen Tax Office.
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Mr. Zhao Nannan, aged 34, is the General Manager in charge of
our Shanghai business operations. Mr. Zhao joined the Group in
2001. Mr. Zhao graduated from Chongqing Jianzhu University and
obtained a bachelor’s degree majoring in Management
Engineering in 1999. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhao worked
for Chongqing Residential Construction Limited.

Mr. Li Jun, aged 38, is the General Manager in charge of our
Shenyang business operations. Mr. Li joined the Group in 2006.
Mr. Li graduated from Beijing University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in Engineering in 1996 majoring in civil
engineering. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Li worked for Beijing
Beichen Innovation Hi-tech Development Limited, Markgold
International Housing Land Consulting (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and
Beichen Property Development Company.

Mr. Huang Shixuan, aged 46, was appointed as the Chief
Engineer of the Group. He joined the Group in 1998 and has
served as the Deputy General Manager of engineer of Chongqing
Longhu and Beijing Longhu respectively. Mr. Huang graduated
from the Department of Mechanical Engineering of Chongqing
University in 1988. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang worked
for Chongqing Construction Limited.

Mr. Peng Jiang, aged 30, is the General Manager in charge of our
Qingdao business operations. Mr. Peng graduated from the Tongji
University in 1997 with a Bachelor’s degree in Engineering and
graduated from the Tsinghua University in 2001 and obtained a
Master degree of Engineering. Prior to joining to Group, Mr. Peng
worked for China Resources Land (Beijing) Limited and Taikang
Real Estate Investment Co.

Mr. Yuan Chun, aged 36, is the General Manager in charge of our
Hangzhou business operations. Mr. Yuan joined the Group in
2010. He graduated from the Tongji University in 1996 with a
Bachelor’s degree in heating and Ventilating discipline. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Yuan worked for China Overseas Land &
Investment Ltd.
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Mr. Zhang Xueqiao, aged 39, is the General Manager in charge
of our Chengdu business operations. Mr. Zhang joined the Group
in 2007 and was the Deputy General Manager of the marketing
department of Chongqing Longhu. He serves as the General
Manager of our Chengdu business operations from 2011. Mr.
Zhang graduated from the Department of Economics and
Management of Guizhou Nationalities University majoring in
Industrial Enterprise Management in 1992. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Zhang worked for Shenzhen Skyworth Group,
Chongging Yuhai Industrial Co Ltd and Chongqing Jinke Group.

Mr. Wei Jian, aged 30, is the General Manager in charge of our
Xi'an business operations. Mr. Wei joined the Group in 2008. He
graduated from the Tianjin University in 2000 and obtained a
Master degree in Management Science and Engineering. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Wei worked for Procter & Gamble
(Guangzhou) Ltd., Roland Berger Strategy Consultants and Tiens
Group.
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The Board of Directors (“the Board”) are pleased to present the
annual report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the property development, property
investment and property management businesses in China.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the
year by principal activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income of the Group on page 67.

DIVIDENDS

The Board recommend a final dividend of RMBO0.1 per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2010 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 9 May 2011.

The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid in
Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong
dollars will be converted from RMB at the average middle rate of
RMB to Hong Kong dollars as announced by the People’s Bank of
China for the period from 3 May 2011 to 5 May 2011.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members will be closed from 27 April 2011 to 9
May 2011, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the proposed
final dividend and to determine the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company, all duly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer
office in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 26 April 2011 (Tuesday).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year
is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at 31 December 2010, the distributable reserve of the Company
amounted to approximately RMBS8,654.814 million.

DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
approximately RMB28 million (2009: approximately RMB7.89
million).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group is set out on page 199 of this
annual report.

MA]JOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2010, revenue attributable to the
largest customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.78%
of the total revenue in the year and the five largest customers of
the Group accounted for less than 3% of the Group’s revenue in
the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, purchases attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately
2.54% of the total purchases in the year and the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 9% of the Group’s
purchases in the year.

So far as the Board of the Company is aware, neither the
Directors, their associates nor any shareholder of the Company
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major
customers and suppliers.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Wu Yajun (Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Fang Shengtao

Mr. Chen Kai

Mr. Qin Lihong

Mr. Lin Chu Chang (retired on 26 May 2010)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek
Dr. Xiang Bing

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
Mr. Fang Shengtao, Mr. Chen Kai and Mr. Qin Lihong shall retire
from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a period of three years. None of
the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the directors and those of the five
highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2010, none of the directors of the Company
are considered to be in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or subsisted for the year ended 31 December
2010.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme”, at no time during the year were there any rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were
there any such rights exercised by them. Also, there was no
arrangement to which the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party that would
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.
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COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS AND THE DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into the non-competition deed dated 1
November 2009 with the controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Charm Talent International Limited (“Charm
Talent”), Junson Development International Limited (previously
known as Precious Full International Limited) (“Junson
Development”), Silver Sea Assets Limited (“Silver Sea”), Silverland
Assets Limited (“Silverland”), Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”) and
Mr. Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”) pursuant to which Madam Wu, Charm
Talent and Silver Sea have jointly and severally undertaken, and
Mr. Cai, Junson Development and Silverland have jointly and
severally undertaken, not to compete with the Group. Each of
Madam Wu, Mr. Cai, Charm Talent, Junson Development, Silver
Sea and Silverland has also undertaken with the Company to
procure that any investment or commercial opportunity relating to
any property business or investment or management in the
People’s Republic of China that they or any of their respective
affiliates identify or propose or that is offered or presented to
them by a third party, be first referred to the Company in
accordance with the terms of the non-competition deed.

In March 2011, the Company has received an annual declaration
from each of the controlling shareholders of the Company and the
Directors in respect of their respective compliance with the non-
competition undertakings as at 31 December 2010. The
independent non-executive directors have reviewed the said
undertakings and are of the view that each of the controlling
shareholders of the Company and the Directors has complied with
their respective non-competition undertakings during the year
ended 31 December 2010.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2010, certain directors and
their close family members, and companies controlled by certain
Directors and/or their close family members entered into
transactions with the Group which are disclosed in note 38
“Related party transactions” to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Save that certain sales of properties to key management and
shareholders constituted de minimis connected transactions of the
Company which were exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Chapter 14A of Listing Rules, the other related party transactions
which were carried out by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2010, did not fall under the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the case
may be) in Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has two share option schemes namely, the Pre-IPO
Option Scheme and the Post-IPO Option Scheme which were
adopted on 30 November 2007 and 1 November 2009 respectively.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”)
available for issue under the share option schemes as at 21 March
2011 was 509,950,000 Shares which represented approximately
9.89% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 21 March
2011.
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(a) Pre-IPO Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Option Scheme to
recognise the contribution of certain of its senior management
personnel and to retain such senior management personnel.

On 30 November 2007, the Company granted options to
subscribe shares under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme with the
follow details:

~%-%k o I S
il —~A—H mitE +FZA=+-H
(¥ 71) W AT Exercised MR
B HY Exercise  Outstanding at during  Outstanding at
Date of Grant Price (HKS) 1 Jan, 2010 the period 31 Dec 2010
(it i#2)
(Note 2)
“ETLE 2.94 5,588,000 0 5,588,000
B
30 Nov 2007
“EFLE 2.94 32,352,000 5,000,000 27,352,000
e
30 Nov 2007

Note 1: Such number of pre-IPO options granted pursuant to a Pre-IPO
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 30 November 2007 are
currently held by Long Faith subject to the terms of the Long Faith
Trust. The Long Faith Trust is a discretionary trust of which HSBC
(HK) Trustee is the trustee and the relevant director and employees
are discretionary objects.

Note 2: The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the
dates on which the options were exercised was HK$7.59.
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The Pre-IPO Options have been vested and will vest in equal
portion on January 1, 2009, 2010, 2011 and 2012 and will only
become exercisable for a period from the respective vesting

dates and ending on November 30, 2017. No further options

can be offered under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme.

The subscription price payable upon the exercise of any Pre-
IPO Options is fixed at HK$2.94 per Share.

The terms of the Pre-TIPO Option Scheme are similar to those

of the Post-IPO Option Scheme (see below) except in respect

of the following:

there is no provision limiting the maximum number of
options that might be granted to any individual grantee
under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme;

the provisions on the granting of options to connected
persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) were not
included,;

the Pre-IPO Option Scheme does not contain provisions
relating to the “refreshing” of the 10% limit or the seeking
of separate approval for granting options beyond the 10%
limit as anticipated in Note 1 of Rule 17.03(3) of the
Listing Rules, or the restrictions on the number of Shares
issued or to be issued under options in any 12 month
period to any participant of the Pre-IPO Option Scheme
not exceeding 1% of the Shares in issue as anticipated in
the note to Rule 17.03(4) of the Listing Rules.

No option can be granted after Listing Date under Pre-IPO
Option Scheme. No option was lapsed or cancelled
during the year.
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(b) Post-IPO Option Scheme

On 23 December 2009, the Company granted options to
subscribe for a total of 10,600,000 Shares under the Post-IPO
Option Scheme to five directors and one employee of the
Company, with the following details:

(1) Directors

W e
Number of share Option
“R—RE “ERE
it —A—H RAHRZEH +ZA=+—H
(#75) i AR AT Movement i R AT
4 g Bt B Exercise  Outstanding during  Outstanding
Name Capacity Date of Grant Price (HKS$) at 1 Jan 2010 the preriod at 31 Dec 2010
B 5L FEE TR TON 23 December 2009 8.44 6,000,000 — 6,000,000
Chen Kai Beneficial Owner
ZFhi Ha A A 23 December 2009 8.44 3,000,000 — 3,000,000
Qin Lihong Beneficial Owner
Frederick Peter H & A A 23 December 2009 8.44 200,000 — 200,000
Churchouse Beneficial Owner
B % ERfAA 23 December 2009 8.44 200,000 — 200,000
Chan Chi On, Beneficial Owner
Derek
JHE 82 T DN 23 December 2009 8.44 200,000 — 200,000
Xiang Bing Beneficial Owner
2 RE (2) Employees
Ji TR HE o H
Number of share Option
e S 2.2 G S 2.9
T8 —H—H +ZH=+—H
(¥ T) W A AT B T A S50 ) 5 ) W AR AT B
B HH 2 Exercise Outstanding at Grant during Outstanding at
Date of Grant Capacity Price (HKS) 1 Jan 2010 the period 31 Dec 2010
HaEHEA A
23 December 2009 Beneficiary owner 8.44 1,000,000 — 1,000,000
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Note:

The closing price of the shares on the date on which the options were
granted was HK$8.34.

No options were lapsed, exercised or cancelled during the year.

The options are exercisable in 4 tranchs of 25% each, from 23rd
December 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013 to 22nd December 2019.

A summary of the principal terms of the Post-IPO Option

Scheme is set out as follow:

(1)

(ii)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Participants
(defined in paragraph (ii) below) who have been granted
Options under the Scheme to subscribe for Shares with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the
Company and to encourage Participants to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and the Shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

Who may join

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at their
discretion, invite any directors (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors) and employees of any member of the
Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors,
contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners, joint venture business
partners, service providers of any member of the Group
who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, have
contributed or will contribute to the Group (the
“Participants”) to participate in the Scheme.
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(ii1) Total number of Shares available for issue under the Scheme

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Initially the maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all Options to be granted under
the Scheme or any other option schemes adopted by the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the
Shares in issue on the date of which trading of the Shares
commences on the Stock Exchange and any Shares which
may be allotted and issued by the Company under the
over-allotment option.

The total number of Shares available for issue upon
exercise of the Options which may be granted pursuant to
the Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the Options granted and to be granted
pursuant to the Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Company to each Participant in any 12-
month period up to and including the date of grant of the
Options shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares

in issue.

Time of exercise of the Options

The period within which the Options must be exercised
will be specified by the Company at the time of grant.
This period must expire no later than 10 years from the
relevant date of grant.

Payment on acceptance of Option offer

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant to the Company on
acceptance of the Option offered as consideration for the
grant.
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(vii) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per Share under the Scheme is a
price determined by the Board and notified to each
Participant and shall be no less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

(viii)Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain valid until 31 October 2019 after
which no further Options will be granted but in respect of
all Options which remain exercisable on such date, the
provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force and
effect.

PRE-IPO SHARE AWARD SCHEMES

The Company adopted two Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes on 30
November 2007 and 31 July 2009 respectively. Their principal
terms are substantially the same and are summarized below.

(i) Objective
The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes to
recognise the contribution of certain of its employees,
especially those whom the Company considered had
contributed to the early development and growth of the
Group, and to align their interests with those of the
shareholders of the Company.
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(ii) Implementation

For the implementation of the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes,
the Fit All Trust was established on June 11, 2008 for the
benefit of selected employees of the Group. Pursuant to the
Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme adopted on 30 November 2007,
the Company issued a total of 64,014,000 Shares to Fit All
Investments Limited (“Fit All”), a special purpose vehicle
incorporated in the BVI and wholly owned by HSBC (HK)
Trustee acting as the trustee of the Fit All Trust, on June 11,
2008. Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Award Scheme adopted
on 31 July 2009, Charm Talent and Junson Development
transferred to Fit All a total of 30,000,000 Shares. A total of
94,014,000 Shares (the “Awarded Shares”) were granted to
selected employees of the Group (the “Selected Employees”).

(iii) Vesting of the Awarded Shares

The Selected Employees are not entitled to exercise or enjoy
the rights to the Awarded Shares pending the vesting of the
Awarded Shares in accordance with the applicable vesting
period.

In general, vesting period is either four or five years during
which the Awarded Shares granted to any particular Selected
Employee will vest on each anniversary of the first vesting
date in equal portions.

Prior to vesting, the Selected Employees are not entitled to
the rights to and interests in the Awarded Shares, including
voting and distribution rights.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in the register which were
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(i) Interest in the Company (long position)

T AH B i A2 v BE 45
JBe Ay 2 HE 45 WA E 4 b
-2/ P% EXid EERkuA Interest in Approximate %
EREEA Capacity/Nature Number of underlying of interest
Name of director of interest ordinary shares shares in the Company
DK BHEAE FERIMEA (W et 1) 2,343,736,600 — 45.465%
Wu Yajun Founder of a discretionary
trust (Note 1)
FiEwE L (W at2) 1,562,394,400 — 30.308%
Family interest (Note 2)
Rk (M ato) 100,000 — 0.002%
Family interest (Note 6)
1G] fHREZ 8 N (M it3) 2,734,125 — 0.053%
Fang Shengtao Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
fEREZ 8 N (W it4) — 32,940,000 0.639%
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 4)
HamA A 1,777,875 — 0.034%
Beneficial owner
B sl HaEmA A 1,700,000 0.033%
Chen Kai Beneficial owner
Rtz i A\ (M 7E3) 1,700,000 0.033%
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3)
Ha A A 6,000,000 0.116%
Beneficial owner (7t 5)
(Note 5)
%tk b A 964,125 0.019%
Qin Lihong Beneficial owner
fBrtZ s N (H7E3)
Beneficiary of a trust (Note 3) 2,435,875 — 0.047%
HREEA A 3,000,000 0.058%
Beneficial owner (Wit 5)
(Note 5)
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Name of director

Frederick Peter

208 F 13
# Capacity/Nature
of interest

HaA A

Churchouse Beneficial owner
B % HREEA A

Chan Chi On, Derek

16 &

SN

Xiang Bing

Beneficial owner

Ha A A

Beneficial owner
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JA B A A 2 ) e 2
B 2 B 2 BEA E 4 b
EEpuA Interest in  Approximate %
Number of underlying of interest
ordinary shares shares  in the Company
— 200,000 0.004%

(Ht7ts)

(Note 5)
— 200,000 0.004%

(Wtits)

(Note 5)
— 200,000 0.004%

(Htits)

(Note 5)

FEED

fff 52

% % % £y th Charm Talent Investmenl
Limited ([ Charm Talent)) A& G H A
1 5 43454 © Charm Talent%le CE1T IR
A% | Silver Sea Asset Limited ([ Silver
Seal) & AT > 1MiSilver SeaHBE #17
J§ A< Il 1 HSBC International Trustee
Limited ([ HSBC International Trustee] )
i&%ﬁ%{n u:E E"unE)\%ﬁJ\égjﬁ
KGO 2L /EANA
WH ([ ]) fERFETA
HSBC International Trusteef
ROL ) —IH R RER AT 0 BIUK
ﬁﬂ%@ﬁmt+ﬁT%&
R4 8 % S 9 S DU XV
T R R A A ﬁ%/\ﬁ?ﬂ?ﬁﬁ
F Charm Talent$f 1 [ 2,343,736,600 % i
Y ROHE 3 o AR5 0 5 B A PO BT B -
Charm Talent#E 7 2,343,591,600/% /i
(MHEH —F—FEF_H=1+—H Eé§
TP 1045.4629%) MM 48 o A /5 7 T
Charm Ta1em$ﬁi 17 2,343,736,600/% i
[Giiky et Tt —H = F-HE#®
15 1 E’J 45. 465% M # % © Charm
Talentilfi A #f Wit 1 145,000/ % £ 3 By 42
SEAT (T 18 4 4 0 R o IRIE AR &
1/%15 ?ﬁX i S (R RFEEME A
QL@, %?ﬁ&t [ E]) (Rt
ﬂ'J fid 1) 4% {E # A7 Charm Talentfi £
145, oooﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁj\ﬂ HE4S o

#% % Mt 1 B Junson Development
International lelted ( [ Junson
Development] ) P& 505 A A I 5 3 55
A © Junson Development% YR Eile
A W Silverland Asset Limited
(TSilverland) ) 2 & # A » i Silverland
A HBE 8517 A Il 1 HSBC International
TrusteeU?Eﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ&%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁj}_
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Note 1:

Note 2:

These Shares are held by Charm Talent Investment Limited (“Charm
Talent”) as registered holder. The entire issued share capital of
Charm Talent is wholly owned by Silver Sea Asset Limited (“Silver
Sea”), the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-
owned by HSBC International Trustee Limited (“HSBC International
Trustee”) as the trustee of the Wu Family Trust. The Wu Family Trust
is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”) as
settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on 11
June 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Wu Family Trust include
certain family members of Madam Wu. Madam Wu as founder of the
Wu Family Trust is taken to be interested in the 2,343,736,600 Shares
held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. According to
the latest disclosure of interests filings, Charm Talent is interested in
2,343,591,600 shares, representing 45.462% of the issued Shares as at
31 Dec, 2010. The Company is aware that Charm Talent is interested
in 2,343,736,600 Shares, representing 45.465% of the issued Shares as
at 31 December, 2010. No disclosure of interests form has been
voluntarily filed by Charm Talent in respect of the acquisition of
145,000 Shares. Madam Wu as founder of the Wu Family Trust and
Mr. Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”) as the spouse of Madam Wu are each taken to
be interested in these 145,000 Shares held by Charm Talent pursuant
to Part XV of the SFO.

These Shares are held by Junson Development International Limited
(“Junson Development”) as registered holder. The entire issued share
capital of Junson Development is wholly owned by Silverland Asset
Limited (“Silverland”), the entire issued share capital of which is in
turn wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of
the Cai Family Trust. The Cai Family Trust is a discretionary trust set
up by Mr. Cai as settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee
as trustee on 11 June 2008. The beneficiary objects of the Cai Family
Trust include certain family members of Mr. Cai. Madam Wu as the
spouse of Mr. Cai is taken to be interested in the 1,562,394,400
Shares held by Junson Development pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.
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WEEE3 %% SOH B9 0 i Fie ADDUGS 0B X B
47 © Fit AL 230 2 % 17 it 4% i1 HSBC
Trustee (HK) Limited ([ HSBC (HK)
Trustee)) PAFit All TrustZ 56 A # & fiy
2 EHEA o Fit All Trustht = F & )4
A H +— H LAHSBC (HK) Trusteeff
% 56 NS ° Fit All Trustff 52 26 ¥ %
JEH T4 R S BR N R R W R A
B 5 5 i A SE B AT R A E A o

MiaE4 . ZERBALAAR -ZEZLET—A=
T H R AR V2 B S AR RE T
$5% T U2 B 8 7T FBCRE B Long
Faith Management Limited ( [ Long
Faith]) # % Long Faith Trustf] # 5§
£i ° Long Faith Trust/ —H 2R F T
%2 58 AN S HSBC (HK) Trustee > 1 47
HMEHRZH P - SE2HETHS -

BEFRES © A B 28 R R B 1 A
) 5% T R R I B PR

BE3E 6+ 5%100,000/8% B 1 h %8 28 5 A= LR A B
TFEAT © 4278 S A 36 R ki 1% 100,000 8%
B = Bl 458 5 AT o] HE £ 9 R A o R A
TR AR AN RS L&
Pl 5 XVER > S HAE AT 2R % 0k
A F F A 100,000 8% B 1 B 25 o

(i) Fir FF A 20 B RE B s B 2 R 2 (BF

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

Such number of Shares are held on trust by Fit All. The entire issued
share capital of Fit All is wholly-owned by HSBC Trustee (HK)
Limited (“HSBC (HK) Trustee”) as the trustee of the Fit All Trust. The
Fit All Trust was set up on 11 June 2008 with HSBC (HK) Trustee
acting as the trustee thereof. The beneficiary objects of the Fit All
Trust are certain selected employees of the Group as participants of
the Pre-IPO Share Award Schemes adopted by the Company.

Such number of pre-IPO options granted pursuant to a Pre-IPO
Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 30 November 2007 are
currently held by Long Faith Management Limited (“Long Faith”)
subject to the terms of the Long Faith Trust. The Long Faith Trust is a
discretionary trust of which HSBC (HK) Trustee is the trustee and the
relevant director is one of the discretionary objects.

The relevant director was granted options to subscribe for such
number of shares under the Post-IPO Option Scheme.

These 100,000 shares are beneficially held by Mr. Cai Kui. No
disclosure of interests form has been voluntarily filed by Mr. Cai Kui
in respect of the acquisition of these 100,000 shares. Madam Wu is
the spouse of Mr. Cai Kui and accordingly, Madam Wu is taken to be
interested in these 100,000 shares held by Mr. Cai pursuant to Part
XV of the SFO.

(ii) Interest in an associated corporation of the Company (long

) position)

At R B 3 1 i
WA E 2 b
Approximate %
0t 3% A 4% E/ Ve ELiA it 2 U B of interest
EHEY Name of the associated Capacity/Nature  Number of class in the associated
Name of Director corporation of interest of securities corporation
SR BRI RA R AT YRR 20,010,000/ B f 8.7%

Wu Yajun Chongqing Longhu Interest of controlled 20,010,000 shares

Development Co., Ltd.

corporation

PR ESCRTHEE B 40 - I =% %A+
AZ+—H > BEESE AL EES
BN B AR R AR Al A B i A
AR R I 0 B M 09 58 3 5200 W s 2RI AR
O EE R R R R AR R
S U0 2R R A 2 ) R A B 2 ey~ A
Bl B 3 e PR M 2 WA IR -
1 5 2 T A BRI 180K 2 T L MR e
AR R AR 2 ) R A e A T 2 Y
g SRR o I8 R AT AR % SR HE R
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had or was
deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in

the register which were required to be kept by the Company

under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code. None of Directors or their spouse or children under the
age of 18, had been granted any right to subscribe for the
equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its

associated corporations, or had exercised any such right.
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Name of shareholder

A ([ 7E3)
Cai Kui (Note 3)

HSBC International Trustee Limited

Charm Talent International Limited

Silver Sea Assets Limited

Junson Development
International Limited
(7l F Precious Full
International Limited)
(previously known as
Precious Full International
Limited)

Silverland Assets Limited
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Interest in the Company (long position)

4y HE 45 1
Capacity/Nature

of interest

KIS (M at1)

Family interest (Note 1)

RHERE FERIMEA (B 3E2)

Founder of a discretionary
trust (Note 2)

ZREN (MfaE1K2)

Trustee (Notes 1 and 2)
HREA N ()
Registered owner (Note 1)
TP E 2 RS (M ak 1)
Interest of controlled

corporation (Note 1)

B A A (Ffat2)

Registered owner (Note 2)

PN 2 A (M aE2)
Interest of controlled

corporation (Note 2)

EmR WA
Number of

ordinary shares

2,343,591,600

1,562,394,400

3,905,986,000

2,343,591,600

2,343,591,600

1,562,394,400

1,562,394,400

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of persons, other than the
directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares and the
underlying shares of the Company representing 5% or more of the
nominal value of shares comprised in the relevant share capital of
the Company as recorded in the register kept by the Company

A A T 1
WA 2 b
Approximate %
of interest

in the Company

45.462%

30.308%

75.771%

45.462%

45.462%

30.308%

30.308%
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Note 1: These Shares are held by Charm Talent as registered holder. The entire
issued share capital of Charm Talent is wholly owned by Silver Sea, the
entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC
International Trustee as the trustee of the Wu Family Trust. The Wu Family
Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam Wu as settlor and protector
and HSBC Inter national Trustee as trustee on 11 June 2008. The
beneficiary objects of the Wu Family Trust include certain family members
of Madam Wu. Madam Wu as founder of the Wu Family Trust and Mr. Cai
as the spouse of Madam Wu are each taken to be interested in the
2,343,591,600 Shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the
SFO. According to the latest disclosure of interests filings, Charm Talent is
interested in 2,343,591,600 shares, representing 45.462% of the issued
Shares as at 31 Dec, 2010. The Company is aware that Charm Talent is
interested in 2,343,736,600 Shares, representing 45.465% of the issued
Shares as at 31 December, 2010. No disclosure of interests form has been
voluntarily filed by Charm Talent in respect of the acquisition of 145,000
Shares. Madam Wu as founder of the Wu Family Trust and Mr. Cai as the
spouse of Madam Wu are each taken to be interested in these 145,000
Shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XI of the SFO.

Note 2: These Shares are held by Junson Development as registered holder. The
entire issued share capital of Junson Development is wholly owned by
Silverland, the entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-
owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of the Cai Family
Trust. The Cai Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Cai as
settlor and protector and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on 11 June
2008. The beneficiary objects of the Cai Family Trust include certain
family members of Mr. Cai. Mr. Cai as founder of the Cai Family Trust and
Madam Wu as the spouse of Mr. Cai are each taken to be interested in the
1,562,394,400 Shares held by Junson Development pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

Note 3: The Company is aware that Mr. Cai Kui is beneficially interested in
100,000 Shares, representing 0.002% of the issued Shares as at 31
December 2010. No disclosure of interests form has been voluntarily filed
by Mr. Cai Kui in respect of the acquisition of these 100,000 Shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF
THE COMPANY
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Company had not

redeemed, and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased or sold any of the Shares of the Company.



B S D L

AL A E R A 2 R (AL R 5T
b 7 i 1 ) R D) 2 AT R O O
WAL TR AE > BURR AR 2 ) 28 1o BLAT FBE R 4%
5 M b 5 0 65 B A -

B

WE

o w) BRI B w)E IR RO A A R

FEHEIG WA -

R

RS 4 5 45 I B

TR B A5 8.08 (1) (a) e (b) I L 52 ok LTl 1)
S E A A BT B AT A0 TR SR A
HERE A IR o W KR G)TE
AT ] R ) 38 17 10 9847 A 48 3o D 259%
AR o BAEA 5 RGBT ABRBOR Ll
MR S AN B — D ERE S AR
T b T IR AE T AT ML T (6338 W S ) BT R
AT NI R e Y BT N E BT
RHEZ05% o SR > ok b R 5 0
AR DT N AT AR 15% > A
i b T A TR T (E ZE S 22 iR 10,000,000,000
WIT o

=

Report of the Directors

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association, or the law of Cayman Islands
being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated
under which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing Shareholder.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this
annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rules 8.08(1)(a) and (b) of the Listing Rules require there to be an
open market in the securities for which listing is sought and for a
sufficient public float of an issuer’s listed securities to be
maintained. This normally means that (i) at least 25% of the
issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by the
public; and (ii) where an issuer has more than one class of
securities apart from the class of securities for which listing is
sought, the total securities of the issuer held by the public (on all
regulated market(s) including the Stock Exchange) at the time of
listing must be at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued share
capital. However, the class of securities for which listing is sought
must not be less than 15% of the issuer’s total issued share
capital, and must have an expected market capitalization at the
time of listing of not less than HK$10,000 million.
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The Group had applied to the Stock Exchange to request the
Stock Exchange to exercise, and the Stock Exchange exercised its
discretion under Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules to accept a
lower public float percentage of the Company of 15% (assuming
the over-allotment option is not exercised) or such higher
percentage of the issued share capital as would be held by the
public in the event that the whole or a part of the over-allotment
option is exercised (which discretion may be exercised in respect
of issuers with an expected market capitalization at the time of
listing of over HK$10,000 million) on the basis that the Stock
Exchange was satisfied that the number of the Shares concerned
and the extent of their distribution would enable the market to
operate properly with the lower percentage, and on the condition
that the Company would make appropriate disclosure of the
lower prescribed percentage of public float in the Prospectus and
confirm sufficiency of public float in the successive annual reports
after listing. At the time of the listing of the Company on 19
November 2009, the market capitalization exceeded HK$10,000
million.

The over-allotment option was fully exercised on 24 November
2009 in respect of an aggregate of 150,000,000 shares and
accordingly the lower public float percentage of the Company
accepted by the Stock Exchange is approximately 22.33%. Based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this
report, the Directors confirm that the Company has maintained
the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution for the
reappointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company’s auditor is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board
Longfor Properties Co. Ltd.
Wu Yajun

Chairman

Hong Kong, March 21, 2011
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate
governance report for the year ended 31 December 2010.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures. The Board is of
opinion that the Company had adopted, applied and complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2010 except on the deviations set out in the paragraph
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company have not been segregated as required by the provision
A.2.1 of the Code.

Madam Wu Yajun is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. With extensive experience in the property
development, property investment and property management
businesses, Madam Wu is responsible for the Group’s overall
strategic planning and the management of our business. The
board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”)
considers that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer in the same person is beneficial to the business prospects
and management of the Group. The balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operation of the senior management
and the Board, which comprise experienced and high calibre
individuals. The Board currently comprises four executive
Directors (including Madam Wu) and three independent
nonexecutive Directors and therefore has a fairly strong
independence element in its composition.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the guidelines
for the Directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company. Upon
specific enquiries of all the Directors, each of them confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2010 in relation
to their securities dealings, if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior
management and relevant employees who likely possesses the
non-public price-sensitive information of the Company.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and overseeing the Group’s business, strategic decisions
and performances and currently comprises seven Directors,
including four executive Directors namely Madam Wu Yajun, Mr.
Fang Shengtao, Mr. Chen Kai and Mr. Qin Lihong and three
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Frederick Peter
Churchouse, Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek and Dr. Xiang Bing. The
Board has delegated the management certain management and
administrate functions as they think fit and provides guidance of
the rights of management. The Board will review the relevant
delegation from time to time to ensure that clear guidance and
rights have been provided and the proper reporting procedures
have been complied. In addition, the Board has also established
Board
responsibilities to the Board committees including the audit

various committees and has delegated various
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), the management committee (the
“Management Committee”) and the investment committee (the
“Investment Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). All
the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in accordance

with their respective terms of reference.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial,
business, family or other material relationships among members of
the Board.
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All of the independent non-executive Directors are appointed for
a term of three years commencing from 1 November 2009. None
of them holds any other offices in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries except that each of them has been granted options
under the Post-TIPO Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 1
November 2009, details of which are set out in the Directors’
Report. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition
regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate to the requirements of the business of the
Company.

During the reviewing period, the Board held four meetings, the
attendance of each director is as follows:

S o 2 R A U

No. of meetings attended/Total meetings

4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4

4/4

1/4

4/4
4/4

3/4
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 1
November 2009 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and determining on behalf of
the Board specific remuneration packages and conditions of
employment for the Directors and senior management and
evaluating and making recommendations on employee benefit
arrangements. The Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Fang
Shengtao, an executive Director, and Dr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Chan
Chi On, Derek, two independent non-executive Directors and is
chaired by Mr. Fang Shengtao.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year to
review and approve the remuneration system of executive
Directors and senior management, and to discuss the
implementation principle and scope of the equity incentive
scheme of the Company. The attendance of each member is as
follows:

S U 2 S A U

No. of meetings attended/Total meetings

1/1
1/1

1/1

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 1 November
2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee include reviewing and supervising the
financial reporting process and internal control procedures of the
Group and nominating and monitoring external auditors. The
Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Frederick Peter
Churchouse, and Dr. Xiang Bing and is chaired by Mr. Chan Chi
On, Derek. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the
chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate
professional and accounting qualifications.
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The Remuneration Committee held two meetings with the senior
management and independent auditor of the Company during the
year, to consider the independence and audit scope of
independent auditor, and to review and discuss the internal
monitor system, interim and annual financial statements of the
Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor
before submitting to the Board for their approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

R B R

No. of meetings attended/Total meetings

2/2

2/2
2/2

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The primary duties of the Management Committee include
discussing and approving corporate policies and key management
issues of the Group in the areas of strategy, operation, finance
and human resources. The Management Committee consists of the
executive Directors and the General Managers of the regional
companies.

INVESTMENT DECISION COMMITTEE

The Investment Decision Committee reports directly to the Board
and is responsible for appraising land acquisition proposals
submitted by the regional companies and the business
development department of the headquarters as well as making
land purchase decisions. The Investment Decision Committee
consists of Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Chen Kai, Mr. Qin Lihong and
the General Managers of the regional companies.
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Given that the nomination committee has not been established,
the whole Board will be responsible for the selection and
approval of the new Directors. Under the articles of associations
of the Company, one third of the Directors for the time being (or
if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one third) will retire from office by rotation
provided that every Directors shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. The Board
will consider the factors including the expertise, experience and
integrity of the candidates when selecting the new Directors.
Except for Mr. Lin Chu Chang who retired as the Director of the
Company on 26 May 2010, there is no other change in Directors
of the Company for the year ended in 31 December 2010.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable
to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and
are RMB3,000,000 and RMB391,296,

non-audit services

respectively.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the results and cash flow for that period. The Directors
consider that the financial statements have been prepared in
conformity with all appropriate accounting standards and
requirements and reflect amounts that are based on the best
estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the
Board and the management. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out
in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 65
of this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance of an effective
system of internal control. The Company has established internal
audit department which is responsible for the independent review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system and for
the periodic report of the auditing result to the Audit Committee
and the Board. The Company has also engaged external
professional agent to re-assess and evaluate the internal control
system of the Company.

The internal audit department of the Group has performed a
series of specific audit of internal control during the year, which
includes 1) tender management process; 2) administration of
authorization in information system; 3) management of the
clearing of the specific project; and 4) management of investment
analysis model, and has taken a series of internal control
improvement measures.

The Company has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd. in
2010 and appointed its corporate risk management services
department to assess and evaluate the internal control of the
Company. The scope of re-assessment includes the control of the
Company, the control of financial reporting process and the
control of business flow which covers the aspects of operation,
financial report, risk management, compliance and so on. The re-
examine report of Deloitte Touche demonstrates that the overall
control condition of the Company is good and there is no material
control defect.

All of the above mentioned internal and external audit report and
the follow-up measures have been reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board. The Board is of opinion that the
internal control system of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 is effective and sufficient.

4 Annual Repore 2010
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Objective

The management of the Company believes that effective and
proper investor relations play a vital role in enhancing the
corporate transparency as well as establishing market confidence.
As such, the Company has adopted a stringent internal control
system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure of
relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws
and regulations in order to ensure all shareholders equal access to
information. To strive for effective communication and
transparency of the Company, the personnel in charge have
frequent contacts with the shareholders and investors through
various channels such as internet, telephone and email. During
the relevant year, approximately 60 visits to the Company have
been arranged. The Company has also introduced its development
strategy and recent business development to the investors in large
investment forums. On-site visits to the projects of the Company
have been arranged for the fund managers and analysts from
Hong Kong and overseas. The Company endeavours to create
opportunities for direct communication with investors and to
provide the latest development of the Company as well as
information of the PRC real property industry to the capital
market in time. As such, investors’ understanding of and
confidence in the Company can be enhanced.

Information Disclosure

The Group discloses information in compliance with the securities
regulations of the Stock Exchange, and publishes periodic reports
and announcements to the public in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Group is to ensure
information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the
public, to make rational and informed decisions.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF LONGFOR PROPERTIES CO. LTD.
HE 8 3t 7 A PR 2 #
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Longfor
Properties Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to
198, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2010, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal controls as the directors determine are
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatements, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

4% Annual Repore 2010




T S A% Bl e A

Independent Auditor’s Report

B BT LI BB A7 o B R P
R R A B LR o TR
{1 75 P B R A B B o L AT A A
B AT A7 DRI T R T L B A R R
At B JE B o A% S T % <6 L Bt B 5 O 4R
P A L T 2 R A B R B Y

R S > DABCRTE & ok S 0 UL T 6 B
R Fr > (E S JF 385 4 I o o 42 R 5 A L

BRER - BEUSUFHEFEE L AHF K
JHBO € wt B 7R 5 5 KOO 1R B & R Al at
RAEGH > RS MBHRRNEE 2R
S

EEHEMGE > BEECERAESEE
i RS AR

AR

FAFRR M o KA B R O 47 R B S R
HRAAEAFRUEEEMB -F—-FFE+
“HET BB R B EEEEA
IEFEEREMNEB SRR FERREEL
i 6 1 ) 452 58 L E % A e o

2 IR

B E o B3 WU AT
3 &t
i

—F——f=A=+—H

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Group’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors of the Company, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at December
31, 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 21, 2011
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

M E R R ZEEILAE
NOTES 2010 2009
AR¥EFT AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue 5 15,093,122 11,373,962
8 B LA Cost of sales (9,995,934) (8,042,326)
E A Gross profit 5,097,188 3,331,636
HoAth g A Other income 6 91,531 421,188
Ho bl 45 1% i 18 Other gains and losses 7 34,652 13,990
WL EYERN Fair value gain upon transfer
01 fE AR to investment properties 777,023 —
REVENTHED Change in fair value of
investment properties 1,713,090 920,945
SH 8 I i 35 4 B X2 Selling and marketing expenses (327,880) (314,119)
7B 32 Administrative expenses (433,488) (421,099)
& A Finance costs 8 (66,677) (27,499)
JRE A 3L [ 4 Tl Share of results of jointly
S ES controlled entities 183,035 135,998
I 3 T Ve ) Profit before taxation 7,068,474 4,061,040
e 1588 B 32 Income tax expense 9 (2,051,101) (1,568,581)
AF B i ) e A B Profit for the year and
4 T A SR total comprehensive
income for the year 10 5,017,373 2,492 459
AR A 38 ) - Profit attributable to:
A EHEA A Owners of the Company 4,130,155 2,209,207
JE il HE 4 Non-controlling interests 887,218 283,252
5,017,373 2,492,459
Y& NN ) Earnings per share, in RMB cents
A Basic 13 80.2 53.5
v Diluted 13 79.8 53.2
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

S B =P
At December 31, 2010

B & R R —EENAE
NOTES 2010 2009
AR¥EF A RMF o
RMB’000 RMB’000
I i Y NON-CURRENT ASSETS
gy Investment properties 14 8,041,000 4,698,300
VERN CYE Property, plant and equipment 15 171,741 171,861
A BROE Prepaid lease payments 16 7,882,002 3,194,207
& e 4 I A Interests in associates 17 1 1
}3\ o ] 2 T Interests in jointly controlled entities 18 2,464,099 2,373,834
B Available-for-sale investments 19 8,600 8,600
?Jtﬁﬁf\ilﬂ% i I HEC A I $5 & Deposits paid for acquisition
of land use rights 4,274,216 3,264,561
90 S — [T B J 2 =D Y Deposits paid for acquisition of
BAME S AT M & additional interest in a subsidiary — 34,000
iR AL B TH Deferred taxation assets 30 436,035 227,702
23,277,694 13,973,066
i B ¥ CURRENT ASSETS
i Inventories 20 415,939 301,048
RN B Properties under
development for sales 21 31,590,625 18,312,478
FrlEH & Properties held for sales 22 3,004,066 1,008,296
JRE i i 5 L At R Wi T Accounts and other receivables,
$i 4 J TS O deposits and prepayments 23 2,516,293 1,382,897
JAE it 38 (7] 2 o) 8 KO Amounts due from jointly
controlled entities 24 7,362 35,271
T M ] A I Taxation recoverable 539,034 134,265
B K R AT A7 3K Pledged bank deposits 25 499,419 496,208
SRAT &5k Bl Bank balances and cash 25 9,863,132 6,801,573
48,435,870 28,472,036
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At December 31, 2010

M E R R —EENAE
NOTES 2010 2009
ARWFIT AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
i B fH CURRENT LIABILITIES
AT IRIE ~ B ik & K Accounts payable, deposits
JBE 5t % received and accrued charges 26 31,474,867 16,362,320
e Aof S ] 425 i 8 AR OH Amounts due to jointly
controlled entities 27 1,319,490 363,879
JRE A% ot JH Taxation payable 2,635,182 1,616,029
Ay K HAB AR — Bank and other borrowings -
— 4 N 2 1 due within one year 28 2,859,870 3,710,200
38,289,409 22,052,428
B E NET CURRENT ASSETS 10,146,461 0,419,608
AR E R B LA TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES 33,424,155 20,392,674
A T ik A CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Ji A= Share capital 29 453,410 452,972
it i Reserves 15,526,846 11,685,706
A v AN A HE 45 Equity attributable to
owners of the Company 15,980,256 12,138,678
I £ T M 43 Non-controlling interests 1,385,564 1,099,884
TE 25 H % TOTAL EQUITY 17,365,820 13,238,562
T B £ NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
SRAT B HUAt i 3K — Bank and other borrowings -
— A% 3 due after one year 28 14,464,489 6,055,305
IR A B TE A 1R Deferred taxation liabilities 30 1,593,846 1,098,807
16,058,335 7,154,112
33,424,155 20,392,674

BOTE198H &5 A MBHRENR T ——F =
Ao — A S MR T8 W

DTFALHRERES

HH
DIRECTOR

March 21, 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

L

DIRECTOR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 198 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

wE

For the year ended December 31, 2010
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HEBeREaR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

R R “ZTNE
2010 2009
AR T ARWBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
HEWE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
¥ ot i g ) Profit before taxation 7,068,474 4,061,040
UL % Adjustments for:
il A Finance costs 66,677 27,499
g o] S5 R Bad debt recovery — (16,000)
Al 18 i IH Reversal of impairment loss
ol {8 s 4H A3 [ on other receivables — (5,000)
¥ - BE K Depreciation of property,
B R plant and equipment 24,019 21,863
W TR EYEN Fair value gain upon transfer to
08 VB investment properties (777,023) —
BE WM A F A m Increase in fair value of
investment properties (1,713,090) (920,945)
JAE 5 I 7] 42 o L M SE AR Share of results of jointly
controlled entities (183,035) (135,998)
HEYE - WE R Gain on disposal of property,
BELENE plant and equipment (434) (33)
H — 8% b 3 0E H i Excess compensation received from
TR L A primary development project — (306,000)
B — [T R A 2 ] 9 Jis 4R Loss on disposal of a subsidiary — 10,533
FEdA Interest income (60,092) (47,620)
At R BT AR E R Dividend income from available-
i B A for-sale investments, unlisted (1,098) (685)
VA 3 5 Tl 1 A% 3K B S Share-based payments expenses 94,767 53,232
BEE BT Operating cash flows before movements
BB in working capital 4,519,165 2,741,886
17 & B Increase in inventories (114,891) (162,396)
BEJE 4 26 T FR AR (Increase) decrease in properties under
2 () development and properties held for sales (8,688,150) 958,187
JRE WA B AR I H At JEE Wi OE (Increase) decrease in accounts and
e R FE AT FOE () B> other receivables, deposits and prepayments (1,133,396) 365,193
B 5 S8 [ 25 o 7 48 T WD Decrease in amounts due from
jointly controlled entities 27,909 71,823
AR AR - B ik & K Increase in accounts payable, deposits
JE &+ 22 1) 3 received and accrued charges 15,017,216 2,271,485

4% Annual Repore 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

“FR R “ZTNE
2010 2009
AR T AR¥ETT
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
BEELENEE Cash from operations 9,627,853 6,246,178
B AT ] i A5 B PRC income tax paid (1,150,011) (400,386)
BB IR B A NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 8,477,842 5,845,792
BEWEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
T AE & SR OE B Additions to prepaid lease payments (8,311,383) (1,411,125)
S L/E S Additions to investment properties (458,709) (23,745)
WS B O L RE BT S A ¥ 4 Deposits paid for acquisition of land use rights — (3,447,858) (3,212,781)
325 1 i T O A 2 ) Acquisition of assets and
Wk RORIE AR assumption of liabilities through
5 AT A5 A1 acquisition of subsidiaries/settlement
of consideration payable — (507,250)
W i I ] 42 ) Y Acquisition of additional interest

M 42 in jointly controlled entities — (537,796)
LlﬂIE% e 42 ] . A Acquisition of a jointly controlled entity — (1,037,018)

DEREEATN-§- Rl < Capital injection to a jointly controlled entity 4 —
& 45{;? IF] 2 i S ) f 5 Dividend received from

a jointly controlled entity 92,774 40,263
A B KA SR AT 77 3K Placement of pledged bank deposits (102,514) (369,776)
R E AT SR A7 A7 3K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 99,303 478,947
BEA W ~ B K s Purchase of property, plant and equipment (26,805) (13,644)
SR/ &P Interest received 60,092 47,620
H B B A 2 A 3 A Net cash inflow on disposal of subsidiaries — 56,691
HEYE - BE K Proceeds from disposal of property,

M B 18 3R plant and equipment 3,340 4,559
B 4 3 1R R Proceeds from disposal of investment properties — 5,490
H—MMAEEE GO EE  Compensation received from

primary development project — 1,100,000
B ATt B A R R Dividend received from

available-for-sale investments 1,098 685
BB By BT ) B4 NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (12,090,666) (5,378,880)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &




HEBeREaR
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BER-FET_H=T—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2010

R R ZERRIAE
2010 2009
AR¥EFT A RMF o
RMB’000 RMB’000
i 3 B FINANCING ACTIVITIES
WA B Y 2 ) Y Acquisition of additional interest in
ROMES B A RE subsidiaries/settlement
of consideration (644,830) (55,500)
9 WS Y G 2 ) B A1 i Deposits paid for acquisition of
e S A RO 4 4 additional interest in subsidiaries — (34,000)
TR SR AT B fth £ 3K Repayment of bank and other loans (5,031,392) (9,250,051)
ERORD:N Interest paid (857,401) (590,595)
R AT T oAt A R New bank and other loans raised 12,588,447 4,609,610
BEAT R 47 B 15 30 Proceeds from issuance of a bond — 1,384,931
L BOR T Capital injected from
non-controlling interests — 35,000
St 7] 5 i 7 B B Advances from jointly
controlled entities 955,611 343,922
BRTHEF Repayments to directors — (81,590)
BEAT AR P 5 AR Net proceeds from issue of shares 12,823 7,162,158
Je 43 85 47 BH 32 Share issue expenses — (320,360)
EL 1a) JF 2 i 1 R S AT i R Dividend paid to
non-controlling interests (24,425) (9,541)
B AT A Dividend paid (324,450) (88,120)
Tl 5 3% ) P A5 B 4 A NET CASH FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 6,674,383 3,105,864
BeRBESMEMYMESH  NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,061,559 3,572,776
B B R B A CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 6,801,573 3,228,797
R B R B 4 FEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 9,863,132 6,801,573
BERBEFHEMERIN  ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES
OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
SRAT &5 Bk R Bl Bank balances and cash 9,863,132 6,801,573

4% Annual Repore 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

— M ¥ R

AXNARFFLFT A+ —HE
HEREREMSBEAFAE (—N—
EHEZPEEE2E > BEGE RMERD i
T S 2 8 S A PR A ) o $“ﬂ%%
R F W5 2 5 B A BR s /) (T s BT )
F b afﬂﬂ%b?%ﬁﬁlﬂ‘iﬁﬁ&icket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KYI1-1111°> Cayman
Islands © A% 24 F) JA Hr 28 N RALFNE ([
1) B 7V 1A T 3 B I 3 31k 2
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JETHE ] 7 it R 2 R 1SR 15 HE -

AN ) 2 I PR T By S IR R TR AR 58 )&
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Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated on December 21, 2007 as an
exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares
of the Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”). The address of
the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The addresses of the principal place of
business of the Company in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) and Hong Kong are 7/F, Tower 2, FuSheng
Building, No. 4 Huixin East Street, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
and 15/F, 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

The ultimate controlling party of the Company is the Wu
Family Trust and the Cai Family Trust. The principal place of
business of the trustee of Wu Family Trust and Cai Family
Trust is Level 13, 1 Queen’s Road Central Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
41.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the

Company and its major subsidiaries.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

The Group has applied all the standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new and revised IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board, which are
mandatorily effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
January 1, 2010.

IAS 27 (Revised 2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial

Statements

The application of TAS 27 (Revised 2008) has resulted in
changes in the Group’s accounting policies regarding
increases or decreases in ownership interests in subsidiaries
of the Group. In prior years, in the absence of specific
requirements in the International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), for acquisition of additional interests in
subsidiaries which are not business, the difference between
the consideration and the carrying values of the underlying
assets and liabilities attributable to the additional interests
acquired is added to or deducted from the carrying values of
the relevant assets, where appropriate. The impact of
decreases in interests in subsidiaries that did not involve loss
of control (being the difference between the consideration
received and the carrying amount of the share of net assets
disposed of) was recognised in profit or loss. Under TAS 27
(Revised 2008), all increases or decreases in such interests are
dealt with in equity, with no impact on goodwill or profit or
loss.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

2. BRAGH T B R T B B S 2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

B w0

i A 42 1 TR 22 By~ A ol = 8 Al 1 30
T 2 25 B JB 2 w2 I HE > AR SR AR fE T e
RIJ > 7% 42 (8] 28 i B T A% % T 9 A A
BB~ BRI R £ o A T B
% BT £ B R A S 2R 5 R I AE S
N T RERD o 2% 2542 i 1 A0 Wi 25 80
R 5 45 MR BT A9 BRH () BL %S5 R
R 2 BHERD o B A A T B
N EIBESME R > BURME N E L E )
Jo JEAHARAE 2 T 2 %8 N IR 171,718,000
TG > T JE 4 A 4 0 T (0D A BE £
(THAb AR B HERERR o M A 2 Al
GRIBUOR > RSB ERBAMEE
A MR T -

BT FC A B AT B 8 A T I R B A e
RIS A SR B B AU TE & R AR
MB MR B MBI W F A M
S R G 98 e R R
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Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

When control of a subsidiary is lost as a result of a
transaction, event or other circumstance, the revised standard
requires that the Group derecognises all assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests at their carrying amount. Any
retained interest in the former subsidiary is recognised at its
fair value at the date the control is lost. A gain or loss on loss
of control is recognised in profit or loss as the difference
between the proceeds, if any, and these adjustments. In
respect of the acquisition of additional interests in certain
subsidiaries during the period, the impact of the change in
policy has been that the difference of RMB71,718,000 between
the consideration paid and payable and the decrease in the
carrying amount of the non-controlling interests has been
recognised directly in equity (“other reserve”). Had the
previous accounting policy been applied, this amount would
have been recognised as part of the carrying values of the
relevant assets.

The adoption of other new and revised IFRSs had no material
effect on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
periods and/or the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
standards, amendments and interpretation that have been
issued but are not yet effective.



B B U 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. AT B A5 T I Wk
BBt e )

I ¢ A 5 A

R (BT &)

I ¢ B 75 R
] 55 798
(BRI A)

I ¢ B 75 R
1 JI 55 958

B 5 o 2
58 1245
(BFTA)

B 5 o 2
58 0445
(&8 1[&"]‘

B 5 o 2
5324
(BFTA)

] 5% B 5 R
aEEAY
i FEAR 1498
(EFTA)

I ¢ B 75 R
GREAE
R A 1958

1 ﬁ/{\:zf:#

=& AR A
P A 75 S o5 36 )

EEBLIA - Wi ] AR B
BES

YNGR § s

A i 23 B0

BKE AR E 2 BT
BIHS

LU A T B4 84 4 7l
A

THEELA-HER_-F——H—H

— H (B0 1) 52 4% B iR 2 4F 2 30 ] A 30

2 noz—
10 1 A 3%

FHELA - HRZ &R G2 FE

ORZE-—FEA-HRZEMRZEE

W A2

CORZE =] - HRZ KRR R

W A2

SORZE-ZHE - - HRZEHRZFE

T A2

6 RZE -] - HRZEERZFE

LIl e
7 ﬁ/{\:i‘i#
LIl e

FHEZA - HRZ KRG 2 FE

2.

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRSs (Amendments)

IFRS 7 (Amendments)

IFRS 9

IAS 12 (Amendments)

IAS 24 (Revised)

IAS 32 (Amendments)

IFRIC 14 (Amendments)

IFRIC 19

Improvements to IFRSs 2010'

Disclosures - Transfers of Financial
Assets?

Financial Instruments®

Deferred Tax:
Underlying Assets’

Recovery of

Related Party Disclosures®

Classification of Rights Issues’

Minimum

Prepayments of a

Funding Requirement®

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010 and

January 1, 2011, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2010

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after February 1, 2010

4% Annual Repore 2010
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For the year ended December 31, 2010
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(as revised in October 2010) adds requirements for financial
liabilities and for derecognition.

Under IFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates

R miE 4R 1R A T 51 ﬁ@ﬂ’]irﬂﬁ1a o to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value
HEmE - REE g Eﬁaﬁ?iﬁz 559 through profit or loss. Specifically, under IFRS 9, for financial
9% e E B AR E R %{Eﬁ' R liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or

EMARNE uZ:%ﬁE’JFEH B 52 B

loss, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial

JRE Al B 6 B R V(B B B MO T R K liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
AT A 25 o B FE A H A 42 T e A liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless

N 2 91 5% B 15 6 T B Y A ) 2 i
R R R AR A Y G RS o —JH
Six Pl A 15 R o A Y A - (H 5
HEAGEH M BEEHEN - BE - R
BRI G R HERI 5530955 - FEE BB RE
35 3% N T (B 51 R 1Y 42 BRI A T (E
B A O R E AR N2 .

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

the presentation of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under TAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that IFRS 9 that will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ending December 31, 2013 and that the application of
the new Standard may have a significant impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Groups’ financial assets and
financial liabilities.

The amendments to TAS 12 titled Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets mainly deal with the measurement of
deferred taxation for investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model in accordance with TAS 40
Investment Property. Based on the amendments, for the
purposes of measuring deferred taxation liabilities and
deferred taxation assets for investment properties measured
using the fair value model, the carrying amounts of the
investment properties are presumed to be recovered through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted in certain
circumstances.

The directors anticipate that the application of the
amendments to TAS 12 may have a significant impact on
deferred taxation recognised for investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model.

The directors anticipate that the application of the other new
or revised standards, amendments and interpretations will
have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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3. BEEHEEOR 3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the SEHK and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for the investment properties
which are measured at fair value.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling

interests.

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries on or after January 1, 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.
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Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries on or after January 1, 2010 (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (1) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values and the related cumulative
gain or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair value of
any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries prior to January 1, 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were treated in
the same manner as the acquisition of subsidiaries, with
goodwill or a bargain purchase gain being recognised where
appropriate. For decreases in interests in subsidiaries,
regardless of whether the disposals would result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries, the difference between
the consideration received and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests was recognised in profit or loss.

On acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries which are
regarded as acquisition of additional interests in assets and
liabilities as the subsidiaries are not business, the difference
between the consideration and the carrying values of the
underlying assets and liabilities attributable to the additional
interests acquired is added to or deducted from the carrying
values of the relevant assets, where appropriate.

Business combinations

Business combinations that took place prior to January 1, 2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was measured at
the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of
assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that met the relevant
conditions for recognition were generally recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations that took place prior to January 1, 2010
(Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of
the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the recognised
amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s interest
in the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost
of the acquisition, the excess was recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The minority interest in the acquiree was initially measured at
the minority interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of
the acquiree.

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only if, the
contingent consideration was probable and could be
measured reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration were recognised against the cost of the
acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for
as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each step. Any
additional acquisition did not affect the previously recognised
goodwill.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when all of the following criteria are
satisfied:

e the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
properties are transferred to buyers;

e neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor effective control
over the properties are retained,;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Deposits and installments received from purchasers prior to
meeting the above criteria of revenue recognition are
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
under current liabilities.
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Property management and related service fees are recognised
in the period in which the services are rendered.

Consultancy fee income is recognised when the services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’
established.

rights to receive payment have been
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at
cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Property under construction or development for future use as
an investment property is classified as investment property
under development. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under development will
be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be
determined or development is completed, in which time any
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount
will be recognised in profit or loss in that period.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from
use or no future economic benefits are expected from its
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Properties under development for sales and properties held
for sales are transferred to investment properties under
construction and completed investment properties when it is
evidenced by the commencement of an operating lease to
another party. Any difference between the fair value of the
property at the date of transfer and its previous carrying
amount shall be recognised in profit or loss.
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Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives after taking into account of their estimated residual
values, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of
development for production, rental or for administrative
purposes, the leasehold land component which is classified as
a prepaid lease payment and released over a straight-line
basis over the lease term. During the construction period, the
release of the leasehold land is included as part of the costs
of the properties under development. Properties under
development not for sale are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Properties under development
which are intended to be held for own use or their

investment potential are shown as non-current assets.

Prepaid lease payments

The prepaid lease payments represent upfront payments for
land use rights and are initially recognised at cost and
released to profit or loss over the lease term on a straight-line
basis, except for those that are classified and accounted for as
properties under development intended to be held for sale.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an
interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over these
policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and
comprehensive income of the associates, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’ consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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Investments in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled
entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the
equity method, investments in jointly controlled entities are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
jointly controlled entities, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled entity
equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity
(which includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the jointly
controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
a jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of TAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect
to the Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with TAS 36 Impairment of Assels as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with TAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with a jointly controlled entity
of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity.

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development which are intended to be sold
upon completion of development are classified as current
assets, and carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost include the related land cost, development
expenditure incurred and, where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised.

Properties under development for sales are transferred to
properties held for sales upon completion.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost includes the costs of land,
development expenditure incurred and, where appropriate,
borrowing costs capitalised. Net realised value is determined
based on prevailing market conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables or available-for-sale financial assets.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees, points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including accounts and other receivables and
deposits, amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at cost less
any identified impairment losses at the end of the reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).
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3. BEEFER @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
ST H @) Financial instruments (Continued)
SWEE 4) Financial assets (Continued)
& il E 9 1 Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as accounts
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will
not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of accounts and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When an account and
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees, points paid and received that form an
integral part of the effective rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts payable, amounts due
to jointly controlled entities and bank and other borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the group entities are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the original or
modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined in
accordance with TAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with IAS 18 “Revenue”.
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3. FEFHBUE @ SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
ST R (%) Financial instruments (Continued)
fife i Tl Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain
or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group. Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including
any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.
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3. FEFHBUE @ 3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for
as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is released over the lease term on a straight-line basis
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases, in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred taxation liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
taxation assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at
each end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities. Deferred taxation is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred taxation is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Government grants that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme which is
defined contribution are charged as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution plans where the Group’s obligations under the
schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan.
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Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options/share awards to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options or shares granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period with a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options or shares that are
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, a

correspondence adjustment to reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option
reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

For any modification to the terms and conditions of share
options granted, the incremental fair value granted is
determined at the difference between the fair value of the
modified share options and that of the original share options,

both estimated as at the date of the modification.

If the modification occurs during the vesting period, the
incremental fair value granted is included in the measurement
of the amount recognised for services received over the
period from the modification date until the date when the
modified share options vest, in addition to the amount based
on the grant date fair value of the original share options,
which is recognised over the remainder of the original vesting
period.

If the modification occurs after vesting date, the incremental
fair value granted is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the Company
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair values based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair values, the valuers have based on a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates of
market condition. In relying on the valuation report, the
directors of the Company have exercised their judgement and
are satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation are
reflective of the current market conditions. Changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in the fair values of the
Group’s investment properties and the corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit or
loss.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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4. FiuE AW B E R B R E KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(4) (Continued)
i 5 Bt B B i B 3% * Income tax expense

Deferred taxation assets of RMB436,035,000 (2009:
RMB227,702,000) mainly in relation to tax losses, land
appreciation tax provisions, allowance for doubtful debts,
government grants, unrealised profit on intra-group purchases
and others have been recognised at December 31, 2010, after
offsetting certain deferred taxation liabilities as set out in note
30. The realisability of the deferred taxation assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable
temporary differences will be available in the future. The

directors of the Company determine the deferred taxation

BEE OB > LA SR M assets based on the enacted or substantially enacted tax rates
B R A8 B TH 7 Y R A AR T A B9 I and the best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for
U ) T o AR A ) 3 S R S R coming years during which the deferred taxation assets are
Al 2 [ M i i ) B o A BT E AR Y expected to be utilised. The directors of the Company will

P A e 3 M e S SSAEG S TR o BT 2
”Eé?l‘ﬁﬁ ) o 438 [ A A R A M
oo o A (2] 49 TS 9 A R R

- 3 484 £
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review the assumptions and profit projections by the end of
the reporting period. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are more or less than expected, an additional
recognition or a reversal of deferred taxation assets may arise,
which would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a recognition or reversal takes place.

Land appreciation tax

The Group is subject to land appreciation tax in the PRC.
However, the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC
and certain projects of the Group have not finalised their land
appreciation tax calculations and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant judgment is
required in determining the amount of land appreciation and
its related income tax provisions. The Group recognised the
land appreciation tax based on management’s best estimates.
The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact
the income tax expense and the related income tax provisions
in the periods in which such tax is finalised with local tax
authorities.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on
internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (i.e.
the board of directors of the Company) in order to allocate
resources to the segment and to assess its performance.

The Group is organised into business units based on their
types of activities, based on which information is prepared
and reported to the Group’s chief operating decision maker
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. The Group’s operating segments under IFRS 8
Operating Segments are identified as three main operations:

e Property development: this segment develops and sells
office premises, commercial and residential properties. All
the Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in the
PRC.

e Property investment: this segment leases investment
properties, which are developed by the Group to generate
rental income and to gain from the appreciation in the
properties’ values in the long term. Currently the Group’s
investment property portfolio is located entirely in the
PRC.

e Property management and related services: this segment
mainly represented the income generated from property
management. Currently the group’s activities in this
regard are carried out in PRC.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Company’s
board of directors monitors the revenue, results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each operating segment on
the following bases:

4% Annual Repore 2010
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
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Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets directly attributable to each segment with the
exception of property, plant and equipment, interests in
associates, interests in jointly controlled entities,
available-for-sale investments, deferred taxation assets,
taxation recoverable and other corporate assets. Other
corporate assets are not allocated to the operating
segment because they are head office assets or assets
which are managed centrally by the Group. The
investment properties included in segment assets are
stated at cost when assessed by the chief operating
decision maker. Segment liabilities include trade payables
and accrued expenditure on construction, bills payable,
deposits received and receipt in advance from property
sales, and other payables with exception of taxation
payable, deferred taxation liabilities, bank and other
borrowings and other corporate liabilities. Other
corporate liabilities are not allocated to the operating
segment because they are head office liabilities or
liabilities which are managed on group basis.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
Segment profit does not include the Group’s share of
results arising from the activities of the Group’s jointly
controlled entities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, change in
fair value of investment properties and finance costs
(“Adjusted Earnings”), where “interest” is regarded as
including investment income and “depreciation” is
regarded as including impairment losses on non-current
assets. To arrive at Adjusted Earnings the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ and
auditor’s remuneration and other head office or corporate
administration costs.
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5. HIBER ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) P EE BERARE @) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
B B B 40 S e R 1Y 40 B R In addition to receiving segment information concerning
Ab o A T R IR A ) A AR B A segment profits, management is provided with segment
all o AR (B BRI 8 &) K information concerning revenue (including inter-segment
i S A8 SE S B R 1 O U B oy sales) and additions to non-current segment assets used
HREE o o> ER IR BHE T 2 IR IR by the segments in their operations. Intersegment sales
BB AN 5 & BT fE e are priced with reference to prices charged to external

parties for similar service.

A B A S T A8 43 T 1Y RS R A Information regarding the Group’s operating segments is
T e set out below.

BE-Z B4+ A=+ HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2010

WEEHR

B TR

Property

management

E 195 WERE and
Property Property related o Eil
development  investment services Total
AR AR¥ T AR¥TFx AR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
K EIBEF HIA Revenue from external customers 14,596,701 287,281 209,140 15,093,122
A Inter-segment revenue — — 36,678 36,678
A Segment revenue 14,596,701 287,281 245,818 15,129,800

Jh A (R B R A) Segment profit

(Adjusted Earnings) 4,498,483 220,346 50,479 4,769,308
oG Segment assets 49,288,258 3,049,476 9,356 52,347,090
A Segment liabilities 28,826,325 23,534 66,030 28,915,889

4% Annual Repore 2010
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5. R @)

(a) R - HEREME )

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

BE_EZNFTA=+—HILFEE

Year ended December 31, 2009

Y2 R

A 1 s

Property

management

WER R WERE and
Property Property related st
development investment services Total
AR¥F AR EF T AR ARET T
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
KANBEF R A Revenue from external customers 11,029,310 197,975 146,677 11,373,962
SR ECA Inter-segment revenue — — 17,395 17,395
A Segment revenue 11,029,310 197,975 164,072 11,391,357

7 Segment profit

(AR % J ) (Adjusted Earnings) 2,797,455 146,888 36,489 2,980,832
NG E Segment assets 27,457,370 2,196,888 5,477 29,659,735
i =L Segment liabilities 14,891,370 52,003 51,638 14,995,011

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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5. HIBER ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
(a) P EE BERARE @) (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
J Al 4y 55 B R Other segment information
PEERR
il e
Property
B4 WERE management
Property  Property and related st
development investment services Total

ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000

il B A R Amounts included in the
Pl 2 508 - measure of segment assets:
ZF%E 2010
WEFRBEE (W) Additions to non-current
assets (Note) 11,759,241 458,709 — 12,217,950
“EFNE 2009
WEERBEE (WD) Additions to non-current
assets (Note) 4,623,906 23,745 — 4,647,651
Wk RHBREREREWE  HEAHE Note:  Amounts include additions to investment properties, prepaid
I S i - b 7 O S AR 9 lease payments and deposits paid for acquisition of land use
E rights.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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5. ER )
(a) A ip A -
ol 4y 3B R ()

W 26 AT D 4 6 s R B 4

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

GEKAE @)

iR g

b EEAE YRR A B A
EHGAFENER > HaREE
S‘ETAW*&/\?E’J%E&WMMEE@%

» 7 e [R] £E  TE G B A A

*HE@%‘,\ &%%%E’J"
B MATEHHIHE

¥ (8 5
R

EE’JF%EE%BZZF ?ﬁ%U&TT i

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
Other segment information (Continued)

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profits, the chief operating decision maker is
provided with information concerning the Group’s
consolidated amount of interests in associates and related
share of results, interest in jointly controlled entities and
related share of results, changes in fair value of
investment properties, interest income from bank
balances, finance costs from borrowings, depreciation and

T3 T B el (M 1R impairment losses which are not allocated to operating
segments.
(b) MES WA -~ B~ BEE (b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit
T £ 0 R or loss, assets and liabilities
“E R ZEENAE
2010 2009
ARYTF I ARMT
RMB’000 RMB 000
LN Revenue
g B A Segment revenue 15,129,800 11,391,357
43 5 [ e At 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (36,678) (17,395)
A RA Consolidated revenue 15,093,122 11,373,962
i A Profit
1 # i A Segment profit 4,769,308 2,980,832
HAb g A Other income 91,531 421,188
Atk 45 T i 4 Other gains and losses 34,652 3,523
LSy Eva <&/ E b Fair value gain upon transfer to investment
28 (B i 4R properties 777,023 —
REMEN A TEZTH  Change in fair value of
investment properties 1,713,090 920,945
T A Finance costs (66,677) (27,499)
JEAG LR BRI E R A Share of results of jointly controlled entities 183,035 135,998
g Depreciation (24,019) (21,863)
& B B 2 Unallocated expenses (409,469) (352,084)
5 5 R B T U6 ) Consolidated profit before taxation 7,068,474 4,061,040

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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5. iER
(b) HES WA ~ HiE - HE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit

K BB ER or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
R R ZEFENAF
2010 2009
AR¥Fx A R o
RMB’000 RMB 000
% Assets
oy R B Segment assets 52,347,090 29,659,735
REYEN L THE Cumulative change in fair value of
L] investment properties 4,991,525 2,501,412
T A A ) 1 R A Interests in associates 1 1
i I (7] 22 1] B B 1 A 25 Interests in jointly controlled entities 2,464,099 2,373,834
T4 AR Available-for-sales investments 8,600 8,600
R HE o T Deferred taxation assets 436,035 227,702
W g ] o JE Taxation recoverable 539,034 134,265
G e A B L Ath ¥ Unallocated head office and other assets 10,927,180 7,539,553
GEEEMAE Consolidated total assets 71,713,564 42,445,102
i Liabilities
Ui =N Segment liabilities 28,915,889 14,995,011
JEE Af B IH Taxation payable 2,635,182 1,616,029
I JE B JE £ i Deferred taxation liabilities 1,593,846 1,098,807
SRAT B FoAth i 3K Bank and other borrowings 17,324,359 9,765,505
KBTS K EAMEME  Unallocated head office and other liabilities 3,878,468 1,731,188
SaAEAE Consolidated total liabilities 54,347,744 29,206,540
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5. HEEER ) 5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
() F B N T RS P A W 2% (c) Revenue from major product and services
ALEEBAHBEYE REVWER The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from
i 428 IR 785 B 45 Wi i 2 A A0 F its properties sold, property invested and services
provided:
WA
Year ended

R R ZETILAE

+=A +=A

=+—H =t—H

31.12.2010 31.12.2009

AR¥T T AR ¥

RMB’000 RMB 000

HEYE Sales of properties 14,596,701 11,029,310

HEY* Leasing of properties 287,281 197,975

Tk iy 2 4 T IR 7S Provision of property management services 209,140 146,677

15,093,122 11,373,962

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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5. B ER ) 5.
(d) b 5 B
FRBII R EY L REWER
45 8¢ IR 5 5 7 b 50 3 4

AL A BINREF UK E R
TR B R T T 7E B A

BT o

B Chongging

i Chengdu

Ex Beijing

i H A Other cities in the PRC

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(d) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
Group’s revenue from external customers by cities in the
PRC, based on the location at which the properties are
sold, properties are invested and services are provided.
Information about its non-current assets is analysed by
geographical location of assets.

5 E AN
%R AT E
Revenues from Non-current
external customers assets
“E-FE CEENE ZF-FE —ETNF
2010 2009 2010 2009

ARRTE  ARETT ARMFLE ARETZ
RMB000  RMBOOO ~ RMB000  RMB'000

4,807,460 3030015 9,947,384 8920181
4187174 2566327 1,324,331 863,267
4835818 5090778 5,687,083 576,056
1,262,670 686,842 5,874,261 3,377,260

15,093,122 11,373,962 22,833,059 13,730,704

WERE @ JRURE)E A A B TR IR
BLIHE 7 -

M 4 B B — ALK AT 58 5 B IR
ANREARE T A M 10%8 A E o

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred
taxation assets.

No revenue from transaction with single external
customer is amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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6. JCfbd A 6. OTHER INCOME
“5-%F  EEAE
2010 2009
ARWF I ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000

FLE e A Interest income 60,078 47,620

A (R EE ) Consultancy fee income (Note 1) 15,330 31,129

A E R EHREN Dividend income from available-for-sale

J Bl A investments unlisted 1,120 685

H — A% B 5% 28 H il Excess compensation received from

ek ) primary development project (Note 2) — 306,000

U i Government subsidies 8,611 5,406

METH A Sundry income 6,392 30,348

i Total 91,531 421,188

Bif &L Notes:

1o FRAR A e o 4 5 58 = AR R AT BR 1. It represents the design, decoration and consulting services related to
o PR B Y Bt - A B R R RS o real estate development provided by the Group to independent third

parties in the PRC.

2. BWEZERZAFTA=THIEEE A 2. During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Group entered into a
42 1B B IBURT 5T S o SO R B B joint land renovation and development agreement with the government
Wik ZFFENEF A=+ — A G e A and paid deposits which aggregated to RMB794,000,000 totally as at
J N R %794,000,00075 (A U g -+ b i December 31, 2008 (included in the deposits paid for acquisition of land
HZEeMEER) - RZEENEF A+ use rights). On December 15, 2008, the Group entered into an
TH o RS A B R R A A AR agreement to terminate the joint land renovation and development as a
UL T a4 L B LS T B B o ARER result of change in the development plan of that region. Pursuant to the
LT b I3 0 B 2 O T - AR B BURT Y agreement of termination of the joint land renovation and development,
W (Ol AEECES) B ARK the compensation from government (including the deposits paid by the
1,100,000,0007C ° # % ~FEEFZH = Group) was RMB1,100,000,000. During the year ended December 31,
T HILERE > AEECEELFRMG > B 2009, the Group has received the full amount of the compensation and
AV O 0 Tl R AR therefore the excess compensation was recognised as other income

accordingly.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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A W 2 % s 4L 7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES
“E-RE “EENE
2010 2009
AR¥ T ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
HEYE - BE K Gain on disposal of property,

R A 1 Ui g plant and equipment 434 33
e 90, ig i 15+ 4 Net exchange gain 34,218 3,490
B B 2 W B s 4R Loss on disposal of subsidiary — (10,533)
g e S8 B Bad debt recovery — 16,000
HAbRENCH W E G E B F Reverse of impairment loss on

other receivables — 5,000
34,652 13,990

59 % 8. FINANCE COSTS
“ERRE —EFNE
2010 2009
AR T AR ¥T
RMB’000 RMB 000

IR BRI RTT ) Interest on bank and other

HoAl £ 3R S borrowings wholly repayable

HAEN Within five years (753,617) (548,322)

FAEH Over five years (105,583) (62,793)
SRAT S HAth 5 ) AR Total bank and other borrowings (859,200) (611,115)
o BRI Less: Amount capitalised to properties

G AL & under development 792,523 583,616
(66,677) (27,499)

B A9 A5 B AR 39 TR A A 4 Y — i
B REE % TﬁJr A=+

— H 1k B 4 5.29% (=
5.38%) ) &AL W RFHA
EEME o

nf)\*ﬂ?ﬁi

Borrowing costs capitalised arose on the general borrowing
pool of the Group and were calculated by applying a

ThE capitalisation rate of 5.29% (2009: 5.38%) per annum for the

qualifying assets.

year ended December 31, 2010,

to expenditure on the

4% Annual Repore 2010
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9. i 3 BL B X

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

TR R —EFNE
2010 2009
AR¥T T AR ¥
RMB’000 RMB 000
R HA A3 0 Current tax
o B A 3 T A PRC enterprise income
Bl ([P EH]) tax (“EIT”) (1,088,527) (609,428)
o 1 1 E PRC land appreciation
BT L (EBE ) tax (“LAT”) (999,591) (468,916)
(2,088,118) (1,078,344)
R R A Overprovision in prior year:
1 % B 15 Bt + EIT* 263,408 —
o H 4 R LAT** 60,315 —
323,723 —
R FE B IE (B 5E30) Deferred taxation (note 30)
A A JE o Current year*** (447,242) (490,237)
b A R R A e Overprovision in prior year**** 160,536 —
(286,706) (490,237)
(2,051,101) (1,568,581)

o OMEZER-FET =T —HILEE &
F O 7% U B AT 2 A ZE T A3 Bl 4 159% 1 2
A TS BE R FTAG MFTEL o B AR LR
33% e 25% 4 3 FT 15 B 2 i i 2 1 £k 5 A
[F) o 3 SO AT 2R 488 ol b 2 T B o

AR T AR TS E L O T R 4 (A
TEARA S P At st R B AN R R 4F £
o 35 (1 o A A

ok I FiE B TE B R B AR AF B B R 4 UR U A
2096 E Hi f T H1 8L 438 £ o

sorn TR AR ARARAC /0 7 14 o I ) W 2 ) JE B B
Wt 2 TR IR S 2 2 A ) 4 BE R A% i
#120% (45 & 1) 3 O - B WA 4 250 s 4R 450 2B
4N o SR T S R AT A AT B AR A AE L
T LB NI > 2 ST 4R T AT B M
s o

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

*k

s

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the assessment and
computation of EIT payable in respect of certain completed projects
were finalised at a preferential EIT rate of 15%, which was different
from the management’s estimation on EIT rate of 33% and 25% in prior

years, resulting in a reversal of EIT during the year.

The actual appreciation value of certain property projects had been
finalised in the current year which differs from the management’s
estimated appreciation value made in prior years, resulting in an
overprovision of LAT in respect of prior years.

Deferred taxation liabilities include provision for withholding tax which
has been provided for 20% of the undistributed profits arising during the

current year.

The actual dividend payout ratio in prior years, based on the dividend
policy set out for the Company’s subsidiaries situated in the PRC, was
around 20% of the respective year’s profit after tax (excluding net fair
value gains or losses on investment properties), which differs from the
management’s previous estimates when it provided for deferred taxation
liabilities in previous years, resulting in an overprovision of withholding
tax in respect of prior years.
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong
Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from January 1, 2008
onwards.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC
are eligible for certain tax holidays and concessions and were
exempted from PRC EIT for the year.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, preferential corporate income tax rates have been
granted to certain of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries which
were established in western regions and engaged in the
encouraged business. These companies are subject to a
preferential rate of 15% from 2002 to 2010, subject to
approval of the tax authority, if the annual income derived
from the encouraged business is more than 70% of the annual
total income. Approval has been obtained during the current

year.
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BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

9. B fBEB X )

A% T B B AR 42 TH WG 5 2K 10 BR B U

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

it M B SRR AT before taxation per consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as follows:
“FR R “ZETNE
2010 2009
AR T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
I i ik Profit before taxation 7,068,474 4,061,040
25%11) o [ A 2E T 15 i PRC EIT at 25% (1,767,119) (1,015,260)
e A I ] 25 o A8 SE AR Y Tax effect of share of results of
i 15 0 2 jointly controlled entities 45,759 34,000
FBIE S AR BRI XA Tax effect of expenses not deductible
B 2 (k1) for tax purposes (Note 1) (101,880) (73,653)
BN S HEAEBLA R Tax effect of income not taxable
BB B for tax purposes 9,677 698
- 388 (B LAT (999,591) (468,916)
T b 38 B 1 T 2 Tax effect of LAT 249,898 117,229
LA AR Al Overprovision in prior years 323,723 —
AERBEEEMBHELE  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (857) (243)
5 1 56 il A B R Y Utilisation of tax loss previously
Bl I s not recognised 32 68
AT 2 AR Effect of tax exemption and
BIERC LEEBRMEE  concessionary rates granted
to certain PRC subsidiaries 53,942 20,194
15 23 IR AR B i 1 Withholding tax on retained profits
TAFOBL (Fff552) to be distributed (Note 2) 135,315 (123,771)
Ay (B 5E3) Others (note 3) — (58,927)
AF R Tax charge for the year (2,051,101) (1,568,581)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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BE-FZ-FHET_HA=+—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Notes:

The amount mainly comprises of the tax effect of non-deductible
corporate expenses of the Group and the expenses of certain
subsidiaries in excess of the allowable deduction limits in accordance

with the relevant tax regulations.

According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double
Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on
Income” and Guoshuifa [2008]112, where the Hong Kong resident
company directly owns at least 25% of the capital of the Mainland
company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is applicable. The amount
represents the withholding income tax provided on the undistributed
profits arisen during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009 of

certain PRC subsidiaries.

In accordance to the PRC tax circular (Guoshuifa [2009] 31) issued on
March 6, 2009 and effective from January 1, 2008, the sales that were
recognised by certain subsidiaries of the Company in 2009 which were
related to the pre-sale in 2007 had to use 33%, instead of 25% to provide
for the income tax expense. The amount represented the difference
between the tax rate used to provide for the income tax expense arising
from the recognition of revenue in that year.
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of property inventories included
in cost of sales

Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of subsidiary

Bad debt recovery

Reverse of impairment loss
on other receivables

Operating lease rentals

Staff costs
Directors’ emoluments (including
equity - settled share-based
payments) (note 11)
Other staff costs
Staff costs excluding retirement
benefit costs
Retirement benefit contribution
Equity-settled share-based
payments (note 37)

ZE %

2010
N
RMB’000

3,000

9,739,314

24,019

(434)

9,674

62,994

461,038
42,420

61,151

SRR

2009
ARMT T
RMB’000

3,000
7,839,702
21,863

(33)
10,533

(16,000)

(5,000)
14,458

44,850

403,263
35,952

40,070

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

10. 47 B8 A a0 10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
e S 229 “ERIE
2010 2009
AR T ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
A8 T A Total staff costs 627,603 524,135
B BERAYIEN Less: Amount capitalised to properties
W N under development (240,815) (141,717)
386,788 382,418
REWERBHERA Minimum lease income from
investment properties 219,710 170,427
AT A A Contingent rental income 67,571 27,548
B A A Less: direct expenses that
B X generated rental income (61,281) (56,072)
226,000 141,903
JAE A 3 ] 2 1 T #89  0H Share of tax of jointly controlled entities
(FH A £ 3t [5] (included in share of results of
P2 B ) jointly controlled entities) 98,528 70,268
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11. 3% 55 K 0@ 5 5 W 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
YN Ry
&R BIKER  RIERER
ff it 3% fif 3k
Basic Retirement Equity-
HHM4E  salaries benefit settled
Directors’ and other 764 contri- share-based At
fees  benefits Bonus bution payments Total
AREFE AREFLE AREFL AREFLE ARWFZ AREFL
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000
(WH3E)
(Note)
BE_EZ-FE Year ended December 31,
TZHA=+—H 2010
R4 JE
A Name of director
HATHE R Executive Director:
SRRt Madam Wu Yajun — 3,172 4,000 35 — 7,207
b B ek Mr. Lin Chu Chang — 1,650 2,425 66 3,318 7,459
J7 M S A Mr. Fang Shengtao - 2,055 2,900 61 4,986 10,002
B 5L o A Mr. Chen Kai — 2,055 4,000 63 14,893 21,011
Z It ek Mr. Qin Lihong — 2,055 4,000 61 9,237 15,353
M AL AT Independent non-executive
director:
Frederick Peter Mr. Frederick Peter
Churchouset /£ Churchouse 260 — — — 394 054
B 22 e A Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek 260 — — — 394 654
HEEL Dr. Xiang Bing 260 — — — 394 654
780 10,987 17,325 286 33,616 62,994

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

1.EHERBEEFHFMH 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

Y g
A% & R e
RAh RIGEH  BERN
A 3 fT 3k
Basic Equity-
HHWL  salaries Retirement settled

Directors’  and other 4L benefit share-based )

fees  benefits Bonus contribution  payments Total

AR#EF AREFLE ARWTFLE ARWTFLZ ARWFL ARWTE
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000  RMB000

(BH3E)
(Note)
wWE _EERE Year ended December 31,
+ZA=+—H 2009
1EAF B
EHES Name of director
HATHE R Executive Director:
SRR 4+ Madam Wu Yajun — 4,103 3,000 30 — 7,133
ek B ek Mr. Lin Chu Chang — 2,132 800 80 4,730 7,742
J7 % M S e Mr. Fang Shengtao - 1,934 3,424 56 4,220 9,034
s e A Mr. Chen Kai — 1,934 4,867 57 2,141 8,999
Z IV Mr. Qin Lihong = 1,067 4791 56 2,041 8,555
BERE Mr. Cai Kui — 2,600 — 25 — 2,625
WL AT Independent non-executive
director:
Frederick Peter Mr. Frederick Peter
Churchouset 4= Churchouse 44 — — — 10 54
ol inta s Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek 44 — — — 10 54
I Dr. Xiang Bing 44 — — — 10 54
132 14,370 16,882 304 13,162 44,850
WFRE © BLSR B HE H)oF SRORH I Y AE AL % A 4 Note:  The bonus relates to performance related incentive payment which
BEZ-ZFEL_ZZNET N is determined as a percentage of the profit of the Group for the
=+ — IR 4E B i R Ay B E e years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009.

4% Annual Repore 2010




A B 0 2 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

1133 B B ) 11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
& B 3 T Employee’s emoluments
HEEREHMA LOFERE -2 —FF The five highest paid individuals included three (2009: two)
ToAZF—HIEEN=Z4 (SRR directors for the year ended December 31, 2010. The
ML) ERE o BEEFELT N emoluments of the remaining two (2009: three) highest paid
St —HIEFERNGIRE (ZFEN individuals for the year ended December 31, 2010 are as
LS4 RO A BT follows:
ZER R —EFNE
2010 2009
AR T ANRET T
RMB’000 RMB 000
& Employees
— EARH & LR, — basic salaries and allowances 4,108 5,533
—fEAL — bonus 7,600 10,646
— R AR A 3K — retirement benefit contribution 91 112
— DAHE 5 45 57 ) IR A 4 - equity-settled share-
FCRE Y 5 3K based payments 10,187 12,662
21,986 28,953
WEZE-FER_ERFNELTZH= During the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, no
t—H LA > A S E ST A AL A emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the
3 B4 e B L A A 5 B A 4 Company or the five highest paid individuals as an
SO A SO A AR A% B 5% ) 5AE £ inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
M ME_F-FER_FETN compensation for loss of office. None of the directors of the
FETZA=Z+—HILFEE > ALAw#EH Company has waived any emoluments during the years ended
AR 41 T30 B A ] B0 - December 31, 2010 and 2009.
58 11 357 B A - 1 5 Their emoluments were within the following bands:
AN¥
Number of Individuals
R R —ERIE
2010 2009
10,500,001 7t % HK$10,500,001 to
11,000,000 J© HKS$11,000,000 — 2
11,500,001 7 £ HK$11,500,001 to
12,000,000 G HK$12,000,000 — 1
12,500,001 7T & HK$12,500,001 to
13,000,000 JC HK$13,000,000 1 =
13,000,001 7 % HK$13,000,001 to
13,500,000 J© HK$13,500,000 1 —

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

12. DIVIDEND
“ER R —EETNE
2010 2009
ARWT T AR#T T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
AF A R 43 R P AR S Dividend recognised as distribution
during the year:
B E KR AT Dividends declared and paid to the

w5 s R i S then shareholders — 88,120

CZEFNERMSMABBE  Final dividend paid in respect of 2009
5 1 A R ¥0.063 76 of RMB0.063 per share 324,450 —
324,450 88,120

CEZRRAAETHH o AN HE
i 3R E IR JB 5. 100,000,0003 T *E””TU\
[ %:88,120,0007) > MEZH £ A A W) Bk £
LB AR o

EHEBERRBERE_Z—FF+ A=
THLEFEHRHAKREARE
515,500,0007C - & A R ¥ 0.170 (ZF
FNE  BEZZTZNEFZA=+—
HiEFEMRBBREASANRE
324,450,0007C - ik A K #0.0637C) >

L5 SR TR i I 3R 2 4 K i it of:

On October 2, 2009, the Company declared dividend of
HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,120,000), which was
conditional upon the listing of the Company’s shares, to the
then shareholders of the Company.

A final dividend of RMB515,500,000, RMBO0.1 per share, in
respect of the year ended December 31, 2010 (2009: final
dividend of RMB324,450,000, RMB0.063 per share, in respect
of the year ended December 31, 2009) has been proposed by
the directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

13. 45 B 4 A 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
AN A NG R A K 8 A R The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
) BT S LR B attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:
"R R “ERIE
2010 2009
AR¥T I ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
F A w5 I e A S Earnings attributable to the owners
85 99 2 1 A A ) of the Company for the purposes
A A 2 A of calculation of basic and diluted
earnings per share 4,130,156 2,209,207
“FR R “ZFTNE
2010 2009
TR T
000 ‘000
JBe 4 ¥ H Number of shares
TR w8 Kk Weighted average number of ordinary
FEAR A 19 8 ik shares for the purpose of calculation
T HE - 34 B of basic earnings per share 5,152,671 4,132,192
Ji e HEAR B Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
tL%E’JF‘*E shares in respect of
1 v 5y 2 — share options 21,667 23,825
S w5 A 1B Weighted average number of ordinary
1 2 A 9 0 ik shares for the purpose of calculation
T HE - 34 B of diluted earnings per share 5,174,338 4,156,017
BE_F-FER_FZNFE+ A= For the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, the
+— H R4 B A R R R outstanding share options issued under the Post-TPO share
Ry o o 25 AR —FFNET A option scheme adopted on December 23, 2009 are not
T = BR A E  BEE E AR E RE included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share as
J%‘ﬁ?ﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬂi T B TR RE o T A A the adjusted exercise price was greater than the average
FTFER_TTAERTHEYH > K market price of the Company’s share during the outstanding
.ﬂ AT B R A 2 A R Oy RSP 1 T period in 2010 and 2009.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

e R AW HE
CHBRENE  Investment
Completed  properties
investment under Mgt
properties construction Total
ARMTFLE AR¥FT AR¥TI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FAIR VALUE
WEZEEZNE—A—H At January 1, 2009 3,759,100 — 3,759,100
RE Additions 23,745 — 23,745
& Disposal (5,490) — (5,490)
JA 48 2 R HE R Y Net increase in fair value recognised
NSRS DIIRE R in profit or loss 920,945 — 920,945
R ZEEIUAE At December 31, 2009 4,698,300 — 4,698,300
+ZHA=+—H
wE Additions 20,331 438,378 458,709
W B A OE Transfer from prepaid lease payments — 68,000 68,000
W R RE Transfer from properties under
FREYE (M &) development for sale (Note) 98,500 192,388 290,888
WA R B2 (I 5F) Transfer from properties held for sales (Note) 34,990 — 34,990
BEAERREWE Transfer from investment properties
under construction 688,121 — 688,121
SR ¥ Transfer to completed properties — (688,121) (688,121)
ERDAEY EEHESE Fair value gain upon transfer of
BEW ¥ 2 AT E properties under development for
sales to investment properties 284,200 443213 727,413
FRIE &Y R Fair value gain upon transfer of properties
BEY ¥ 2 AT E held for sales to investment properties 1,110 — 1,110
T A FH 6 O g Fair value gain upon transfer of prepaid
BEWEZ A FEK S lease payments to investment properties — 48,500 48,500
AR A5 R RR 1 A P {H Net increase in fair value recognised
H I #H in profit or loss 1,500,748 212,342 1,713,090
R_F—F4F
+=A=+—n At December 31, 2010 7326,300 714700 8,041,000

Wk - RSN ALRREHECHE

Note:

The transfers from properties under development for sales and

AYERE U > 5 H?&‘E*ﬁ‘%%
EV RN LIES S Y RS E I

properties held for sales to investment properties were made since
there was a change in use as evidenced by the commencement of
operating leases to outside parties.
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14.8EGW¥E @

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

BEY G PR S

ALBBEWENBHELAULZ
FERFFNFET _A=Z+—HHR
(TG R A B A A I 3 B A — K
A A (B — K A S
At 16 B T S T AT PR ] CRL A ) o 8
UL S 1Y £l (B b 48 R AR SRR
KB R HHET AR -

At B AT 4R i) LA 5 e 7 5 0 W3 09
TH

EERYE—RNERLREERS %
MBS BT E s ERY » LK
WL A B A BT R S A
FHBAEAE > LEEEBAREY
KA REE AT A A -

TE W) S — SR AT Bl 90 3 1 AR J B %
JE R R M T B B R A E > R K
5E BB FE T B A S8 IR ROA DL R E 52
WHEREANEE - -

BEYES MR B R o A
55 B A B TR 4 AR AR S R Y
RN e VY SHIE/ES E VAR
BT B3 B EARIIEREY
*

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

The investment properties are all situated in the PRC under
medium-term lease.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at dates
of transfer and December 31, 2010 and 2009 have been
arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out on those
dates by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group, who have appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of

similar properties in the relevant locations.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined
by the valuers on the following basis:

Completed properties - arrived at using the direct comparison
approach by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant markets and where
appropriate, by capitalising the net rental income derived
from the existing tenancies with due allowance for
reversionary incoming potential of the respective properties.

Properties under construction - valued on the basis that they
will be developed and completed in accordance with the
latest development proposals and taken into account the
constructions costs that will be expended to complete the
development to reflect the quality of the completed
development.

The investment properties are situated in the PRC under
medium term lease. All of the Group’s property interests in
leasehold land and buildings to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value
model and classified and accounted for as investment
properties.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BH R RER
Hif Equipment
i Motor and 5t
Buildings vehicles  furniture Total
AREFLE ARETL ARKFZ ARWFZ
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
A COST
REEENFE—H—H At January 1, 2009 152,309 32,096 23,575 207,980
nE Additions 1,844 3,501 8,299 13,644
A /N Acquisition of subsidiaries — — 39 39
JA ¥R T 4 Transfer from properties under
B ) development upon completion
of construction 17,591 — — 17,591
HE Disposals (6,281) (124) (1,004) (7,409)
R ZEEIAE At December 31, 2009 165,463 35,473 30,909 231,845
+ZA=+—H
W Additions 3,512 5,770 17,523 26,805
HE Disposals (1,844) (4,301) (1,311) (7,456)
AR B At December 31, 2010 167,131 36,942 47,121 251,194
+ZA=+—H
Rty ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AEERSE—H—H At January 1, 2009 20,192 11,990 8,822 41,004
EEil’S Charge for the year 9,327 5,436 7,100 21,863
Hi B IR 9 8 Eliminated on disposals (1,890) (117) (876) (2,883)
N RR A At December 31, 2009 27,629 17,309 15,046 59,984
+ZA=+—H
G Xl Charge for the year 8,178 6,040 9,801 24,019
H 8 IRF HE 8 Eliminated on disposals (1,035) (2,356) (1,159) (4,550)
R ZE T4 At December 31, 2010 34,772 20,993 23,088 79,453
+ZH=+—H
T EL CARRYING VALUES
R ZE T4 At December 31, 2010 132,359 15,949 23,433 171,741
+=-H=+—H
= EEIAE At December 31, 2009 137,834 18,164 15,803 171,861
+ZA=+—H
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

15. 0% ~ B Kt i ) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)
LAY - RRE kA TE B A EE KAk DL The above items of property, plant and equipment are
N AE SR Il SR AR (AR DL B A depreciated using the straight-line method after taking into
e account of their estimated residual values at the following

rates per annum:

BF Ak AT T AR 204 Buildings Over the estimated useful lives
SR > DA A Ay e of 20 years or the term of the
leases, if shorter
1 B) B 20% Motor vehicles 20%
M REE 33% Equipment and furniture 33%
P T AE £ Y O B > AR AR P AR The buildings are all situated on land in the PRC held under
A - medium-term leases.
ALBN - -RER ZERNAE+FZ The Group had not pledged any property, plant and
AZ+— B MRSy E - BE equipment at December 31, 2010 and 2009.
B s o
16. T4 AL 1 % 16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
T AT AHL 5 K S A R T R TE o B R A The carrying amount of prepaid lease payments represents
TR - IR land use rights held in the PRC and is analysed as follows:
“ERFE “EFNE
2010 2009
AR T 7 ANRWBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
Hh Medium term 934,856 135,936
= Long term 6,947,146 3,058,271
I B 9 Non-current 7,882,002 3,194,207
A5 I A AL B KRR S TE B R A A The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent payments for
F-404F 2 704F A 11 1 490 36 B 8% A0 0 obtaining the land use rights in the PRC with lease terms
FARERT SCATHY3RIH » A —F —F 4+ = ranging from 40 to 70 years for the purpose of property
A=+ -0 ALK B AH G R development. The Group had not yet obtained the certificates
15 HR T (49 A R % 4,798,585,00000 (— % of land use rights of prepaid leases with a carrying value of
ZIAE © AR ¥2,110,150,00000) {978 F approximately RMB4,798,585,000 (2009: RMB2,110,150,000)
TG b i R o from the relevant authorities at December 31, 2010.
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BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

17,778 W66 4% 2 vl 1y B Ak 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
e S 229 “EENE
2010 2009
AR T ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
& A > LT Cost of investments, unlisted 415 415
B 2R B8 1 Less: Impairment loss recognised (414) (414)
1 1
RN —FEFTZH =T —HZHEA Details of the associates as at December 31, 2010 are set out
] Y E 1 R F R4 in note 41.
18. 774 3t I ¥ ) ' 8 9 HE 2 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES
—E R “ERNE
2010 2009
AR T ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
BERA - BTl Cost of investments, unlisted 2,225,685 2,225,681
JRE A ol 4% v A Share of post-acquisition profits,
F0 B E i Ji S net of dividend received 238,414 148,153
2,464,099 2,373,834
REFE—FE+ A =+ —HZ I & Details of the jointly controlled entities as at December 31,
it B O O O PR R4 2010 are set out in note 41.
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BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

18. 77 3t I ¥ ) 2 8 9 B 2% () 18. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

LU 55 € 5135 510 B ) A 42 R £ 3R] 5
il i 0 0 S BB B SRS

(Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group’s
interest therein which are accounted for using the equity
accounting method is set out below:

e S 2.2 “EENE

2010 2009

A RMFIL AR ¥T o

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

I Uit B & Non-current assets 835,818 850,815
UL B Current assets 3,221,357 2,837,805
I B R Current liabilities (881,199) (659,005)
I Ui B A Non-current liabilities (711,877) (655,721)
A Income 1,529,696 573,145
B X Expenses (1,346,661) (437,147)

19. 7 fit i 45 Bt % 19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

e S 2.2 “EENE

2010 2009

A R#TFL A RMF o

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

I bR AR R S o A Unlisted equity securities, at cost 8,600 8,600

R A T B A BRI 1
1 FL B 47 9 2
2 B A G 4
Ko AT ER A R R
S+ R A 9  0 BLA
712 -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

The above unlisted equity investments represent the
investments in unlisted equity securities issued by private
entities established in the PRC. They are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that its fair
value cannot be reliably measured.
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20. INVENTORIES

¥ BR THH -

“E-RE “EENE
2010 2009
AR¥ T ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BN R Construction materials 414,463 300,420
TH 22 i B A Consumables and others 1,476 628
415,939 301,048
21 B J op iy 5 5 0 ok 21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALES
—E R “ETNE
2010 2009
AR¥ T ARWT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
A COST
A At the beginning of the year 18,312,478 14,890,771
NE Additions 19,318,981 7,560,542
7 8 1 1 I B 8 W Additions through additional interests
i/l in subsidiaries/acquisition
B Jag 2 ) N of subsidiaries 30,000 826,204
& — K Mg A A Disposal of a subsidiary — (18,112)
B L EEA Transfer from prepaid lease payments
P B 3RO upon commencement of construction 6,012,090 1,431,482
RS R ERE Y Transfer to properties held for sales (11,792,036) (6,360,818)
ENGT L EE Transfer to property, plant and equipment
55 B A upon completion of construction — (17,591)
R R EY % Transfer to investment properties (290,888) =
AR & At the end of the year 31,590,625 18,312,478
BREPGEYEYLR TR - E B The properties under development for sales are located in the
B o PRC under medium-term lease.
AE—FEFZH=+—H o 5EAE Included in the properties under development for sales
Ji& oh R B W 3 B B T A R T B classified as current assets as at December 31, 2010 is carrying
A R #23,913,000,0007T (=& & JL4F value of RMB23,913 million (2009: RMB5,778 million) which
AR H5,778,000,00078) » 5 I E represents the carrying value of the properties expected to be
AR+ AR R 5 L R i Y completed and sold after more than twelve months from the

end of the reporting period.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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2.5 mE

AL FE R EWREMR F B - i
Fi A 4 W 3 3 DURAR B B -

23 JE e S sk e 3L fib B ek
B e B Ak B

BoRWHHEEIERAYRHE - A0
Wy 3 6 A 9 A B AR R A B BTG ok Ok
oo @ B ek B F4SH R W E
A - HERONEMEDRELTH
7 2 iy 7 BB @

22.

23.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALES

The Group’s properties held for sales are situated in the PRC.
All the properties held for sales are stated at cost.

ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sales of properties.
Considerations in respect of sales of properties are paid by
purchases in accordance with the terms of the related sales
and purchase agreements, normally within 45 days from the
agreement. Considerations under pre-sale contracts will be
fully received prior to the delivery of the properties to the

purchasers.

“E R ZERIE
2010 2009
ARWFI A R o
RMB’000 RMB 000
B 5 e i 5k IR Trade receivables 343,397 143,394

A E W R Other receivables, net of allowance
R R for doubtful debts 543,690 209,572
1] 14t E 7 A K Advances to suppliers 191,188 246,246
A B IH Prepaid tax 1,429,263 782,961
THAY BRIE K b % & Prepayments and utilities deposits 8,755 724
2,516,293 1,382,897

DT ARSI REBREANEIZE S

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

JAE WL 3K L B 6 20 T presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

ZERFE “ZETHE

2010 2009

AR TTT AR¥T T

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

60H A Within 60 days 337,531 136,261
61% 180 H 61 - 180 days 5,866 4,652
1814 365H 181 - 365 days — 2,481
1524 1 - 2 years — —
343,397 143,394

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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23. HE e MR ok B G i M ek

B~ e B A K )

REF—FFFZA=+—H 8% (=
TR 1 95%) 19 52 5 e IR BE ot
Wi > HERHERS AWNE -

SE-TBEF A=t HRFAAE
T i B A B 1) B ) R WA B 2 B T
B4 N H5,886,0000T (- FF LA ¢
A B #7,133,00070) - 2 R
> (H el A AR R R A R R
THREEFYENEEBEBY LN
R0 T B T A9 T e A Wi BB R ik TR
SRR WOAS B 0 A % S ARE R
o

JA T A B MR MR TEUA 78 T e B > A
%@%Fﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ*%
AR 5y e R {5 BH R A9 AL 52 8 o
M % P AR B R K H B ol B R
BEFREAR -

AL TR F T - A4 R T A 5

A A EEERFNERER &
SEAE A 5 A f5 BERRER > I A ik R
% AF TR A o Sl A 0 S
ZHBHAMRIENGEEER -

SE-FEFZA=ZT—H > HAE
S T A R A R AR
HH AR A THIE E A B > %
ACHEEBE A A R % 12,000,00070 (%
ZRAE  NR¥39,566,0000C) 0 K A
3 F 7 B A B Y B IR A AR
I 5% A B R A AT TR - B2 P A
% 1 A% 48 1) o

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

At December 31, 2010, 98% (2009: 95%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired and with
satisfactory credit quality.

Included in the Group’s accounts receivable balance are trade
receivables with a carrying amount of approximately
RMBS,886,000 (2009: RMB7,133,000) at December 31, 2010
which are past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for as the Group has
retained the legal titles of the properties sold to these
customers at each end of the reporting period and the
estimated fair value of the relevant properties is expected to
be higher than the outstanding receivable amount.

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
end of the reporting period. The concentration of credit risk
is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated.

Before accepting any customers, the Group uses an internal
credit assessment system to assess the potential customers’
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer, and
considers adequate allowance has been made at the end of
the reporting period. Balances which are neither past due nor
impaired are all with good credit quality.

Other receivables include mainly temporary payments and
miscellaneous projects related deposits paid which are
refundable upon maturity, of which, approximately
RMB12,000,000 (2009: RMB39,566,000) was impaired as at
December 31, 2010 because the counterparties are in severe
financial difficulties and the Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The remaining balance was not
yet due for repayment.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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23 M R Wk B G il VB 23.ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
B> BERFEAHNXE @ DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
Al B iR B Y R IR B ) Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on other

receivables:
ZERE ZERE I
2010 2009
AR ¥F i ARBT o
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR A R Balance at the beginning of the year 39,566 44,566
AF TR E i ] F 3K0E Amounts recovered during the year — (5,000)
A N AR AT Wi 7] 8 1 0 E Amounts written off as uncollectible
during the year (27,566) —
R &5 Balance at the end of the year 12,000 39,566

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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24, J e 3% 1) 2 ) 2 o Kk 24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES
JRE g 3K (R 4 o BT R RS - e B R The amounts due from jointly-controlled entities are
AR —FENER - unsecured, interest-free and are repayable within one year.
25. LI AR AT AR kBT &5 25. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
ik B B 4 AND CASH
O SR A7 77 3 bA N R (E - F5 g4 Pledged bank deposits are denominated in RMB which
THRITHAER - HEOR B K P R AL 15 15 represent deposits pledged to the banks to secure the
fReoM_F—FFE+_A=+—H #F mortgage guarantees provided to customers. The deposits
R [ 2 AR A2 5 0.36% (B F LA - carry fixed rate at 0.36% (2009: 0.36%) per annum at
0.36%) ° December 31, 2010.
MOTGEH LB AFH AL £ Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
FJECE) 13 BR A =18 A B LT B 147 demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or
e less.
%rﬁ‘l‘%*ﬁﬂ‘]iﬁ%ﬁ KRR F22.75% The interest rates on cash placed with financial institutions
ZERFIE  FFE225%) o ranged from nil to 2.75% (2009: nil to 2.25%) per annum.
“E-RE “EENE
2010 2009
AR¥ T ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB’000

$iz B WO T I B HE R 4R 17 Analysis of pledged bank deposits/bank

T3/ AT R Bl balances and cash by currency:
—DIAR¥SHE — Denominated in RMB 9,932,239 4,199,624
— LA eEHE — Denominated in HKD 361,272 2,077,520
- (1% 5]) 5HE — Denominated in United States

dollars (“USD”) 69,040 1,020,637

10,362,551 7,297,781

4% Annual Repore 2010
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26 ME A MRk ~ R 4 B M 26.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND

w2 H ACCRUED CHARGES
e a5 —EFFhE
2010 2009
AR#TF I AR¥ETT
RMB’000 RMB 000

B o) HEA 3RE K Trade payables and accrued expenditure
JRE 1 5 B <2 on construction 2,618,597 1,611,284
JEE A 22 4% Bills payable 5,306 42,738

Y€1 E/ES Deposits received and receipt in

S5 4 T IR E advance from property sales 26,291,986 13,340,989
At 18 A5 BRCE K I R Other payables and accrued charges 2,558,978 1,367,309
31,474,867 16,362,320

B 5 e A5t K T I B w1 o 5 B S A AR
B B H A 3H F OB B ST 0 IR IR A SR
B IR A B SR o AR
S 5 Ja B i OO o DA AR BT A JRE A+ K

JE A5 L IR A (R

PR 2 R 8k S R - B 5 HE A 3RUE -
il S B S M A SR R R O B

Trade payables and accrued expenditure on construction
comprise construction costs and other project-related
expenses which are payable based on project progress
measured by the Group. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are
settled within the credit timeframe.

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables and
accrued expenditure on construction and bills payable at the
end of the reporting period:

e S 22 “ZENE

2010 2009

AR¥Fx AR BT

RMB’000 RMB’ 000

60 H A Within 60 days 2,174,354 1,396,739
61% 180H 61 - 180 days 223,733 142,015
1817 365 181 - 365 days 131,905 76,478
1 5 24F 1 - 2 years 68,066 34,270
2% 34 2 - 3 years 15,868 2,499
4R 34T Over 3 years 9,977 2,021
2,623,903 1,654,022

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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27. M A 3t ) ¥ ) 98k 27. AMOUNTS DUE TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED
ENTITIES
Ak EHDL AR EE o B - S The amounts are denominated in RMB which are unsecured,
TR BRIy R - interest free and repayable on demand.
28. AT B A A K 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
R R ZETILAE
2010 2009
AR EF A R o
RMB’000 RMB’000
|ATEN AL Bank loans, secured 7,614,700 5,810,000
AT R > ML Bank loans, unsecured 7,765,665 2,240,310
HAb &3 A Other loan, secured 246,000 —
AR R - A A Other loan, unsecured 310,000 329,000
%5 A Bond, secured 1,387,994 1,386,195
17,324,359 9,765,505
R LA SRR A B R (B SE) The borrowings are repayable (Note):
e Sk 22 “ZTNE
2010 2009
AR Fx AR F T
RMB’000 RMB’ 000
— 4R Within one year 2,859,870 3,710,200
ER—F More than one year, but not exceeding
{FLAS A48 7 45 two years 4,567,603 1,868,750
ZIRWAE More than two years, but not exceeding
fHA B8 =4 three years 7,221,174 2,800,360
2 =4 More than three years, but not exceeding
fH S & 28 I 4 four years 957,718 —
B LA Exceeding five years 1,717,994 1,386,195
17,324,359 9,765,505
R N =K N Less: Amount due within one year shown
— 4 A B 1 2OR under current liabilities (2,859,870) (3,710,200)
— AR B 0 3K OE Amount due after one year 14,464,489 6,055,305
BEF & o 800 O AR R 0 ek BT R K H Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set out in
HI7R © the loan agreements.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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28. 84T B 3L b £ K

28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

R R ZERIE
2010 2009
AR¥F ARMTF i
RMB’000 RMB 000

iR B & W A Analysis of borrowings by currency:
- ARMEE — Denominated in RMB 14,666,684 8,691,295
— A eEHE — Denominated in HKD 2,657,675 1,074,210
17,324,359 9,765,505
R AR 2 TR AT~ At A R R Certain bank, other loans and bonds as at the end of the

5 L B 5 33 7 4K 7 E T A AR o

ANE-FETZH =+ HI8T R
Emﬁ§ AL 355 AR R R A ?3%%%5&%
ZIAE 3%%55@@%
%AR%MWIB%WD % ﬂ@
N R 1,483,210,00000) > [ Ik A< 4 @ i
BAFPEMERR - B2 _F—-F4E+
ZHE+T—HIEFEEMH &SR E R
> MR B A R AT BT ORI R
T BRI A T5.13%%6.40% (—F

T 4.86%%5.67%) °

MEoEZNERLARE » AEBBTA
&8 B N R ¥ 1,400,000,0007C K % it =
iéﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂaﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%ﬁmﬁ
L) o 6525 8 TL4F 1245 4E.6.7 % 1 [E]
mmiﬁﬁ7ﬁa¥$iﬁ A 4 [ ]
BEH _EF-WFAHAHE—KMEL
ﬁmZmMWﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ% ) o ALE
T — AP H A H AR
B PR MM R AR R S
6.7% > &3 FF A N N B AT g8 45 497 1 {2 f
]2 L H A 5 o FEEH TS (AR
#1,100,000,0007C) it I i 76 % 22 5 F -
MREE - EHEUAEMNE TWER
(P RS AR -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

reporting period were secured by the pledge of assets as set
out in note 33.

Bank and other loans include approximately
RMB4,077,275,000 (2009: RMB1,483,210,000) fixed rate loans
which carry interest ranging from 3.08% to 5.81% (2009: 3.08%
to 5.4%) per annum at December 31, 2010, and exposing the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The remaining loans are
arranged at variable rate based on the interest rates quoted by
the People’s Bank of China, the effective interest rate is
ranging from 5.13% to 6.40% (2009: 4.86% to 5.67%) per
annum for the year ended December 31, 2010.

On May 5, 2009, the Group issued a bond of the principal
amount of RMB1,400,000,000 and will be repayable in full by
May 5, 2016, subject to early redemption. The bond bears
fixed coupon interest rate at 6.7% per annum for the first five
years payable semi-annually in arrears and is subject to an
one-off upward adjustment of up to 100 basis points
(inclusive) from May 5, 2014 at the election of the Group. The
Group will determine on April 25, 2014 the interest rate by
election of an upward adjustment to the interest rate but if it
determines to maintain the interest rate at 6.7%, the holder of
the bond then may elect to redeem all or part of the bond at
the face value. A portion of such bond (RMB1,100,000,000) is
listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. The bond
is secured by certain properties and land use rights of the
Group.
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28. 9T B HABAR X ) 28. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
BB EHEN _F—FF TN Management estimates the fair value of the bond at December
=T —-HWBWAFHEHHLE AR 31, 2010 to be approximately RMB1,468,320,000 (2009:
1,468,320,0007C (=& Z L4 : A\ R RMB1,437,800,000). The fair values of both the listed and
1,437,800,0007C) ° fEFHE LT Kok BT unlisted portions of the bond have been calculated with
a2 AT ETIZHEEFD LTS reference to the quoted market price of the listed portion of
WG R E 5 - the bond.

29. B AR B filt i 29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

sipild T
Number of Nominal
ordinary shares value
T8
HK$°000
WE Authorised
A RE A At January 1, 2009, December 31,
—H—H - ZZZJL4E 2009 and December 31, 2010
TZA=1T—H XK
“E-FEF+H=Z1—H 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
CBRIT KM Issued and fully paid
R-FEZNE—H—H At January 1, 2009 4,000,000,000 400,000
MR 42 Bk 3t 5 Issue of shares by global offering
BEAT AR (B 5E (2)() (note (a)(i)) 1,150,000,000 115,000
BEZEZNEFTZH=1+—H At December 31, 2009 5,150,000,000 515,000
A f B f e Issue of shares upon exercise of
BEAT A (B 5E (a)(id) share options (note (a)(ii)) 5,000,000 500
WoE—FHE+H=1+—H At December 31, 2010 5,155,000,000 515,500
S50 BB B R TR Shown in the consolidated
financial statements SHENR%T
N FE—FFEFH=4+—H At December 31, 2010 RMB equivalent 453,410
ATEERNES H=+—H At December 31, 2009 SFEAR®T
RMB equivalent 452,972

4% Annual Repore 2010
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29. % A B fili i )

(a) A
(i) MZEZNET—H » ALA
MIEERAREEEREBA

(ii)

BH BB T A BR 6 4 0 707
JC A 4 %47 1,150,000,000 % AF
B T8 (0. 1385 6 19 e = AR 28
A AT BT A A TE S
T 3 5 A7 A S HE 4 o

wE_%—
B4R

ZHEFZA=Z+—
ENYNEINEERRCE
HE %547 5,000,000/8% 45 % i {E0.1
W0 I A o BN B R RE 7 AT

1 18 55 2.943 6 (H & 1A A\ R
2.5770) - BEITHIRAES T H
BLE B A B E A R %R
% .

(b) fik i
s 2~ WH R g

(@

e 53 i 1

=
H= 0 e R A
e 4 0

Bt 153 ks 1 W 52 BH 2 BE B 8 A IA
A > AT E A A F AR (I
) AR A T R KA A )
ERLT R ()3 A0 4 e 5 i
B IR 5 (b)#UR #8547 T R
g 1 AR B 48R AT IR A AR /A 7]
KRBT ;s LBHEHEA
T 5 37 1 R R B [ e B 1)
JBEA 5 (d)A B 2w B A2
(&) 515 B 47 A 2 ] It M3 KA 25
11 2 FH B M S A 9 0 4 s
FH I 5 K (DFE B ) ok i
BAR G E AT A0 B A3 K6 5 52
T AT A i A o

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(a) Share capital

)

(ii)

In November, 2009, 1,150,000,000 shares of HKS$0.1
each were issued pursuant to the initial public
offering of the Company by way of Hong Kong public
offering and global offering at a price of HK$7.07 per
share. All the shares which were issued by the
Company during the year rank pari passu with each
other in all respects.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the
Company issued 5,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each
upon exercise of share options. The exercise price of
the share options during the period is HK$2.94
(equivalent to RMB 2.57). The new shares issued rank
pari passu with the then existing shares in all aspects.

(b) Reserves

Name nature and purpose of reserves

@

Share premium

Share premium at December 31, 2010 and 2009
represented share premium of the Company.

The share premium account is governed by the
Cayman Companies Law and may be applied by the
Company subject to the provisions, if any, of its
memorandum and articles of association in (a) paying
distributions or dividends to members; (b) paying up
unissued shares of the Company to be issued to
equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares; (¢) the
redemption and repurchase of shares (subject to the
provisions of section 37 of the Cayman Companies
Law); (d) writing-off the preliminary expenses of the
Company; (e) writing-off the expenses of, or the
commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of
shares or debentures of the Company; and (f)
providing for the premium payable on redemption or
purchase of any shares or debentures of the
Company.
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29. % A K fik i )
(b) it fli ()
AR EE RS (4

(@

(ii)

e 0 Ui A8 (4)

B JE i 2 b R AF A R
TR B H 894% > A/ R A] fE 2R

HWEB PR MOERE > G
A5 B 0 Ve 1 B 1 45 B R
T A T 43 IR B3 AT AF fiT i
B .

B A

BERANRRMG T R
FENFAHT—H  ERE
17 3,999,999,000/% &F i T {8 0.1
WL R e E B EA o A
5 A T AT IR A B T (B 5 R
BREW R ARAR ([5
BT o ARAEEE IR
) B PR A AR 2 T 25 R R
NN

TEEREFTHH - ARAE
moH E R ORI KB
100,000,000%5 76 (K% i A R ¥
88,120,0007C) it A & 7 fif 4
M 28 15 AR 28 A B4 7l 4K O T
EE -

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Reserves (Continued)

Name nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

€

(i)

Share premium (Continued)

Provided that no distribution or dividend may be paid
to the equity shareholders out of the share premium
account unless immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be
paid, the Company will be able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Capital reserve

On June 11,
completed for the preparation of the listing of the

2008, a group reorganisation was

Company’s shares by issuing 3,999,999,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each. The difference between the nominal
amount of the shares issued by the Company and the
aggregate amount of the share capital of Juntion
Development Hong Kong (Holding) Limited (“Juntion
Development”), then holding company of the Group,
is charged to capital reserve.

On October 2, 2009, the Company declared dividend
of HK$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,120,000),
which was conditional upon the listing of the
Company’s shares, to the then shareholders of the
Company and charged to capital reserve.

4% Annual Repore 2010




A B 0 2 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

29. % A B it fff 0
(b) b )
i~ EEHE )
(iid) 45 7 fof 6

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Reserves (Continued)
Name nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iii) Special reserve

BE-ZFLEL A=
AL R BB RE B~ %

During the year ended December 31, 2007, Juntion
Development injected additional capital of

I 4 BB /s R B B EE A 3
W AT RS A (12 BB RE W 2
¥ & 1) 3% & 770,000,000 TG
T A% 3 A 0 e 4% M R S R L
o S B A e AR O T R 4
R D BB R o A4 B R
B HE A ZE 4R R 0 JRHE E 60%
B2 91.3% - 17 A5 A i e 1) 47 3
A B % 620,672,0007C Bl 3 A7 ik
i SN RE i 1 JRE MG O (R
W SN > 2R R

HK$770,000,000 in a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Chongqing Longhu Development Company Limited
(“Chongqing Longhu Development”) in which the
minority shareholders are Madam Wu Yajun and Mr.
Cai Kui, who are also the ultimate shareholders of the
Company. The Group’s equity interest in Chongqing
Longhu Development has increased from 60% to
91.3% and a discount on deemed acquisition of
RMB620,672,000 which represents the excess of the
share of net assets attributable to the additional
interest acquired over the amount injected was

o 0 e AR RE R HE AN T recognised in special reserve as the contribution from
& - equity owners.
(iv) H At fek s (iv) Other reserve

WEZZ—-FET A=+~
H OOk 4R R > A 4R [ 1 9 2 i ik

A T 4 B TG 2 HE ) 6 I A
AR R (TP ERIR]) ~ BB
HE 1 6 3 B A R A F ([ LA
SREE]) ~ DY) RE I M B R A
BRZA A TV HE A1) B pl o e
I B E A RAE ([HHE
1) 0.7% > 8% ~ 8% K 25%+ 1Mt
e A - ARE R A AR
16,750,0007C A R ¥
72,000,0007C A R ¥
36,000,000 K& A R ¥
520,080,0007C ° % % i i £ 1
Ry RRERS ) A MR SRR B
il 18 A 1 BE B AP E AP
{6 10 2 % H 4% 0% I b i 4 T

2
i o

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group
acquired additional 0.7%, 8%, 8% and 25% of the
registered capital of Xi’an Longhu Jincheng Company
Limited (“Xi'an Jincheng”), Chengdu Longhu Jinhua
Real Estate Company Limited (“Chengdu Jinhua”),
Sichuan Longhu Real Estate Development Company
Limited (“Sichuan Longhu”) and Chengdu Longhu
Tongjin Real Estate Company Limited (“Chengdu
Tongjin”) at a consideration of RMB16,750,000,
RMB72,000,000, RMB36,000,000 and RMB520,080,000
respectively from non-controlling shareholders. These
acquisitions have been accounted for as equity
transactions and the differences between the amounts
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair values of the considerations paid are
recognised directly in other reserve.
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29. % A K il s a0
(b) Bl (a)
4 EERE &)
(v) BEEBRE

29. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Reserves (Continued)
Name nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(v) Statutory surplus reserve

(vi)

8 T ARl D N
A ERARL > ZEHE
A A JE 1) 35 B o e
Wi 4% 08 Rl A9 10% > H 2 i
B E M E A R50% 45 1 o RS
R 1t Af ZEUI 1 A E S N 2 U
e B 2 RIE o 0k BBk A
TR A R A R A B I R 4R
HE 72 B R SR B
W& A Al BN E A o

T ik

TE & fR A 15 WY 51 37(a) BT # 57 JB
H9 7 T A K B T
1y 5 B w5t #) 2 B £y 2 B A F
{f o

In accordance with the articles of association of
certain subsidiaries established in the PRC, these
subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit
after taxation to the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital. Transfer
to this reserve must be made before distributing
dividends to equity owners. The statutory surplus
reserve can be used to make up for previous year’s
losses, expand the existing operations or convert into
additional capital of the subsidiaries.

(vi) Capital contribution reserve

Capital contribution reserve represents the
recognition of the fair value of share awards under
the Pre-IPO share award scheme over the vesting
period as set out in note 37(a).

4% Annual Repore 2010
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S 2 2 B B B« LTS
I8 Y BB (A B 2
I U 5T 0 1 5 o 5 S
W -

7% S B 10 BRSO A IR 2
BUBS B o AR SR T T A0 BR A A HC W 4 15%
I B B 5> TS AT BR 9 2 ()
A B4R A ] A

WaE A BRI B K > A TEED

R
HEE (A SR o UT At B ®
A

R T A4 0 A T 5 DR 465 R 20 AT

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Notes:

1. This represents the tax effect of the temporary difference arising from
the treatment of the government grants between the accounting standard
and the tax bureau. Tax bureau treated the government grants as an
income but for financial reporting purpose, the government grants are
treated as deduction from costs of properties under development for
sale.

2. This represents the tax effect of temporary differences arising from the
deduction of the advertising expense. The Group can deduct its
advertising expense of no more than 15% of its revenue and for the part
that cannot be deducted, if any, it can be brought forward to the future

years.

For the presentation purposes of the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred taxation assets
(liabilities) have been offset. The following is the analysis of
the deferred taxation balances for financial reporting

purposes:
I S 22 —ZENE
2010 2009
AR¥F ANR¥BF T
RMB’000 RMB 000
I JE B IH S Deferred taxation assets 436,035 227,702
% 4 ol JH B A Deferred taxation liabilities (1,593,846) (1,098,807)
(1,157,811) (871,105)

4% Annual Repore 2010
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30 B BLIH ()

RE-B—FF+_H=1+—H  &A%&H
A # N R 187,188,0007C 19 1 51 K B)
o8 T s 4L W P A G 8 R AR B (R
iF 0 KR 155,286,000 © B A AR
131,714,00075 F) fs 45 i 52 15 4 B0 08 28
(ZFFF - ARH103,111,000) ° H
T S T A i R 2R TR o AR 0 et B
T AR H55,474,00000 (= FFJUAE © A
R #52,175,00000) fifE 78 45 4E Bl JH & 7 o
K WERRBL TG 4R A% 1A LA T AR BB

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At December 31, 2010, the Group had unused estimated tax
losses of approximately RMB187,188,000 (2009:
RMB155,286,000) available to offset against future profits.
Deferred taxation assets have been recognised in respect of
approximately RMB131,714,000 (2009: RMB103,111,000) of
such losses. No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining RMB55,474,000 (2009:
RMB52,175,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unrecognised tax losses will expire in the
following years:

R -FE ZERNAE

2010 2009

AREF L A RMF o

RMB’000 RMB’000

TR 2012 1,338 1,338
TE =4 2013 49,820 49,865
e S i 2014 888 972
—E— T4 2015 3,428 —
55,474 52,175

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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31 W J WY O 2% il i 78 4 B 4

)

(ii)

WE_Z—FFE L _H=F—HI
A JE > 7% 4R (W) 1n) I 42 i 1B R R I
LI R SR EE Y1 HE ) B
IR 0.7% > 8% ~ 8% K 25%H) ¥ fit
JBeA > ARAE 5 9 2 A\ R 16,750,000
76~ A R #72,000,0000C A R W
36,000,0007C K A ¥ 520,080,000

j‘D o

A 3 B I 2 o) BE £ 10 2 AR B A R
B e AR 2 ST 8 P 0 A £ 25 % L %
ARE SR TERE > IR AN FIHEA A

BE_EZ-—FF+_HA=F—HI
AERE > AR B LA R 34,000,0007T
1 AR AE B T2 o P R N 5
BEARA AR BATRA -

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

31. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

()

(ii)

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group
acquired additional 0.7%, 8%, 8% and 25% of the
registered capital of Xi’an Jincheng, Chengdu Jinhua,
Sichuan Longhu and Chengdu Tongjin at a considerations
of RMB16,750,000, RMB72,000,000, RMB36,000,000 and
RMB520,080,000 from the non-controlling shareholders.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the Group
acquired additional 8% of the issued share capital of
Changzhou Jia’nan Properties Co., Ltd, at a consideration
of RMB34,000,000 from the non-controlling shareholders.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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32. 38 4 4 A it 3

32. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

33

AR o B AR B A B SR AR
e [ B 2 ] ZH 2 e Oy T O A R
9 50 5 PR ARG B o A2 A B9 o 1B B
Ja& 2 7 1 w4 ALK T R BB IR
R o %A R 8 A8 b O T UM [R) B
BB TFHHFENETH S LE - A
A5 LA B AR PR R B E AT
AR %t B 1E th AL K o

AL BN B A A SR Bt
o P ST B R o wh R Y B A B AR
B EES A > FENRZEANER
1 i 4 o A 2 B 42 AR R BT 4 BRAR 19 5% )

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by the
local municipal government. The Company’s PRC subsidiaries
contribute funds which are calculated on certain percentage
of the average employee salary as agreed by local municipal
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees. The principal obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustee. The Group contributes 5% of

% AT WA o T B A ] A K relevant payroll costs to the scheme and the same amount is
matched by employees.
éﬁa’ﬁ_ F—FHE+ A=t —-H1L#F The Group recognised the retirement benefit contribution of

o A 4L [E il
42,706,000fu (=
36,256,0007C) ©

ﬁADL'ﬁ‘}E}*I 1/\?‘1’}\&%
FENLE D ARM

B0 A

REEWAR > CHRMUTEEMESALE
VB 8 452 T SRAT D LA Y 98 R S 1)
E 5 ¥ 3E 19 B 7 48 41 $  BE K

33.

RMB42,706,000 (2009: RMB36,256,000) for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

The following assets were pledged to secure certain banking
and other facilities granted to the Group and mortgage loans
to buyers of sold properties at the end of the reporting

period:
R R ZEREJE
2010 2009
AR ¥F A R¥F o
RMB’000 RMB 000
B % Investment properties 2,859,277 3,286,338
BRB R EYE Properties under development for sales 10,934,011 8,081,396
FfE &Y% Properties held for sales — 10,553
E KA SR AT A7 3K Pledged bank deposits 499,419 496,208
14,292,707 11,874,495

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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MAEKH 34. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
A Ay LN The Group as a lessor
TR SUATE & TR A F B Contingent rental for certain properties was determined by a
BEBENLETA>LEE - B#E_F— certain percentage of turnover earned by the tenants. The
FAE A = — H R R A contingent rental income recognised during the year ended
HE WA AR ¥67,571,0007T (% December 31, 2010 amounted to approximately
T NRH27,548,00000) © AL RMB67,571,000 (2009: RMB27,548,000). The properties held
FREHERENYEAHPNTF -2 by the Group for rental purpose have committed tenants for
THEMLERF - periods ranging from one to twenty years.
TR IR > AL B BEAF T R At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
AR ARARL B ARIEFT A with tenants for the following future minimum lease
payments:
I S 22 “ELIE
2010 2009
ARWT 7 A BT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
—4E R Within one year 274,200 200,839
B AR R AR In the second to fifth year inclusive
(B 45 7 R W 4F) 562,473 440,797
HAFEAR After five years 359,581 499,981
1,196,254 1,141,617

4% Annual Repore 2010
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MMBERH @

A 5 AR R AL

TA B R > AR BARGE R VT A
T %90 B AL B W 3 SR IR R 2R B AR AR

34. LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following future minimum lease payments under non-

EHIEMT cancelable operating leases in respect of leased properties:
—EFFE “ETNF
2010 2009
AR# T AR ¥ T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
— 4R Within one year 14,583 14,131

AR AR In the second to fifth year inclusive

(B E B M) 33,370 21,951
FAFEAR After five years 3,873 4,663
51,826 40,745

M E R AR S THRAY
FREAT I & o A BT A 0 v
— B TSR &I HE &2
H e o

35. 7%k ¥
R o AREE A DR R

35.

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are negotiated
for an average term of one to twenty years and rentals are
fixed at the date of signing of lease agreements.

COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following commitments:

ZERFE —ZTHE
2010 2009
AR T AR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
E T4 Rk & 4 I % Contracted but not provided for in the
T i B consolidated financial statements:
— SR RE — Expenditure in respect of properties
EAL b3 under development for sales 7,749,357 6,043,737
— [ i — Expenditure in respect of acquisition
i Ji1 HE B9 B 52 of land use rights 7,288,986 8,533,238
— Ui B — [ BB A 7 1Y) — Acquisition of additional interest
M 4 in a subsidiary — 109,100
15,038,343 14,686,075

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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36. KA A

7% 42 ) R A A 1B ) 3 O M A Y 4 4 4R

B AT R AE R > ZEHBRN £
%G:Z FZEFZA=ZFHAHHAN
E%mm&umwﬁ*%%ﬂﬁ'AE
12,686,846,00070) © A%/ Al # 53 A
AR % G BB DR A0 %ﬁﬁm
WRHERRIT AT LR » BAANAEEDL
JIT 9 5T 49 J7 400 T REE R /D > R I
BHRANDEERD IR T —FF K=
FEIET ZH =1 — B R AR
ISR AR -

AEEERATREARAERYER T
ZHRATEHIEAR o LERERIE T
Wy S A IR 4% 48 ) 3 68 T 52 AL B R AT
i BR

i 10 U 1R Mortgage guarantees

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees amounting to approximately
RMB5,204,923,000 (2009: RMB2,686,846,000) as at December
31, 2010 in respect of mortgage bank loans granted to
purchasers of the Group’s properties. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition and the directors of the Company consider that
the possibility of default of the parties involved is remote,
accordingly, no value has been recognised at the inception of
the guarantee contracts and at the end of the reporting period
as at December 31, 2010 and 2009.

Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured
by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees
will be released by banks upon delivery of the properties to
the purchasers or completion of the relevant mortgage
properties registration.

TR R ZERRIAE

2010 2009
AR EF AR ¥F o
RMB’000 RMB 000
5,204,923 2,686,846

4% Annual Repore 2010
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37. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B 1k 22 B

DAHE 25 45 5 B0 JBE 03 B 0 i M
wl &

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:

a.

YA B R Ty 5% B i

A R B T IR U B 3 A £ 8
Wy st B0 (R o % G it ) ) %%ﬁ%
REFFLFET-A=ZTHEZ
WELAZ+— HL@%%%%%
AR o AR SRR > AR R A
NEREELAEE S TRER AL
AR (THER A ]) o e fy 38 i &t
# |5 A5 (18 B M a5 B A N F M 4R —
B B B2 A AR DA R S L
REREAEBMEER

RER —FFLFE+—H =1 H&F
WG E > R EZ LT A=
THERHER ZF—RER
ZNEFTZA=ZT—HMREFEEN
5 B B0 BT W R KRB o R A
32,007,000/% (£ 45 (1 % F %t 1
3,374,500 [ ) 5% 48,010,500/% (€2
5 1) 26 4% 195,061,750 B A7)
g Ak E A 2 R R 0.7% K&
0.93% o SEJE) 15T A 5 S 30 >l B
KA AE TR o B 0 A Y
FAE > AR TR B R S R A
S R H 0 45 A E SR
WE - BB HM A - FEILE
—H—H-

WFE-ZZIFELA =T—HEMNW
FrE REETZREELA=1T—HE
AR R =R R R F N+
ZA = AR R S8 B 1 A
WA 43 Al B 22,500,000 (4245 )
=3 5,522,2508 B ) K
30,000,000/% (& %5 [ # F % 4 1
7,363,000/ B A%) > 43 Bl A & B A A
Al B0 0.449% 12 0.75% o 5% i) B 0 51
HEEH - ARG TR -
55 A I A B 4 T OB B A SR
JRe A3 16 1 o 1 Bt B A Y 25 AR E
ST o HREEH L
#£LH=+—H -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

Pre-IPO share award schemes

The Company’s two Pre-IPO share award schemes (the
“Share Award Schemes”) were adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on November 30, 2007 and July 31,
2009 respectively. Under the Share Award Schemes, the
Company has awarded the Company’s shares (the
“Awarded Shares”) to directors of the Company and
certain employees of the Group. The objective of the
Share Award Schemes is to align the interests of the
employees with those of the Company, to share the pride
of ownership among employees and to reward their
performance and contribution to the Group.

Under the scheme adopted on November 30, 2007, the
total number of shares in respect of which Awarded
Shares had been granted on November 30, 2007 and
remained outstanding was 32,007,000 (including 3,374,500
shares granted to directors) and 48,010,500 (including
5,061,750 shares granted to directors), representing 0.7%
and 0.93% of the shares of the Company at that date, as at
December 31, 2010 and 2009. The Awarded Shares,
subject to a vesting period, are being held by a trust of
the ultimate shareholders. The vesting period is either
four or five years during which the award shares granted
to employee will vest on each anniversary of the first
vesting date in equal portions. The first vesting date is
January 1, 20009.

Under the scheme adopted on July 31, 2009, the total
number of shares in respect of which Awarded Shares had
been granted on July 31, 2009 and remained outstanding
was 22,500,000 (including 5,522,250 shares granted to
directors) and 30,000,000 (including 7,363,000 shares
granted to directors), representing 0.44% and 0.75% of the
shares of the Company at that date, as at December 31,
2010 and 2009. The Awarded Shares, subject to a vesting
period, are being held by a trust of the ultimate
shareholders. The vesting period is four years during
which the award shares granted to employee will vest on
each anniversary of the first vesting date in equal
portions. The first vesting date is July 31, 2010.
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37. DA BC Ay 2 FE B i 1 3k 58 )

37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(#) (Continued)
DIRE 35 45 55 00 I 4 S8 8D s Bt HE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
i (G ) (Continued)
a. IR BR BB R r 5E L a. Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)
(#)

REEZLFET—H=ZTHE-%
FHELA =+ —H TR RGN
nHE P ¥ AT E R A N R
116,050,000t &% A R ¥ 71,250,000
TG TR B E W RGO
AR R RE e 8 B KR O B IR
o AR F 22 B A RN R
HHBE A EATE - BEHIRE
2~ I J e AR R 2R % U 2 o D
T T [F) 28 W 22 i B T4 ED Y A AR
JEE A8 % U8 WG T 4L

BE_F-FER_FFAFEFZ
A=+— EIJtEEz’ZIS’AﬁjﬁJtﬁEﬁ

A ) S Y B BB A3 2 A e N B R
62,157,0007C K& A B % 39,861,0007C
R S o A2 ) A Y B BB 493 A DA e
AR AR RE R AT BLAT B 0
B - A B SRR MR B 0 k-

The weighted average fair values of the shares granted
on November 30, 2007 and July 31, 2009 were
RMB116,050,000 and RMB71,250,000 respectively and
were determined using a mix of asset-based and
market approach with option-based pricing model is
adopted to account for the vesting condition. The
significant inputs into the model were estimated fair
value of shares at the grant date, expected dividend
pay out rate, annual risk-free rate and volatility rate.
The volatility is measured based on past years
historical price volatility of similar companies listed on
the SEHK.

The Group recognised an expense of RMB62,157,000
and RMB39,861,000 for the years ended December 31,
2010 and 2009 respectively in relation to shares
awarded by the Company. The shares awarded by the
Company will be settled with the existing shares held
by the trust of the ultimate shareholders. Accordingly,
the respective amounts were credited to capital
contribution reserve.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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37. DA IR Ay B 2R Y A 5k 3 B 37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(#) (Continued)
DL HE 25 45 5800 I 4 S h % ot E Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
At o) (Continued)
a. B KO B BB R G 5 D a. Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)
(#)
A I BT 45t 0y 58 B 22 Ak ek R Ak The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during
W - the year are as follows:
e A 25 i 9 H

Number of 5 &1

share awards  Vesting Conditions

1) ¥ 4% R S
Share Awards granted to directors:
—-RZEFZLEL—-A=FH BREAPREE ZFTHE—-H—HRB25%
— on November 30, 2007 6,749,000  25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
ARHAMEE —F—FFE—H— 5 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
BREAMEE - F——F—H—H25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
AREAMEE 2 ——4F—HA—H7%25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012
- R-ZFFAFLA=+—H ARHEREE - F-FELA=+—HH25%
— on July 31, 2009 7,363,000  25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2010
AR HMEE - ——FEA=+—H%25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2011
BREHEMEE T —FLH=1—HH25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2012
AROAMEE “F-=FLH=+—H%25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2013
1] 1§ B 4% i i 03 52 )
Share Awards granted to employees:
—-RZEFZLEL—-A=FH BREAPREE ZFTHE-H—HRA25%
— on November 30, 2007 57,265,000  25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009

ARHAMEE —F—FFE -5 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
BREAMEE - F——F—H—H25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
AREAMEE 2 ——4F—HA—H7%25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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37. DA B s 2R W Y 4 K K 5 37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(#4) (Continued)
DA HE 25 45 S0 I Ay 5 D Bt HE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
aHE (Continued)
a. B KA B BB Ry 5 D a. Pre-IPO share award schemes (Continued)
(%)
Jie A 25 it 9 H

Number of i J& &1k

share awards  Vesting Conditions

-RZEFNFLA=1T—H AREEMREE T -FELA=+—HA25%

- on July 31, 2009 22,637,000  25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2010
B AMEE T ——FLA=+—H%25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2011
HEEAMEE T LH=1+—H%25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2012
BREAMREE - F-=ZFLA=+—H%25%
25% from the date of grant to July 31, 2013

AETNE—HA—H

T2t 2 M 173 46 T 4
Total share awards as at

January 1, 2009 94,014,000
A E 5
Vested during the year (16,003,500)

R ZBERET A —H

oK i
Outstanding as at

December 31, 2009 78,010,500
R E b
Vested during the year (23,503,500)

A ZE-FET A=A
(BN 3
Outstanding as at
December 31, 2010 54,507,000

4% Annual Repore 2010
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

37. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B Ak 22 B

(%)
DA RE 25 45 53 000 JRe 0y S Jh B Bt
En-E 4

b. KA PR B A i B RE

E NN R /N R 2
# T U0 B % 6 i s TR e =t ) )
TIMER —EFELE+—H=1H
Lﬁm R RERER S > £2H

NERALEESR RS EIIEE#
1 BERY o T E R R —FE L
Er— A=+ HEALERGE K
WE B S 2 B ([ BT H
1) 0 A — 7 2 H Ok 1 R
B o MR RO B T R
AE o AAE RHMEARESRD
452 W] R A ) A 1 i SRR o
TR o B A R T ) B R
Az HE A 104 -

RE-ZZLFEL—H=1TH, O
ﬁ%%@ﬁ&&%%aﬁﬂymmm
i (’a%ﬁ%%?&%& 15,588, oooﬂﬁﬁi
) o RZF—FERZEZJFEL
—H=+— Hﬁ%ﬁﬁ&%%%%
U P HE T ) 2 % B T A7 A AT A Y
it T B A B E 432,940,000/
37,940,000/ » i —F—FER
ZRHEFZH =+ — A AL FK&h
190.64% & 0.74% °

R A7 AR o O A B i i
B K A 2 ] i H At R RE s
T H 1 P A7 i PR R AT R AR AT A AR
oy E By > R BRI BT H
BN A B AT IR AR 10% © 1
YRS B % 6 0 I AR BT 0 89 40 4 A7
ifE 25 6.46% 70 > R _FFIF—H
— H £ 2.943 TG ©

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
(Continued)

b. Pre-IPO share option scheme

The Company’s Pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on November 30, 2007 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees of the Group, and options can only be offered
and granted from November 30, 2007 until the business
date before the date on which dealings in the Company’s
share first commence on the SEHK (“the Listing Date”).
Under the Pre-IPO share Option Scheme, the directors of
the Company and its subsidiaries were granted options to
subscribe for shares in the Company. The term of the Pre-
IPO share Option Scheme is 10 years from the date of
adoption.

On November 30, 2007, 37,940,000 shares (including
15,588,000 shares granted to directors) of option were
granted. The number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at December
31, 2010 and 2009 was 32,940,000 and 37,940,000,
representing 0.64% and 0.74% of the shares of the
Company as at December, 2010 and 2009.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and other share option
schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of the
aggregate of the shares of the Company in issue at the
Listing Date. The exercise price of the Pre-IPO Share
Option initial at HK$6.46 and amended to HK$2.94
effective from January 1, 2009.
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37. DA B Ay 2 B 0 B Ak &2 B 37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(% (Continued)
DA RE 25 45 S50 1 SR 3 SE I Ft EE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
ARl ) (Continued)
b, R B B I R ) b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)
()

R AT o AR T O 2 B T I T
wt ) B A A ) 1) 5 At R S 2
5 T A7 A A7 (8 B4 i A 6 e R o el
REZEAT I I (0 BB M 2 TR FRAE » A
15 8 48 AN IR £ B AT I 1 19 30% o

W IR Y B B R

25% : HigHz AR BE R
—H—H

25% : HigHiz s —F 45
—H—H

25% : Az HEs —F——14F
—H—H

25%: HfEHzZ HEEE —F— 4
—H—H

HE-F-FTEF+-H=+—H1
AERE > R SE B AR A AR IR
A B 165 O B MR e R A S A R
#11,730,0007C (ZEENE : AR
#12,941,0007C) °

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and other share option scheme of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to

time.
The vesting period of the share options is as follows:

25%: from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
25%: from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
25%: from the date of grant to January 1, 2011

25%: from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB11,730,000 (2009: RMB12,941,0000) for the year
ended December 31, 2010 in relation to Pre-IPO share
options granted by the Company.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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37. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B Ak 22 B

(#)
DAHE 25 45 0 10 JBE 73 S I I
AhE )
b. KA PR B A i B RE
(%)
AF R B4 i B A RE 2 M R AR A
o
Ji I HE 4 H
Number of
Options
1] 5 S 57 1A
Share Options granted to directors:
-RZFFLEF-A=TH
- on November 30, 2007 15,588,000
1] fE B 52 i O
Share Options granted to employees:
-RZZFFLEF—-A=1H
- on November 30, 2007 22,352,000

Equity-settled
(Continued)

(Continued)

b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

the year are as follows:

B i o

Vesting Conditions

ARHAMEZ—FFAE—A—HA 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
ARH A MEEF—FE—~A—HA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
ARH I HREE - F——F—~A—H A 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
ARHAMERE —F——F—A—HA 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

AEH I MEE_FFNE~HA—H A 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2009
A A EE % —FE A4 25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2010
ARHAMEE —F——F—A—HA25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2011
ARG APREE-F—-—F—J—HH25%
25% from the date of grant to January 1, 2012

share award/share option

37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

schemes:

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during

T £ 2 51

Contractual
life of
options

iE
10 years
T4
10 years
i
10 years
iE
10 years

T4
10 years
4
10 years
i
10 years
T4
10 years

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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37. DA BC Ay 2 FE B i 1 3k 58 )

(#)

DI HE 25 45 5000 I 5 B M PRt E
i@

b.

U4 BA 8 T AR it
(#)

CEEAFT AR
A

Total share options at December

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
(Continued)

b. Pre-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

S £ 44 47 40

TR Contractual
Number of 5 & 5 ff life of
Options  Vesting Conditions options

31, 2009 37,940,000
SERATRE (5T
Exercised during the year (Note) (5,000,000)
“E-FELTAEFHW
Jil T HE A8
Total share options at December
31, 2010 32,940,000
AZREAEF A AT
Exercisable at December 31, 2009 9,485,000
“E-RES AT -HAE
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 13,970,000

WFEE - R AT 6E E AT 3 B0 4 7.96
I o

ER/ONGE & XY e ]
AN V) IR B AR R R
B ([ U PR B B 4% s SRR st b))
TIRBER —ZFZNET AT =
HAamm —H R BTN F 5
HWESAEBRESRRA EEIER
RALAEE o AR E KA BB E R
IR HERE B > AR A ) R LB 4 R
= AT AR AR A R A7 Y R
T o B BB E R IR B B
TN 2 H A 104 -

Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$

7.96.

c.  Post-IPO share option scheme

The Company’s Post-IPO share option scheme (the “Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on December 23, 2009 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees of the Group. Under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme, the directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries were granted options to subscribe for shares
in the Company. The term of the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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37. DA B Ay 2 FE 08 B Ak 22 B

(#)

DA RE 25 45 53 000 JRe 0y S Jh B Bt

s . @)

c. T IRZ PR BB BB S
(#45)
RZZZNEFZAZ+T=ZH B
&ﬂﬁm%mmwm%%wm%%
e R —E—FFR _FFZNFT
“A=t-HAREERARBEER
U e HE T ) 2 % B A7 A A A Y
Ji HE ¥ Je 1 1 B E %% 10,600,000/
(@%h%%ﬁ&%mm&&
) > AN TR ZF—FE R
%n¢+;ﬁ:+éa&wm
0.21% ©

AT AR 8 % st ) S A A A At
%&%%%%%&&m&a%&%

REBEAT 9 A28 A et 0 8 > A
ﬁﬁ@miﬁa%ﬁﬁﬂaﬁﬁ&
A 10% o T IR B B B 42 I i
TP AT {6 1 2 8,445 T -

IR A7 e AR o O A B A I

RS )R At B R HE ST I 2

$52 T AT R A7 08 1 O A B R T T
REEEAT M P BB M 2 IREE > A
15 8 AR IR 35 AT B 19 30%

I Tl E 1 i B R A T

25% : HEEHMZ HiEE —F—FF
+ZA=+=H

25%: B ZHREE T ——4F
+-H=+=H

25% : HEEHZ HiltE =% — 4
TZAZ+=H

25% : HEEHZ HlEE = F— =14
+ZA=+=H

WE-_E-FF+_A=1T—HIt
Go RN S b NI E g O]
HE i 58 48 30 A R 5 20,880,000
(ZZZIAF - AR ¥430,0000) °

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:
(Continued)

c. Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

On December 23, 2009, options to subscribe 10,600,000
shares were granted. The number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained
outstanding under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as
at December 31, 2010 and 2009 was 10,600,000 (including
9,600,000 shares granted to directors), representing 0.21%
of the shares of the Company as at December 31, 2010
and 2009.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the scheme and other share option schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate of the
shares of the Company in issue at the Listing Date. The
exercise of the Post-IPO Share Option is HK$8.44.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme and other share option scheme of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time.

The vesting period of the share options is as follows:

25%: from the date of grant to December 23, 2010
25%: from the date of grant to December 23, 2011
25%: from the date of grant to December 23, 2012

25%: from the date of grant to December 23, 2013

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB20,880,000 (2009: RMB430,000) for the year ended
December 31, 2010 in relation to share options granted by
the Company.
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(Continued)

(%
DA BE 25 45 55 000 JBe 0y S Jh W Bt
G- E 7
c. HIRZ BH BB I B S c.
(#)
AN T 5% I R 2 M T Mk R
I
S I 1 4
Number of
Options
I 3 4% 1 W M

Share Options granted to directors:

Equity-settled
(Continued)

share award/share option

Post-IPO share option scheme (Continued)

the year are as follows:

37.SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

schemes:

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during

i I 40 47 40

Contractual

i O life of
Vesting Conditions options

-REZFFAFETAZT=H ARHAMBE-F-FFE+ A=A R 25% T4
- on December 23,2009 9,600,000  25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
ARG AMEE T ——F+ A +=HA25% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
AREHEER —F—F+ A +=HE25% e
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
HRHAMEE T =6+ " A-+=H 5 25% HE
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
1] g B #5% th i -
Share Options granted to employees:
-REFFAELAZTZH ARMANERE - F—-FE+ A -+ =HH25% 4
- on December 23,2009 1,000,000  25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
ARG AMEE - F——F+ A=+ =0k 25% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
AREHEER —F—-F+ A +=HE25% e
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
ARHAMEZE —F =4+ A +=H525% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
JiE B HE 4
Total share options 10,600,000
WEEERETZHA ZF—H A4 f
Exercisable at December 31, 2009 —
RoFE—FREL A=+ — Al
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 2,650,000

4% Annual Repore 2010
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38. W H TR 5 38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AR S i S IR O B R I B k24 K27 Apart from the balances with related parties set out in the
) A 2 7 45 8% A o AF A > A 4 BRI consolidated statement of financial position, and in notes 24
L IAY S DN and 27, during the year, the Group entered into the following

significant transactions with its related parties:

(a) 3t W] ¥ ) (a) Jointly controlled entities
e S 22 “ERIE
2010 2009
AR¥ T ANRWBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
EL R Sales of properties 1,744 35,564
EEE A ON Consultancy fee income 13,588 13,000
Wy 2E 5 S A Property management income 7,013 4,708
(b) FEEHE KRR (b) Key management and shareholders
e S 2.2 “ERIE
2010 2009
AR T 7 ARWBT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
1) E 22 4 BUE e SBOR Sales of properties to key management
W % and shareholders 18,931 33,423

(c) HWAENT A KR AL ) 3 B () The remuneration paid and payable to the key
J& (I8 By A /0 W) 1) 26 ) 10 385 O o management of the Company who are also the directors
BEFEELL © of the Company for the year is set out in note 11.

d) ZEZFNLEAA=Z1H > KEHGK (d) On June 30, 2009, the Group issued a financial guarantee
BR Ty R VTR 7 N W) R 4 R of HK$100,000,000 to a bank in respect of loans granted
INES AN W HBE A B R R4 to a related party, Dujiangyan Qingcheng Co., of which
%08 FOm [ — K R AT B two directors are common to the Company and have
100,000,000 7 (1 B 75 45 {% - %45 beneficial interests. The guarantee was fully released
RERNZFZNE+_A=+—H before December 31, 2009.

il 25 B B -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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39. % Al B 4 B

A 5 T T A LR R A 4 T 1Y) B B
FRAAEE > [F) F 725 08 1A (505 S e AR &5
EY SR S ONTE &

A G TR R LA R TR (LA
(AR ) B RE28 48 5% 119 £ ) ~ Bl S
A%E%@?U&?&“?%ﬁ/\ﬁﬂﬁ%

(LFECB|ITMA - MHLRE
%'J :

A v B B AN o fE R
FH A — W > AL A EEE FEAN
A B S BB AE B R B > I BR UE
CRLVIREUE 3 S e A

40. 4 T 1

a. &R ITHER

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes, where appropriate, the borrowings disclosed in note
28, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital, and take appropriate actions to
balance its overall capital structure.

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

R R ZERIAF
2010 2009
AR T AR ¥ F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
4 & Financial assets
A it E R Available-for-sale investments 8,600 8,600
B S BB KR (] ?‘E Loans and receivables (including
&R &% ED cash and cash equivalents) 11,257,000 7,686,018
4 b Financial liabilities
145 85 B A Amortised cost 22,745,641 12,656,244

4% Annual Repore 2010
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40. 2@ LR @) 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
b. &l B B E AR S BOR b.

AR T T L4 T WUk
B LAt e ORKE - R (RE D) B
7R - BRI RAT B BT
REBR B &~ MEAT MR DL KRAT R
HAb AR B o 3% % & T H a5 #
JA 25 AR RE B 5E o BR% 5F Sl TR AR
] R e e 9 1 2% 5 Ja B ) BESRE A
JATF 3T o B R B R
Bix LA HE £ AE 81 IR A 50 3t R O 5
i

i 35 JB B
AEBNEY LB R RED
51 W I 5 30 D, e e 6 £ L B
F T 45 LB (5 30

74 42 4 4 o 0 T3 L
B AR % R ) o
K5 -

A 3R Jal B

S SR AT A7 SR AR AT A A R (4
BUAT T 35 ) 2 B AR 4% b BN R SR AT
BT R e 5t 0 P B R B 1B
T35 R S By > R A 4R
B4 il & ) 2% S B o

AL A TEMNZE R EEED
AR R AT A7 KA B 4% [ B & S
ZRAT B H AR AT B o A B
IR S 406 1) A ] A3 A LB &) 3 b
T 1 A R R By o SR > B HEJE
iR A TR R SR N )
B o

A% S ) T 36 B PR BT BRL B
JEU B R R A I RE O B
B B — B -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include accounts
and other receivables, amounts due from (to) related
parties, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
accounts payable, and bank and other borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are set out in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose primarily to the market
risks of changes in interest rates, foreign currency

exchange rates risks and other price risk (see below).

There has been no significant change to the Group’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk over the year.

Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on
bank deposits and bank and other borrowings which
carried at prevailing market interest rates and variable
rate based on the interest rates quoted by the People’s
Bank of China.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to pledged bank deposits and bank and other borrowings
which carried fixed interest rate. The Group currently
does not use any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. However, the management
will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.
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40. &8 T H @)

C.

i 35 J& B (40
) R R B 4 B (4)
VeS¢ 93

DL B0 RE 2 A7 ) 2 7 e TR T
HEUFE ARG EZ R HETA
(SR AT f5 B SELARAT JOH A k) A
JaL B LA B f S R A 1 R K 1 2
ST HRBERERT AL - 2
EINEES S-S DN=Y 3 FIES:
%H%*%‘Uﬂﬁzooﬁ%%ﬁ (B AT X

oAl & 50T F) K T+ Bk 10018 28 (38
AT ) R EE . B AR

Vil nﬂiﬁﬁﬁﬁ}iﬂm{%?ﬁku&ﬁﬁﬁ
TR R RE S B -

AR AR ﬁﬁ%lziﬂ/wﬂzoo
2 3 ORISR A7 B L Al i K

1T J A A 58 O 5 R 5 EJ¢%
P 4F 1A MR RSB S e o T
BEAMAZEB(ZETNE
F) -

[ | Ktﬂ/?ﬁ%moﬁl%%ﬁ
CRESRAT A7 3K &) > 1 7 A AL At 58
HAERE AR EW%@WE:
ZET A=+ —HILFEFEREN
i Al ﬂ%fﬁbu/ﬁfl\ﬁ’])\ﬁe*ﬁ%‘
73,973,0007C ( ZIAE - ARK
51,012,0007n> o
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analyses below have been prepared based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments carried at variable rates (bank balances and
bank and other borrowings) at the end of the reporting
period and assuming the financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole year. A 200 basis point increase or decrease for
bank and other borrowings and a 100 basis point increase
or decrease for bank deposit are used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represent management’s assessment of the possible
change in interest rate in respect of bank and other
borrowings and bank deposits respectively.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had
been increased/decreased by 200 basis points in respect
of bank and other borrowings and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year would
not be affected as interest expenses would be fully
capitalised (2009: Nil).

In addition, if interest rate had been increase/decrease of
100 basis points in respect of bank deposits, with all
other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year would increase/decrease by approximately
RMB73,973,000 (2009: RMB51,012,000) for the years
ended December 31, 2010.

4% Annual Repore 2010
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40. &8 T H @)

C.

i 5 BB 4

AW B 4 B

A5 1 2 T A 2 LA R W
A BB B 32 (R 6 4 2E 85 8
GEGE NS - N wI VYN
WAt -

A5 B A A7 o T LSRR R (E R SC
gy o TR BT M 3 B By o A
P B30 1R SI7 0 A 8 3B 3 BOSR o R
L A B SIS A R B
B 7% 55 B i KRR -

A G T 45 2 F 3 DLAN B S

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management

The Group collects all of its revenue in RMB and most of
the expenditures including expenditures incurred in
property sales as well as capital expenditures are also
denominated in RMB.

The Group undertakes certain transactions denominated
in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate
fluctuations arises. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency

B E KB A R IR T (A denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
o the respective reporting date are as follows:
TR —EFNE
2010 2009
AR# T AR¥ETT
RMB’000 RMB 000
% Assets
%5t USD 69,040 1,020,637
i HKD 361,272 2,077,520
—ERFE “EENE
2010 2009
AR¥T T AR ¥
RMB’000 RMB 000
A Liabilities
W T HKD 2,657,729 1,086,464

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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LR 0 T A 5 A R B 1 A
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DL e A1 R 22 719 5% 58 380 © 5% 4% F)
1 B IR B NS
JE B 1 B R R R 2 o Sl A A LT
A I FEE 2R 4 341w BB 42 B 1) R4 o MK
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

C.

Market risk (Continued)
Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange
fluctuation of USD and HKD against RMB.

The following table details of the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes bank
borrowings as well as bank balances and pledged bank
deposits denominated in foreign currencies. A positive/
(negative) number indicates an increase/(decrease) in
profit for the year where the RMB strengthens against the
relevant currencies. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit for the year.

—2-%E  —TEAR
2010 2009
AR T AR ¥ T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
Epn UsD
4 JE Vi A1) Profit for the year (3,452) (51,032)
Wt HKD
A J8E ¥ A Profit for the year 114,823 (49,553)
Al 15T A B Other price risks

A G2 T [ w] A o B0 T S
Bjaby o R EEER AL A
TG S S P 0 28 J g B ok

The Group is exposed to equity price risks through its
available-for-sale investments. However, the management
considers that the Company’s exposure to fluctuation in
equity price is minimal.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

€.

Credit risk management

At each of the end of the reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees
issued by the Group is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
amount of contingent liabilities disclosed in note 36. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the monitoring
procedures are carried out to ensure that follow up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews regularly the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables and amounts due
from related parties at the end of the reporting period.
The amounts presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position are net of allowances for bad and
doubtful debts, estimated by the Group’s management
based on prior experience and their assessment of the

current economic environment.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or state-owned
banks in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk,
in which exposure is spread over a number of
counterparties and customers.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

€.

Credit risk management (Continued)

For properties that are presold but development has not
been completed, the Group typically provides guarantees
to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties
for an amount up to 70% of the purchase price of the
individual property. If a purchaser defaults on the
payment of its mortgage during the period of guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to
repay the outstanding loan and any interest accrued
thereon. Under such circumstances, the Group is able to
forfeit the sales deposit received and resell the
repossessed properties. Therefore, the management
considers the Group would likely recover any loss
incurred arising from the guarantees. The management
considers the credit risk exposure to financial guarantees
provided to property purchasers is limited because the
facilities are secured by the properties and the market
price of the properties is higher than the guaranteed
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and the flexibility through
the use of borrowings. The directors of the Company
closely monitor the liquidity position and expect to have
adequate sources of funding to finance the Group’s
projects and operations.

The following table details the Company’s expected
remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities based on agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Company can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

4% Annual Repore 2010




A B 0 2 A B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

40. ﬁﬂlﬁ () 40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
f. WHE SR @ f. Liquidity risk (Continued)
i A1) BV By R R IR B To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
S A WAk YR IR R R R EE A discounted amount is derived from existing at rates at the

end of the reporting period.

#-%-%

£+2H
T =4—H AHBEE
A% Wk iR A
Weighted  Carrying Total
average amountat O0Z60H 612180H 181%365H 1228 2%3%  H#3% undiscounted
interest December 31, 0-60  61to180 181 to 365 12 23 Over cash
rate 2010 days days days years years 3 years flows

ARBTE ARBTE ARMTE ARWTL ARETFL AREFL AREFL AREFL
RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO

AitB Non-interest bearing 5,421,282 004,982 1,009,444 2,966,855 120,001 - — 5,421,282
EHIH Fixed interest rate instruments 494% 5,465,269 251,776 1,295,711 967,036 515,099 703311 2,557,737 6,290,670
BEIE Variable interest rate instruments 5.33% 11,859,090 116,416 182,896 917,497 4709923 6,850,655 463,008 13,240,455
HHERALY Financial guarantee contract 5,204,923 = — 5204923 = = — 5204923

27,950,564 1,033,174 3,148,051 10,056311 5345023 7,553,960 3,020,805 30,157,330

AZEEN

2]
mEry  =t+-H AMBE
ME  WRER REAH
Weighted Carrying Total
average  amountat  0E60H (1E180H 181%365H 1524 2583 @3 undiscounted
interest December 31, 060 61t 180 18110365 12 23 Over cash
rate 2009 days days days years years 3 years flows

ARETT ARETE ARETT ARWTT ARKTT ARETT ARBTT ARKTI
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO

AitB Non-interest bearing 2,890,739 910,669 267,035 1,593,035 120,000 = — 2890739
EHIR Fixed interest rate instruments 5.15% 2,809,405 9,171 143,175 568,489 382,908 738825 1,081,400 3,524,028
BEIE Variable interest rate instruments 5601% 6,896,100 31756 2,143,766 903307 176788 2206317 — 7373004
HHERALY Financial guarantee contract 2,080,846 = — 2,680,846 = = — 2,680,846

1533090 127159 25%976 5751677 2210826 29450142 1681400 16474617

bR Al s FE LESE The amounts included above for variable interest rate
FH [ TF B A R A ) A [R] R R instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
R T 18 5 Y ) 2 A it 4 o8 1 subject to change if changes in variable interest rates

differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

f.

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The amounts included above for financial guarantee
contracts are the maximum amounts the Group could be
required to settle under the arrangement for the full
guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed by the
counterparty to the guarantee. Based on expectations at
the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that
it is more likely than not that no amount will be payable
under the arrangement. However, this estimate is subject
to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables
held by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer
credit losses.

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial guarantee contracts on initial

recognition is determined based on the present value
of expected payments when default, where the main
assumptions are the probability of default by the
specified counterparty extrapolated from market-based
credit information and the amount of loss, given the
default; and

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial

liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis.

Except for the bond with fair value disclosed in note 28,
the directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated statement
of financial positions approximate their respective fair
values at the end of the reporting period.
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41. 08 2 v ~ 3t ) ¥ o) B i 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
B WG 8 4y vl i wF CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES
R-F-EER_FZAET A=+ Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, jointly
—H o AN M AR L E controlled entities and associates at December 31, 2010 and
R EA RSN 2009 are as follows:

SR RAR
FEM AL/ ek /A A&
R b AEAENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BEnE
M4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Placeof — FE%H
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“ERE CETNE
2010 2009
il VA
Subsidiary
EREEEHARAR (Hika) Gl 93.5% 93.5%  sEMER AR HH BHES
Beijing Dezhuo Trade Company PRC 20,000,0007¢ PRC Trading of construction
Limited (note ) 6 Z IN materials
20,000,0007c
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
EREREEARAR (B Gilz| 91.3% 91.3%  aHMEAARE Gl ES
Beijing Huicheng Investment PRC 10,000,0007c PRC Propetties development
Limited (note b) YN
10,000,000
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
e AR AR 4 A A 7 (W 3Ea) Gilz| 91.3% 913%  sEMEAARY Gl FE%£E
Beijing Longhu Chengheng PRC 2,000,007 PRC House decoration
Decoration Company Limited BRBRAARY
(note a) 2,000,007z
Registered
RMB2,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB2,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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B W2 2 v G o)
AL/
RR A4 R A e
Place of Equity interest
kL incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
“-%F “FEAF
2010 2009
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
M ERARAR (H7Eb HE 89.9% 89.9%
Beijing Longhu Properties PRC
Company Limited (note b)
O e B M A A A (W ita) HE 90.0% 90.0%
Beijing Longhu Property Service PRC
Company Limited (note a)
IRENEEERARAD (Wit FR 91.3%  91.3%
Beijing Longhu nghua PRC

Property Company Limited
(note b)

B B U 5 R B
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For the year ended December 31, 2010

oH#fT kAR
Bk /G E A
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

GAUN-C YN
1,000,000,0007¢
e YN
1,000,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000

AN EINT
5,000,0007C
BEBANRE
5,000,0007C
Registered
RMB5,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000

M ER AR
500,000,0007

E 4R INNLS
500,000,0007C
Registered
RMB3500,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB500,000,000

BEpE
Place of
operation

G
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

EEEH

Principal activities

RS T IE T Il
Properties development
and provision of
consultancy service

wEEA

Properties management

WERE

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2010
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A1. B0 )8 2 v ~ b ) ¥ o) £ 8 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
BB 88 2wl 1 E G ) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continied)
CRITRA R
it/ Bk /G E A
L REMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest ~ fully paid AR
kL incorporation/ attributable o share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“F-E CBTAE
2010 2009
WA ()
Subsidiary (Continued)
M EEARA T (Wita) il 91.3% 91.3% s EAARK HE S
Beijing Longhu Shidai Properties ~ PRC 1,400,000,0007c PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) e YN
1,400,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB1,400,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB,400,000,000
JREMAATEEARAR (Wita) il 91.3% 91.3% M EAARY TH ES S
Beijing Longhu Tianxing Properties  PRC 000,000,0007¢ PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) e YN
600,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB600,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB600,000,000
R EE A RAR (Wit il 91.3% 91.3%  aEMEAARY TH ES S
Beijing Longhu Zhongbai PRC 1,500,000,0007¢ PRC Properties development
Properties Company Limited NG
(note a) 1,500,000,0007z
Registered
RMB1,500,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,500,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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36 I 4l 20 1

BB 8% A v ik
AL/
B A4 R A e
Place of Equity interest
kL incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
“-%F “FEAF
2010 2009
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
A MR E A A A (i) 8 91.3% 91.3%
Beijing Mengke Properties PRC
Co., Ltd. (note a)
HMERERARAA (ita) HE 93.4% 85.1%
Changzhou Jia'nan Properties PRC
Co., Ltd. (note a)
FAREH L0 E A RA R (3D HE 95.6% 95.6%
Chengdu Beicheng Real Estate PRC

Company Limited (note b)

B B U 5 R B
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oH#fT kAR
Bk /G E A
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

GAUN-C YN
600,000,0007¢
e YN
000,000,0007
Registered
RMB600,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB600,000,000

AN EINT
370,000,0007¢
BEBANRE
370,000,0007C
Registered
RMB370,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB370,000,000

M ER AR
670,000,0007¢

E 4R INNLS
070,000,007
Registered
RMB670,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB670,000,000

BEpE
Place of
operation

G
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

EEEH

Principal activities

RS T IE T Il
Properties development
and provision of
consultancy service

ES 3

Properties development

WERE

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2010
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A1. B0 )8 2 v ~ b ) ¥ o) £ 8 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
BB 88 2wl 1 E G ) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
CRITRA R
AL/ Rk /it &
L AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest ~ fully paid AR
kL incorporation/ attributable o share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“F-%E CTTAE
2010 2009
R AR (4
Subsidiary (Continued)
WA RS E AR A il 91.3% 91.3% s EAARK HE S
(T AREER]) (H3ED) PRC 30,000,0007¢ PRC Propeties development
Chengdu Jiaxun Investment e YN
Company Limited 30,000,0007¢
(“Chengdu Jiaxun”) (note b) Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000
BAREE AL (Hita) Gl 93.5% 93.5% s EAARY HE BHES
Chengdu Jinteng Trade Company ~ PRC 20,000,000 PRC Trading of construction
Limited (note a) e YN materials
20,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
MAENHEEEARAR (B3 il 94.2% 80.2%  sEMEAARY HE ES
Chengdu Longhu Jinhua Real PRC 100,000,000 PRC Propetties development
Estate Company Limited (note b) NG
100,000,0007
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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41, B B 2> W] ~ % ) e ol R
BB 8% A v ik
AL/
B A4 R A e
Place of Equity interest
kL incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
“-%F “FEAF
2010 2009
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
RN ERBEARAT (Wita)  HH 91.04%  91.04%
Chengdu Longhu Property PRC
Services Company Limited
(note a)
AR R B AT A A (B RED) Gl 93.5% 08.5%
Chengdu Longhu Tongjin Real PRC
Estate Company Limited
(note b)
AT EE A RA A (ko) 1 91.3% 91.3%
Chengdu Xixi Real Estate PRC

Company Limited (note a)

oH#fT kAR
Bk /G E A
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

GAUN-C YN
5,000,000
e YN
5,000,0007
Registered
RMB3,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB5,000,000

AN EINT
966,549,8057¢
BEBANRE
966,549,8657¢
Registered
RMBY966,549,805
Paid up capital
RMB966,549,865

M ER AR
335,000,0007C

E 4R INNLS
335,060,0007
Registered
RMB335,060,000
Paid up capital
RMB335,660,000

BEpE
Place of
operation

G
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

EEEH

Principal activities

RS ¢!

Properties management

ES 3

Properties development

WERE

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2010
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A1. B0 )8 2 v ~ b ) ¥ o) £ 8 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
B0k % 2 v i w0 CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
CRITRA R
AL/ Rk /it &
L B AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest ~ fully paid AR
kL incorporation/ attributable o share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“F-%E CTTAE
2010 2009
R AR (4
Subsidiary (Continued)
MR ERARAA (Hia) il 91.3% 91.3% s EAARK i S
Chengdu Xixiang Real Estate PRC 436,370,0007C PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) e YN
436,370,0007¢
Registered
RMB436,370,000
Paid up capital
RMB436,370,000
Ml EAERAR (Hia) il 93.5% 93.5%  wEfEA i BIEEE
Chengdu Yuanbo Gardening PRC AR #20,000,0006  PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Co., Ltd (note 2) B A
AR #20,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
ERELEMERERAMAR (b 8 91.3% 913%  aMtEA Gl ET Y
Chongging Beilonghu Property PRC AR#700,000,0007  PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note b) BREBRA
AR #700,000,0007
Registered
RMB700,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB700,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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41008 2 v ~ 3t ) ¥ o) B i 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
B W6 8 4 vl ik o) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
CRITRAR
it/ Rk /it g &
B % REMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid AR
kL incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Placeof — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
st R L
2010 2009
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
ERf LS EARA A (W) G| 91.3%  913%  EMEAARK i WERRE
Chongqing Henghong Investment ~ PRC 10,000,007 PRC Properties development
Inc. (note b) BRBANRE
10,000,0007C
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000
ERFENEREARAA Wb il 93.5% 935%  AMEAARE HE E2id
Chongging Juntion Real Estate PRC 778,000,0007C PRC Properties development
Development Inc. (note b) BRBANRE
778,000,0007
Registered
RMB778,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB778,000,000
A HE 91.3% o13%  AMEAARYE HE E2id
ARA T (Bzka) PRC 1,000,000,0007 PRC Propeties development
Chongging Longhu Chengheng BRBANRE
Real Estate Development Inc. 1,000,000,0007c
(note a) Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000

4% Annual Repore 2010
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BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

AL KB 2wl > 36 Il o T

BB 88 2wl 1 E G )

AL/

L 5

Place of
kL incorporation/
Name of company establishment
WA ()

Subsidiary (Continued)

EREMCERRARAA Kb il
Chongqing Longhu Development ~ PRC
Company Limited (note b)

o R0 0 R il
BRAA (Bka) PRC
Chongqing Longhu Hengshang
Real Estate Company Limited

(note a)
Bl B R i
HIRAE (D) PRC

Chongging Longhu Kaian Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (note b)

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

50 1 1 1

Equity interest

attributable to

the Group

= S e
2010 2009
91.3% 91.3%
91.3% 91.3%
95.6% 95.6%

CRITRA R
Bk /G E A
Issued and

fully paid

shate capital/
registered capital

it flt A AR
1,308,000,0007c
BR A AR B
1,214,214,0007%
Registered
RMB1,308,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,214,214,000

Ak A AR R
30,000,0007C
BRBA AR
30,000,000
Registered
RMB30,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB30,000,000

GALNC NS
1,278,000,0007c
B AR K
1,278,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB1,278,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,276,000,000

BEpE
Place of
operation

i
PRC

i
PRC

i
PRC

FUEH

Principal activities

VES YT
Properties development
and investment

ES T

Properties development

ES T

Properties development



i B R MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

41008 2 v ~ 3t ) ¥ o) B i 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
B W6 8 4 vl ik o) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
CRITRAR
AL/ Rk /it g &
WL REMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid AR
kL incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Placeof — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“F-%E CITAE
2010 2009
WEAR (%)
Subsidiary (Continued)
FREMNERRARA A (Kb il 91.3% 91.3%  MERARK i LES 1983
Chongqing Longhu Properties PRC 1,544,912,4507 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note b) BRBANRE and investment
1,544,912,4507
Registered
RMB1,544,912,450
Paid up capital
RMB,544,912,450
ERREWMAEEEARAR (Wita il 91.3% 91.3% aMEAARE il YRR LB
Chongging Longhu Xijie PRC 624,000,0007C PRC Properties development
Real Estate Company BRBANRE and investment
Limited (note a) 624,000,0007¢
Registered
RMBG24,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBG24,000,000
EREREMEERERRARAA (WD & 46.6%" 4000 EMEAARY Gl ES Y
Chongqing Longhu Yiheng Estate  PRC 360,000,0007C PRC Propetties development
Development Co., Ltd. (note b) BRRA AR
360,000,0007
Registered
RMB360,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB360,000,000

4% Annual Repore 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

A1. B0 )8 2 v ~ b ) ¥ o) £ 8 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
BB 88 2wl 1 E G ) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continied)
CRITRA R
it/ Bk /G E A
L REMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest ~ fully paid AR
A4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Placeof — FE¥H
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
SR CZTAE
2010 2009
WA ()
Subsidiary (Continued)
EEMITEGRA A (W) il 93.5% 93.5% s MERARE HE WERRE
Chongqing Rongkai Industrial PRC (98,000,0007¢ PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note b) e IN
098,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB698,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB(98,000,000
EEXAREARAT (Wita) il 93.5% 93.5% aEMEAARE Gl ES S
Chongqing Tianzhuo Investment ~ PRC 20,000,000 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) e IN
20,000,000
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000
EREXRERRARAA (Wit il 93.5% 93.5% aEMEAARE i BIEEE
Chongqing Tianlang Agriculture PRC 10,000,000 PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Development Company BRRA AR
Limited (note a) 10,000,0007c
Registered
RMB10,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB10,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &




A1 BB 2 Wl ~ 36 I ¥ o T

BB 8% A v ik
AL/
RR A4 R A e
Place of Equity interest
kL incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
“E2-%E CTTAE
2010 2009
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
ERMENDERGARAA (Wita)  PH 91.3% 91.3%
Chongging Xinlonghu Properties PRC
Services Company Limited
(note a)
HMENFREREARAA (Wit T& 100% 100%
Hangzhou Longhu Real Estate PRC
Development Co., Ltd. (note ¢)
FilEREREARAT (M) il 93.5% 93.5%
Shanghai Hengchi Real Estate PRC

Company Limited (note a)

i B R MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

oH#fT kAR

Bk /G E A
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

At A AR
5,000,0007¢
BREA AR
5,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB5,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB5,000,000

ik M A
149,400,000% 7t
BEBA
149,400,000 7t
Registered
USD149,400,000
Paid up capital
USD149,400,000

GALNZ N
1,000,000,0007
EVTIE INT
1,000,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB1,000,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,000,000,000

BEpE
Place of
operation

i
PRC

PRC

Gl
PRC

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

EEEH

Principal activities

WxEH

Properties management

ES L

Properties development

ES 3

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2010




i B s 2 B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

A1. B0 )8 2 v ~ b ) ¥ o) £ 8 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
BB 88 2wl 1 E G ) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
CRITRA R
AL/ Rk /it &
L REMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest ~ fully paid AR
kL incorporation/ attributable o share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“F-%E CTTAE
2010 2009
R AR (4
Subsidiary (Continued)
UM BARA A (Hzka) il 91.3% 91.3%  MERARK HE NEER
Shanghai Longhu Property PRC 5,000,0007¢ PRC Properties management
Management Company e IN
Limited (note a) 5,000,0007
Registered
RMBS,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB5,000,000
LERNEERRARAA (Wit il 91.3% 91.3% EMEAARE Gl YERR
Shanghai Longhu Real Estate PRC 100,000,000 PRC Properties development
Co. Ltd.(note a) e IN
100,000,000
Registered
RMB100,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB100,000,000
FEEHEEMRCARA A W5k il 93.5% 93.5% aEMEAARE i BIEEE
Shanghai Xinrun Garden Virescence PRC 12,000,000 PRC Nursery of seeding tree
Company Limited (note a) BRRA AR
12,000,007
Registered
RMB12,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB12,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &




A1 BB 2 Wl ~ 36 I ¥ o T

i R
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE-Z BE A=t [

For the year ended December 31, 2010

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

BB 8% A v ik
AL/
B A4 R A e
Place of Equity interest
kL incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
“F-%E CITAE
2010 2009
WEAR (%)
Subsidiary (Continued)
EERATERRAH (B3 il 93.5% 93.5%
Shanghai Yujiu Industrial PRC
Company Limited (note b)
BHENERERRARAD (Kb HH 98.5% 98.5%
Shenyang Longhu Estate PRC
Development Co., Ltd. (note b)
PO GRS 2 B A R ] (HRED) il 93.5% 85.5%
Sichuan Longhu Real Estate PRC

Development Company
Limited (note b)

oH#fT kAR

Bk /G E A
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

At A AR
20,000,000
BREA AR
20,000,0007
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

ik M A
05,000,000 7¢
BEBA
05,000,000 7t
Registered
USD65,000,000
Paid up capital
USD65,000,000

GALNZ N
50,000,0007%
EVTIE INT
50,000,0007C
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB50,000,000

BEpE
Place of
operation

i
PRC

HE
PRC

Gl
PRC

EEEH

Principal activities

BHES
Trading of construction
materials

ES L

Properties development

ES 3

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

A1. B0 )8 2 v ~ b ) ¥ o) £ 8 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
BB 88 2wl 1 E G ) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
CRITRA R
AL/ Rk /it &
L REMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest ~ fully paid AR
kL incorporation/ attributable o share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“F-%E CTTAE
2010 2009
R AR (4
Subsidiary (Continued)
%A E XA RA A (W5Ea) il 91.3% 90.7% EMERARY HE WERRE
Xi'an Longhu Jincheng PRC 430,000,0007 PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) e IN
430,000,0007C
Registered
RMB430,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB430,000,000
1% W R A IR A (W et a) il 91.3% 91.3% EMEAARE Gl ES S
Xi'an Longhu Property Service PRC 3,000,0007¢ PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note a) e IN
3,000,0007¢
Registered
RMB3,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB3,000,000
T4 W E B R AR A (H5Ea) il 91.3% 91.3% EMEAARE Gl ES S
Xi'an Longhu Real Estate Inc. PRC 50,000,000 PRC Propetties development
(note a) BRRA AR
50,000,0007c
Registered
RMB50,000,000
Paid up capital
RMBS50,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &




41. W )8 A ¥ >

36 I 4l 20 1

BB 8% A v ik
AL/
RR A4 R A e
Place of Equity interest
kL incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
“E2-%E CTTAE
2010 2009
WEAR (4)
Subsidiary (Continued)
HEREMERERAMA (Wit  HH 91.3% 91.3%
Xi'an Longhu Xingcheng Estate PRC
Co. Ltd. (note a)
FREEEERARAR (Ha) il 93.5% 93.5%
Xian Yeheng Indusmal PRC
Company Limited (note a)
EHENERARA (B ika) I 91.3% 91.3%
Wuxi Longhu Real Estate Inc. PRC

(note a)

B B U 5 R B

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

oH#fT kAR

Bk /G E A
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

At A AR
219,610,007
BREA AR
219,610,0007t
Registered
RMB219,610,000
Paid up capital
RMB219,610,000

ik M EA AR R
20,000,0007C
BRERANRE
20,000,000
Registered
RMB20,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB20,000,000

GALNZ N
615,200,000%
EVTIE INT
015,200,007
Registered
RMB615,200,000
Paid up capital
RMB615,200,000

BEpE
Place of
operation

il
PRC

Gl
PRC

Gl
PRC

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

EEEH

Principal activities

SN

Properties development

BHE S
Trading of construction
materials

ES 3

Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2010




i B s 2 B
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

A1. B0 )8 2 v ~ b ) ¥ o) £ 8 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
B0k % 2 v i w0 CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
CRITRA R
AL/ Rk /G RE A
L B AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest ~ fully paid AR
kL incorporation/ attributable o share capital/ Place of — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“F-%E CTTAE
2010 2009
R AR (4
Subsidiary (Continued)
Jasmine Spread Investment Limited %8 46 w B & 100% 1000 EEHEA Ei B R
(ERERRRE]) 50,0005 & HK Investment holding
The British BRRA2ET
Virgin Authorised
Islands USD50,000
(the “BVI") Paid up capital
USD2
Join Dragon Limited KRR BE 100% 100% kA B LR
BVI 50,000% & HK Investment holding
BRRA2ET
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
UsD2
Longfor Investment Co. Lid. KRR BE 100% 100% EEEAIEL Ei BEER
BVI BRRAIET HK Investment holding
Authorised
USD1
Paid up capital
USD1

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &




i B R MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

41. W 8 2 | ~ 3t ) P o 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
KOG 8 2 vl Wk ) CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

oH#fT kAR
it/ Bk /G E A
RR AEMENRE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid AR
kL incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Placeof — FEEH
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“E-RE CRELE
2010 2009

W2 ()
Subsidiary (Continued)

Silver Oak Enterprises Limited ERARTBE 100% 100% EEEA ik fEER
BVI 50,000% & HK Investment holding
BRBA2ET
Authorised
USD50,000
Paid up capital
UsD2

BRERARAA i (5] 100% 100% EEEA Eik REER
Fortune Glister Development Hong Kong 10,0003 & HK Investment holding
Limited (*HK") BERA LT
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1

EREHARAH Ei 91.3% 913% EEEE Eik REER
Joy Wealth Trading Limited HK 100,000,000% 72 HK Investment holding
B kA
09,087,000i Tt
Authorised
HKD100,000,000
Paid up capital
HKD69,687,000

4% Annual Repore 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

41. W8 2 H) ~ 3t W P i 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

B0k % 2 v i w0 CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
CELRSR
AL/ Rk /it g A&
R B A58 0 46 I Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BEnE
M4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Placeof — FE%H
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“%2-%2E CZTNE
2010 2009

WA (#)
Subsidiary (Continued)

i A R 7 ik 100% 100% EEEA &k Bk
Joyline Corporation Limited HK 10,0008 7t HK Investment holding
BEBALE T
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1

FERERE BR) ARAR Fik 100% 100% EEEA &k Bk
Juntion Development Hong Kong ~ HK 2,000,000 ¢ HK Investment holding
(Holding) Limited SR NA
2,000,000 7
Authorised
HKD2,000,000
Paid up capital
HKD2,000,000

Longfor Company Limited ik 100% 1009  EEEA ik BB R
HK 10,0009 76 HK Investment holding
BEBALE T
Authorised
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1

ERARAT Eik 100% 100%  FMEA &k Bk
Treasure State Limited HK 10,0001 7t HK Investment holding
B BALE T
Registered
HKD10,000
Paid up capital
HKD1

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &




m/T

LA E E

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE-Z BE A=t [

41. W0 )8 2 7] ~ 36 ) e ) 8
B 88 A vl Wyt a0
P AL/
RLRY KRMIG e
Place of Equity interest
N4 incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
“-%F “FEAF
2010 2009
KRBEHER
Jointly Controlled Entity
HAEREEARAT il 59.2%#+  59.2%#+
(THAER]) (Wikd PRC
Chengdu Huixin Real Estate
Company Limited (‘Chengdu
Huixin") (note d)
B FR B EARAR Gl 47.7% #+  47.7%#+
(TRAzwm]) (WeEd PRC
Chengdu Jia'nan Real Estate
Company Limited (“Chengdu
Jia'nan”) (note d)
HREERARAA HE 46.2%#+  40.20%#+
(TRARE]) (Hekd PRC

Chengdu Jinghui Real Estate
Company Limited (“Chengdu
Jinghui”) (note d)

CRITRA R
Rk /it A
Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital

GALNZ NS
029,993,5007
BERANRYE
029,993,5007¢
Registered
RMB629,993,500
Paid up capital
RMB629,993,500

GALC NS
382,890,1007¢
BERANRE
382,890,100
Registered
RMB382,890,100
Paid up capital
RMB382,890,100

GALZ NS
053,275,8007
BRBRANRE
053,275,8007¢
Registered
RMB653,275,800
Paid up capital
RMB653,275,800

For the year ended December 31, 2010

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

RS

Placeof — FEEH

operation  Principal activities
HE ES S

PRC Properties development
HE ESYS

PRC Properties development
HE ESYS

PRC Properties development

4% Annual Repore 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FELTA=ZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

A1. B0 )8 2 v ~ b ) ¥ o) £ 8 41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY
B0k % 2 v i w0 CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)
CRITRA R
AL/ Rk /i ME A
B B REMENRHE  Issued and
Place of Equity interest  fully paid BEnE
M4 incorporation/ attributable to  share capital/ Placeof — FE%H
Name of company establishment the Group registered capital  operation  Principal activities
“F-%E CTTAE
2010 2009
KRBEHER 45
Jointly Controlled Entity (Continued)
A4 e A A ) il 46.2%#+  40.2%#+  AMEAAEMH Gl WERRE
(TR (BEd PRC 033,495,100 PRC Properties development
Chengdu Tuocheng Real Estate BRRA AR
Company Limited (‘Chengdu 033,495,100
Tuocheng”) (note d) Registered
RMB633,495,100
Paid up capital
RMB633,495,100
EEREWENERARAT (Hd  HHE 50%# 50%  aEfEA Gl WEH R
Longhu Land Limited (note d) PRC 27,000,000% 7 PRC Properties development
BRRA
27,000,000 7
Registered
USD27,000,000
Paid up capital
USD27,000,000
FEHERRERRAT (Hid il 45.7% 57 EREAARK Gl WEH R
Shanghai Hengrui Real Estate PRC 1,589,000,0007¢ PRC Properties development
Company Limited (note d) BRBANREK
1,589,000,0007c
Registered
RMB1,589,000,000
Paid up capital
RMB1,589,000,000

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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m/T

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-FEFTZAZT—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2010

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

ALWER A 1 ~ S B AR
B W6 8 4 vl ik o)
AL/
LI 450 L T 1 1t
Place of Equity interest
N4 incorporation/ attributable to
Name of company establishment the Group
“-%F “FEAF
2010 2009
KRR ()
Jointly Controlled Entity (Continued)
Northpole Intermediary Limited MERE 444%#  44.4%#
(“Northpole”) Cayman
Islands
RERBEEARAR Bk 50%# 100%
Top Grand International HK
Enterprise Limited
Baad
Associate
BAWERL M (5) A 20% 20%
AIRA T (Bzke)
Ar Ke Er (note e) PRC
FEE (B HRAR (18 ARARTBE 47.4% 47.4%
Easeridge Investments Limited) BVI

Jiaxun Land (China) Company
Limited (Formerly known as
Easeridge Investments Limited)

CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

oH#fT kAR

Bk /G E A

Issued and

fully paid BEnE

share capital/ Place of — FEXH

registered capital  operation  Principal activities
k& A 2005 76 MeRE  RERK

BRRA200% T Cayman  Investment holding
Registered Islands

USD200

Paid up capital

USD200

A EAL, 0008 Fil
BEBRAL00008%  HK
Registered

HKD10,000

Paid up capital

HKD10,000

it E41,250,000% 7 4B
BERAL00%T PR
Registered

USD1,250,000

Paid up capital

USD100

EEAAN0000ET  Fi
BERA 1005 T HK
Authorised

USD50,000

Paid up capital

USD100

RN

Investment holding

EEH
Production of air
conditioning

RN

Investment holding

4% Annual Repore 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE-F-BE LAt 1A
For the year ended December 31, 2010

A1 BB 2 Wl ~ 36 I ¥ o T
B W28 4 ¥ kA )

Wit

(a) %M 2 ) A o I S 2 A 2 O

* .
(b) % B 2 ] A A R B RS 2 B AR 3

© BHEAT R TR 2SR -

(d) FZILEZEH TR AR B R L2 B

Tk

(e)  wRIBHE 2~ w2y 1S oh B L 2 A AN A 2 o

MERBARR -F—FFE T =1
— H BT o fE 7 35 2 > Bk 2 B A
SEAR AT PR W AT I AR R G A
fiE 25 2 A\ R #1,400,000,0007C 15 %5 ©

AR S EEENCERRE RARRZE
—RERZERZNFETF A=+ —HRAH
91.3% M HE 1) — 4 W JBS 2 W) 5 A1 1 TR I
) o WAON ) By A T A 4 o T A
PRIt ol A AR R R T A LR
A% ) A 5% 2 A 1 A7 kI AR D R
50% » AH A ) A7) 7T 375 i o B 0 A 3 9
5% AN FAT 8 B o HE

# RLRATIA S I A HARSEAS A R ALAREE
TR A J A AR5 o S [ o S -
O ) B AR BOR A
3

°

+ RERAEAR A Bl B R A FE AR
R~ R T K B B K 7.84% ~ 4.74% -
4.50%}%32.05% ) # 4 > T Northpole 5l
el A MR FE o USRS O T B A
#5 BE #792.16% ~ 95.26% ~ 95.41% K 67.95%
WOREST o ARIRAH B A 8 ek > ARG A5
% 2 L[R5 1) B B 49.13% 10 W R+ i 5% 4
AT LB RREBORALR G ER
R E -

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &

41. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, JOINTLY

CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The subsidiary is a domestic wholly-owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

(b) The subsidiary is an equity joint venture established in the PRC.

(c) The subsidiary is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

(d) The jointly controlled entity is an equity joint venture established in the
PRC.

(e) The associate is a wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the
PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
December 31, 2010, except for Chongqing Longhu
Development Company Limited which has issued RMB1,400
million bonds, in which the Group has no interest.

*

This company is subsidiary held by Chongging Longhu Development, a
subsidiary in which the Company has 91.3% equity interest at December
31, 2010 and 2009. This company is indirectly controlled subsidiary of
the Company. Therefore, the Company could exercise the control over
this company through Chongqing Longhu Development, though the
effective beneficial interests attributable to the Company in this
company are calculated at less than 50% based on the effective interest
holding percentage.

#  These companies were accounted for as jointly controlled entities as at

respective period end date as in accordance with the memorandum and
the articles of the companies, major financial and operating policies of

these companies required the unanimous consent of all the directors.

+  The interests of Chengdu Jia'nan, Chengdu Tuocheng, Chengdu Jinghui

and Chengdu Huixin directly held by Chengdu Jiaxun and Northpole are
7.84%, 4.74%, 4.50% and 32.05% and 92.16%, 95.26%, 95.41% and 67.95%
respectively. Pursuant to the relevant joint venture agreements, the
Group is entitled to share 49.13% of profit of these jointly controlled
entities and major financial and operating policies of these companies

required the unanimous consent of all joint venture partners.



VY - S 25 1Bk

Four Years Financial Summary

BET-H=1T—HILEE

Year ended December 31,

—R-RE ZEFNE ZFFNE ZERRLHE

2010 2009 2008 2007

ANREFLE ARWTFIET ARHETFLTC AR¥TIL

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BEH Revenue 15,093,122 11,373,962 4,475,199 3,498,040
T il s £ Profit before taxation 7,068,474 4,061,040 680,679 1,625,281
Jir 45 i B 32 Income tax expense (2,051,101) (1,568,581) (281,198) (724,081)
4 B i Profit for the year 5,017,373 2,492,459 399,481 901,200

PR REAG - Attributable to:

/NG Owners of the Company 4,130,155 2,209,207 331,590 749,990
D WU R 45 Minority interests 887,218 283,252 67,891 151,210
B i Profit for the year 5,017,373 2,492,459 399,481 901,200

4% Annual Repore 2010
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Four Years Financial Summary

BET-H=1T—HILFE

At December 31,
R R4 ZERENAE ZRTI\F R
2010 2009 2008 2007
ANRETFLT ARETIL AR T 76 AR BT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
B R ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
%M Total assets 71,713,564 42,445,102 32,396,267 22,639,483
BB Total liabilities (54,347,744) (29,206,540) (28,452,033) (18,511,015)
17,365,820 13,238,562 3,944,234 4,128,468
AN EERMEM S Equity attributable to
owners of the Company 15,980,256 12,138,678 3,122,561 2,809,240
D WU SR %5 Minority interests 1,385,564 1,099,884 821,673 1,259,228
17,365,820 13,238,562 3,944,234 4,128,468

Longfor Properties Co. Ltd. HE i & H B A &
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